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Bulgarian - American Credit Bank AD 

Consolidated Activity Report 

As at 31 December 2022 

The Bulgarian-American Credit Bank AD (BACB, the Bank) continued to operate in 2022 as a universal bank offering 

a full range of banking services, aimed at the green economy, indl. financing small and medium-sized enterprises 
and expanding the services in retail banking by offering a variety of products in the field of housing and consumer 
lending and transaction banking. The bank strives to meet its clients' needs by offering a comprehensive range of 

banking services and providing modern banking technologies and thereby to expand its customer base. 

E . . 

External environment 

The global economy outlook has deteriorated amid rising geopolitical uncertainty, high and further growing 

inflation rates and tight financing conditions. According to the World Bank's data the global real GDP growth is 

expected to slow down to 2.9%. In 2023 itis expected to reach 1.7% with follow-up increase to 2.7% in 2024. Global 

price pressures remain wide and elevated amid a relatively robust demand, tight labor market conditions and high 

food prices, but they are expected to ease as commodity markets stabilize and growth drops. Given this environment 
of great uncertainty, the balance of risks to the benchmarks in the baseline scenario is to the downside on global 
growth and to the upside on global price pressures. 

According to preliminary Eurostat data, in 2022 GDP in the Eurozone is growing by 3.5% in real terms compared to 

5.3% in 2021. In Germany and Italy, Bulgaria's largest trading partners in the EU, real GDP is growing by 1.8% and 

3.5% respectively. The data available at the end of January 2023 for the conjunctural indicators, including the PMI 

indices of the services and industry sectors, point to a weak chain decline in the real GDP of the Euro area in the first 

guarter of 2023. 

Euro Area labour market conditions remain unchanged in 2022. During the year, the unemployment rate declined 
from 7% at the end of the previous year to 6.6% by December 2022. The unemployment rate is expected to trend 

around the year-end levels with the possibility of slight deviations. 

According to the latest ECB projections, inflation is expected to decline from an average of 8.4% in 2022 to 6.3% in 

2023, with a further decline to 3.4% in 2024 and 2.3% in 2025, the outlook for weaker growth and the assumption 

that energy and food commodity prices will decline in line with futures prices, as well as the assumption that long- 

term inflation expectations will remain stabilised. An additional factor in this direction is the phasing out of fiscal 

measures offsetting energy price increases. 

Bulgaria 

Available indicators for the fourth guarter of 2022 point to continued real GDP growth at a pace similar to that of 
the previous guarter. For 2022, economic activity in Bulgaria is expected to increase by 3.4%, with the largest 

positive contributions to real GDP growth coming from changes in inventories and private consumption, while the 

contribution of net exports and investment will be negative. In 2023, real GDP growth is expected to slow to 0.4%, 

mainly as a result of a reduction in the stock of inventories in the economy due to a weakening of incentives for 

firms to maintain high stocks of raw materials, materials and finished goods. A modest restraint on exports of goods 

is expected in 2023, driven by an assumed weakening of economic activity in Bulgaria's main trading partners, as 

well as by Bulgaria-specific factors related to the ban on exports to countries other than Ukraine of oil and 
petroleum products produced from Russian oil. These factors are also projected to negatively affect imports of 

goods, as Bulgarian exports of petroleum products and base metals are characterised by a high share of imported 

value added. At the same time, domestic demand is projected to accelerate in 2023, driven entirely by an increase 

in fixed capital investment under the assumption of the absorption profile of the National Recovery and 

Sustainability Plan (NRSP) funds by both the private and public sectors. Domestic demand growth in 2023 will be 

characterized by government consumption holding at 2022 levels and private consumption growing slightly year- 

on-year. Growth in economic activity is expected to accelerate to 3.2% in 2024, driven by an increase in net exports 

in line with the assumption on external demand dynamics and the end of export-constraining factors in 2023. 

The labour market is on an upward trend with a steadily declining unemployment rate after peaking in the second 

guarter of 2020. In 2022, employment is projected to increase by 1.2%, while in 2023 employment is projected to 

decline slightly by 0.2% in line with the projected slowdown in economic activity in the country. At the same time, 
the decline in the working-age population will be a factor in the gradual decline in the unemployment rate from 

4.3% in 2022 to 4.0% in 2024. Real labour productivity growth is projected to reach 1.9% in 2022, slow to 0.5% in 
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2023 in line with the weaker economic activity in the country, and then rise by 2.9% in 2024. Tightening labor 

market conditions combined with strong consumer price increases and inflation expectations contributed to a 
significant 17.5% increase in compensation per employee between January and September 2022. Compensation 

per employee growth is projected to average 17.7% in 2022 and decline to 10.7% in 2023 and 9.1% in 2024 in line 

with the projected slowdown in inflation. 

In 2022, the annual rate of change in consumer prices tends to accelerate, reaching a peak of 15.6% in September 

2022. Subseguently, inflation as measured by the Harmonised Index of Consumer Prices (HICP) slows to 14.3% in 
December 2022, following the downward trend in energy commodity prices (natural gas, electricity and oil) on 
international markets. Inflation dynamics over the projection period depend to a large extent on the trajectory of 

commodity prices in international markets and on the effects of the impact of currently implemented fiscal 
measures to support households and firms. Annual inflation is expected to slow to 4.2% at the end of 2023 and to 
3.3% at the end of 2024. The expected downward dynamics are the result of a deflationary external environment 

in line with assumptions of declining euro-denominated oil and food prices in international markets. 

Forecast for the main macroeconomic indicators for the period 2022-2024 ( 

  

2022 2023 2024 

Annual rate of change 

GDP at constant prices 34 04 3.2 

Private consumption 40 3.3 44 

Government consumption 6.5 0.0 19 

Gross fixed capital formation 16 111 18 

Export of goods and services 84 -0.4 48 

Import of goods and services 111 29 4.0 

HICP at the end of the period 14.3 A2 33 

Core inflation 11.6 79 S.5 

Energy products 17.5 58 -0,3 

Food 25.9 20 21 

Goods and services at administratively determined prices and 6.0 1.6 
tobacco products 29 

Employment 1,2 -0.2 0.3 

Labor costs per unit of output 15.5 101 6.0 

Labor productivity 19 0.5 29 

Unemployment rate (share af labor force, %) 43 42 4.0 

Receivables from the non-governmental sector 131 56 5.0 

Receivables from enterprises ? 10.7 A1 3.7 

Receivables from households 15.6 73 6.8 

Deposits by the non-government sector 140 93 81 

Percentage of GDP 

Payment balance current account 0.2 A7 d1.6 

Trade balance -5.6 7A 67 

Services, net 6.3 6.5 6.6 

Primary income, net -2.7 24 28 

Secondary income, net 1.8 1.5 1,2 

Annual rate of change 

External assumptions 

External demand 58 21 34 

Average annual Brent oil price (in U$ dollars) 42.6 20.32 -d.3     
m
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Average annual price of non-enerpy products (in US doHars) * 45 N 32 

Brent oil price at the end of the period (in US dollars) 14.1 133 0 

Price of non-energy products at the end of the period (in US doflars) -1.4 KR 34 

  

1After he preparation of the forecast, on 16 January 2023, NSI published the reporting data for HICP n December 2022, showing an inflation rate af 
14,3%. According to HIPC subcompenents, certain differences are observed hetween actual and projected inflation with a rmutually offsetting effect. 

#The data refer to non-financial enterprises. 
#The prices of non-energsr products are weighted according to the structure of the Hulpgarian import of goods. 

Source: BNB. 

There are a number of risks to the macroeconormnic outlook due to the high uncertainty globally and especially the 

geopolitical situation surrounding the war in Ukraine. A significantrisk is the possible further restriction of energy 
imports from the Russian Federation to the EU and Bulgaria, and the impossibility of a rapid replacement with 

supplies from other countries. Should interest rate hikes fail to bring inflation down to desired levels, this could 

form the perception that leading central banks are unable to cope with rising prices and would form self-sustaining 

expectations of keeping inftation above officially announced targets in the medium term. 

BACB - business performance 

At the end of the fourth guarter of 2022, the Bank's loan portfolio grew by a net of 10.5%, or EUR 67.524 million, 

compared to the end of 2021. The newly granted loans reached a net increase of EUR 75,874 million (BGN 148.396 
million) or a 12.21% increase. 

With regards to SMEs ard corporate loans to legal entities, the Bank reports a net growth of EUR 46,696 million 

(BGN 91.33 million) or 10.61%, with a share of 66.23% of the Bank's total loan portfolio, compared to 66.37% in 

tie end of 2021. The market share of legal entities is 2.40% as of the fourth guarter of 2022, given the values of 2 

- 2.5% provided for in the Development strategy. 

With regards to borrowed funds from SMEs and Corporate clients at the end of the fourth guarter of 2022, the total 

borrowed resource amounts to EUR 199,623 million ( BGN 390428 million), representing a decrease of 3.29% 

(EUR 6.795 million million in absolute value) compared to the end of 2021, when the total borrowed resource for 

the segments reached EUR 206,417 miltion (BGN 403.716 million). Compared to the values as of 31.12.2021 the 

Bank reports a decrease by EUR 4.469 million (BGN 8.740 million) - 23.32% for term deposits, and for demand 

funds —- a decrease of EUR2.326 million (BGN 4.549 million) -1.24%. In view of the “borrowed funds from legal 

entities” values BACB reached 3.19% market share as of 31.12.2022, given the values of 2-2.5% set out in the 

strategy. 

n compliance with the Bank's strategy, the old "legacy” loan portfolio of legal entities was reduced net by EUR 

2.072 million (BGN 4.052 million) or 17.89% for the guarter, reaching a total book exposure of EUR 9.506 million 

(BGN 18.52 million), as a result of which their share in the Bank's total portfolio dropped from 1.71% at the end 

of 2021 to 1.28% as of 31.12.2022. 

Regardless of the negative economic conditioas generated by the growing imported inflation and the slowdown in 

economic expansion present worldwide, which contributes to an increase in problem exposures of legal entities, 

BACB reports a decrease of this indicator by 13.14% or EUR 10.195 million (BGN 19.940 million) in absolute value 

at the end of the guarter, compared to the values as at 31.12.2022. As a share of the total loan portfolio, problem 

£xposures were reduced by 2.19% to 8.66% compared to 31.12.2021, as a result of the proactive approach of the 

units responsible for their collection and the outpacing growth of the new performing loan portfolio. 

During the fourth guarter of 2022 the bank developed an “European Programs and Sustainable Development” 
Structural unit, which is responsible for the activities related to the EU Taxonomy, the instruction of ESG factors 

and sustainable development. 

The following initiatives carried out by BACB also helped expanding credit operations for Corporate clients: 

- “Napred"” Credit line with BDB EAD for indirect financing of micro, small and medium-sized businesses, 

there are 63 concluded loaans in the amount of EUR 21,526,843.63 (BGN 42 102 846.59). As a result of this 
program, $3 SMEs employing more than 1580 people were supported; 
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- Since 2018, the Bank has implemented the agreement concdluded with “Bulgarian Development Bank"” EAD 

for financing of small and medium-sized enterprises with a guarantee facility and counter-guarantees 

under the “COSME” Program of the European Investment Fund, with the support of the European Fund 

for Strategic Investments - “COSME4” European Fund for Strategic Investments in the amount of EUR 10 

000 000. As of 31.12.2022, the total number of loan agreements condludcd is 126, for the amount of EUR 

9,900,178.98 (BGN 19 363 067.06), with a total principal of EUR 3,833,084.52 (BGN 7 496 861.69) and 

guarantees in the amount of EUR 2,299,850.71 (BGN 4 498 117.-01). This program supported 126 SMES 

cemploying more than 1 505 people and holding total assets of EUR 98,216,613.20 (BGN 192 094 998.63); 

BACB AD operates under a guarantee scheme, aimed at facilitating the access of SMES to financing from 

commercial banks, through a risk sharing scheme by the National Guarantee Fund EAD and the Ministry 

of Agriculture and Food. As of 31.12.2022 there are 9 active guarantees for EUR 366,631.31 (BGN 717 

068.52) and loans for EUR 1,070,541.-41 (RGN 2 093 797). Since the beginning of the program, 76 SMES 
clients have been supported, with a total amount of loans of EUR 24,899,914.61 (BGN 48 700 000). 

- BACB implements a Guarantee scheme for supporting SMEs by the NGF /SMES 2019/ - revolving and 
investment loans, as well as counter-pguarantees under bank guarantees. As of 31.12.2022, there are 51 

active deals under the program for EUR 10,677,612.87 (RGN 20 883 595.58) with guarantees amounting 

to EUR 3,794,274.22 (BGN 7 420 955.34). This program supported 80 SMES employing more than 1 073 

people and holding total assets of EUR 110 853 193 (BGN 216 810 000). 

- BACB implements the COSME Guarantee $cheme of the NGF and the Europcan Fund for Strategic 

Investments (EFSID). As of 31.12.2022 there are 15 active loans with guarantees in the amount of EUR 

1,677,610.48 (BGN 3 281 120.90). In total, the scheme has supported 342 SME$ employing more than 741 

people and has granted loans in the amount of EUR 6,562,034 (BGN 12 834 222), with guarantees 

amounting to EUR 3281,017 (BGN 6 417 111). 

- BACB also implements the guarantee schemes of the Municipal Guarantee Fund for small and medium- 

sized enterprises with the Capital Municipality. As of 31.12.2022, there is an active portfolio under the 

guarantee scheme of the Municipal Guarantee (or SMES in the amount of EUR 413 746.09 (BGN 809 

217.01) or loans in the amount of EUR 1,694,889.64 (BGN 3 314 916). 

- BACB implements a Guarantee Scheme to support SMES affected by the Covid-19 crisis, jointly with BDR 

EAD. Since the introduction of the scheme - 01.06.2020 to 31.12.2022, 195 loans totaling EUR 

21,805,629,64 (BGN 42 648 104.63) were granted to companies employing more than 4 175 people and 

holding total assets of EUR 482,029,604.8 (BGN 942 767 962). As of 30.06.2022 there are 167 active loans, 

with principals in the amount of EUR 15,015,228.07 (BGN 29 367 233.53) and guarantees in the amount 

of EUR 12,012,182.45 (BGN 23 493 786.82). 

- BACB implements a Guarantee scheme under the “Recovery" Program to support busincss through 

guarantees by BDB EAD in the amount ol 80%. The loans have a maximum amount of EUR 1 533 875 and 

are providcd without collateral, with shortencd approval periods. Since the start of the program, 61 loans 

totaling EUR 13,349,616.39 (BGN 26 109 580.23) have been grantcd to clients with a total of over 563 

employees and total assets of EUR 141,762,853.6 (BGN 277 264 042), where active laans have a total 

principal of EUR 12,553,017.42 (BGN 24 551 568.08) and guarantees in th€ amount of EUR 10,042,413.94 

(BGN 19 641 254 .46). 

- BACB implemcnts a guarantee scheme with the Fund manager of financial instruments in Bulgaria - 

Portfolio guarantee with a loss cap, aimed at overcoming the conseguences of the COVID-19 pandemic in 

the amount of FUR 10 225 837, wherec the guarantecs amount to 80%. As of 31.12.2022, there are active 

credits totaling EUR 5,519,395.86 (BGN 10 795 000), principals in the amount of EUR 5,378,759.77 (BGN 

10 519 939.73) with guarantecs of EUR 4,295,253.23 (BGN 8 400 785.12). The full amount of the agreed 

guarantec portfolio has been realized; 

- BACB AD also implements a Guarantee scheme with the Fund Manager of Financial Instruments in 

Bulgaria - Portfolio guarantee with a loss cap, aimed at overcoming the conseguences of the pandemic - 

“Recovery"” Program. As of 31.12.2022 there are a total of 10 laoans for EUR 1,073,712.95 (BGN Z 100 000) 

with guarantees in the amount of EUR 321,097.89 (BGN 628 012.88). 

The Bank also applics a Guarantce program for unsecurcd loans jointly with the Fund Manager of Financial 

Instruments in Bulgaria - Portfolio guarantee wilh a loss Cap “Recovery Z” with total guarantees of EUR 

5,331,601.42 (BGN 10 427 706) covering 80% of the loans. As of 31.12.2022 there are a total of 14 loans 

for EUR 6,621,826.03 (BGN 12 951 166) with guarantees in the amount of EUR 3,935,219 (BGN 7 696 

619.38).
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- The Bank applies a Guarantee scheme for the support of SMEs by the NGF /SME 2022/ with a total 
guaranteed portfolio of EUR 28 121 053, which enables BACB to provide loans of more than EUR 56 242 
107. As of 31.12.2022, there are a total of 16 active transactions under the program for EUR 2,620,266.97 

(BGN S 124 796.74) with guarantees amounting to EUR 1,310,133.48 (BGN 2 562 398.37). As a result of 
this program, a total of 16 SMES were supported, employing more than 237 people and holding assets 
totaling EUR 12,015,394.99 (BGN 23 500 070); 

In the fourth guarter of 2022, the Retail Banking business line, which manages the Individuals segment at BACB, 

reported very good results in its lending activities, with the highest growth belonging to low-risk mortgage loans - 
an increase of EUR 7.056 million (BGN 13.8 million) or 5.73% compared to the end of the previous guarter. The 

growth in mortgage lending is conditioned by the excellent price terms and the Bank's customer-oriented 
approach. Consumer loans, on the other hand, were reduced by EUR 0.562 million (BGN 1.1 million) or 1.71% 

compared to the previous guarter. 
The market presence of the two product segments in the banking system at the end of 2022 was respectively 1.07% 
for mortgage loans and 0.71% for consumer loans, while the Bank expects them to continue their upward trend in 
2023. According to BACB's strategy, the target in the Retail Banking business segment is for additional significant 

growth and reaching a 2% market share over the next years. 

Given the high results achieved, the Bank managed to fulfill yet another main goal laid down in its strategy for 
Retail lending development relating to the share of loans to individuals in the total loan portfolio, which at the end 
of the fourth guarter of 2022 was 23.60% compared to 23.57% at the end of the previous duarter. 

In order to develop its business with individuals, BACB carried out the following activities: 
-  The offering of the “Clean account” payment product for individuals with the new VISA card, online 

management using BACB Online and with a new functionality for digital payments through Google Pay and 

Apple Pay, also continues. The product continues to be a leading factor in attracting new customers. 
-A functionality has been developed for online opening of the “Clean Account” for new clients, without 

having to visit a bank office. 
- The bank successfully conducted a TV advertising campaign for the "Clean Account" product, with an 

emphasis on online opening 

- BACB continues the development of the loan product "Just Now" - a completely online consumer loan 

combining speed, convenience and security, facilitated by automatic approval and disbursement of funds 
without the need to visit a bank office. 

- . The twelve-month “Growing Interest Rate" deposit, where the interest rate grows each subseguent 

dguarter, while at the same time clients have access to their funds and may withdraw money without 
breaching the terms of the deposit, continues to be the leading deposit product of the Bank. 

- . TheBank signed a contract for offering the pension products of PIC Doverie AD using its office network. 

- . 'The Bank continues to market its innovative product for individuals - the fast consumer loan "BACB 
Express", offered at specialized points of sale in large mall-type shopping centers. The number of products 
offered through these points of sale is growing and our clients are now able to open a "Clean Account" at 
these locations, taking advantage of their extended opening hours, seven days a week. The pension 
insurance products of PIC Doverie will soon be offered by these points of sale as well. 

- BACB is actively working to lend to students under the Lending to Students and PhD Students Act witha 
total state guarantee limit of BGN 5 000 000. The credit scheme of the Ministry of Education and Science 

allows BACB AD to expand and further develop its cooperation with state institutions in the country, as 

well as to attract new clients - individuals (students and PhD students) in compliance with the Bank's 
development strategy. There are 79 active loans under the scheme for EUR 1,031096.26 (BGN 2 016 649) 
with a 100% guarantee. 

In an effort to be closer to its dlients - individuals and to offer them first-class service, BACB also offers them the 

possibility for full online servicing - online opening of the "It's All Good" and “Online deposit", the Just Now online 
credit and online application and opening of “Clean Account” with a debit card. We are working on digitizing the 
application for a mortgage loan and other customer processes and in order to offer an extremely modern and 
convenient way for making payments with the BACB Pay digital wallet. 

In the fourth guarter of 2022 the bank processed a total of 365,746 transfers totaling EUR 3.425 billion (BGN 6.7 
billion), which represents an 11% increase in the number and 11% in the amount of transfers compared to the 
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same period of the previous vyear. Compared to the ihird guarter of 2022, a 10% increase in the number of transfers 

was repistered. In 2022 the bank processed a total of 1,382,412 transfers totaling FUR 14.061 biilion (BGN 27.5 
billiom), thereby reporting an increase of 165 in the number and 33% in the amount of transters compared to 

2021, with BGN transfers increasing in number by 15% and foreign currency transfers by 26%. 

During the reporting period, 18 new documentary operations were processed for EUR 18.218 million (BGN 37 

million). For the entire 2022 the bank processed a total of 63 new documentary operations for EUR 28.121 million 

(BGN 55 million) and 54 changes were made under bank guarantees. 

In the fourth guarter of 2022, the tolal collected fees and commissions (exrluding thase from laans and Cards) 
amounted to EUR 1.32 million ([BGN 2.8 million), as follows: a/ fees and commissions rom business cdlients: EUR 

1.381 million (BCN 2.7 million) (12% compared to 04 2021) and 8% compared to 03 2922); b/ money storage 

fee: EUR D.051 million (BGN 01 million) (-B8% comparcd to 04 2021 and -81% comparcd to (3 2022. In 2042 
the total colleetcd fees and commissions amount to EUR 6.084 million (BGN 11.92 million) (FEUR 1.431 million 

compared to 2021), as follows: a/ fees and commissions from business clients: EUR 5,062 milliom (BGN 9.9 

millian) (*22% compared ta Z021); b/ money starage fee: EUR 0.271 million (BGN 1.9 million) (r169% cempared 

to 20223. 43% of the revenues are derived from payments (EUR 2.607 mitlion), 19% from accounts (EUR 1.176 

million), 16% fram cash operations (EUR 0.971 million], 16% from storage fees (EUR 0,971 million), 5% from 

documentary operations (EUR 0.307 million] and 1% from others (EUR 0.05 million). 

The bank also serves the customer payments of 5 electronic money companies (EMCs). In the fourth guarter of 

2022 the hank has processed 408365 dlient transfers of EMCs far EUR 3727.7 million (BGN 728 million) and has 

collected fees in the amount of EUR 38 thousand (BGN 75 thousand). In 2022 the Bank processed 1,116,711 

customer transfers to EMCs for EUR 1.12 billion (BGN 2.2 billion) (132% in number and t119% in amount 

compared ta 2021) and collected fees in the amount of EUR 145.2 (housand (BGN 284 (housand) (42% compared 

to 2021). 

In implementation of its strategy, the Rank is actively working on the implementation of optimizations, automation 

and digitization of other prorcesses. 

During the reporting period card business revenues amount to EUR 186,141.25 (BGN 364,062.01] and costs - EUR 
87,809.87 (BGN 171,741.17), with the net result being EUR 98,332.08 (BGN 192,320.84). For the period, thc Bank 

reported a total of 2141 issued and renewed debit cards and 352 credit cards. 

n the fourth guarter of 2022, the Bank finished the promotiaonal campaign with Visa to incentivize the use of 

tokenized cards with Googlc Pay and Applec Pay, the winners were drawn and the prizes were paid to the relevant 

cardholders. 

In the fourth guarter af 2022 The bank has successfully updated all its decuments regulating the card business 

activity. 

During the period, the Bank successfully migrated the data of its customers - legal entities to the new electrenit 

banking platform RACB Online and started work on the next stagc in tne migration process - parameterization of 

user rights and Jimits. From 15.11.2022, all mndividuals use only the BACB Dpline platform for electronic payments 

and other active operations. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

In EUR '000 m 2022 2021 2020 
consolidated | ] — Gaudited) (audited) (audited) 

Net interest income 26 668 22 841 21 520 

Fees and commisstons, net 7 594 5 676 4934 

Total operating income 44 154 30 965 29 866 

Total operating expenses - 17 366 - 16 153 - 16 219 

Operating profit/(loss) 26 78A 14 812 12 647 

impairment of financial assets (provision 
allowance) - 2 839 - 4 403 - d 845 

Revaluation of non-financial assets s 7 , 124 

Impatrment of an investment in a business 
combination ë - E 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 23 942 10 285 7 B02 

Profit/(Loss) for the period 21549 9941 7016 

Total assets 1358 652 1125 065 955 703             
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Loans to customers, net 704. 995 637 444 SA7 066 

Deposits from customers 1178 454 975 815 B15 542 

Shareholders' eguity 138 497 118245 109 079 

Capital Adeguacy Ratio 18.00% 17 11% 16.61%   
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MANAGEMENT REPORT OF BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK 

2022 

The following is a discussion of the resuits of operations and financial condition of the Bulgarian-American Credit 

Bank (BACB or the Bank) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) for the vear ended 31 December 2022. Investors should 

read this discussion together with the Bank's historical financial statements and the related notes and should not 

rely just on the key summarized information contained in this document. The Bank has prepared its financial 

statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 in accordance with IFRS. The financial information in this section 

has been extracted without material adjustment from the Group's financial statements for the years ended 31 

December 2022 and 2021 and the related notes there to or from the Group's accounting records that formed the 

underlying basis of the financial information in those financial statements. 

This section contains forward looking statements. These statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that could cause thie Group's future results of operations or cash flows to differ materially from the results 
of operations or cash flows expressed or implied in such forward looking statements. Save for the discussion 

contained herein management is not aware of any other trends, circumstances or risks for which there is a 

significant chance to affect the financial position and the results from operation of the Group. 

Certain figures contained in this document, including financial information, have been subject to rounding 

adjustments. Accordingly, in certain instances, the sum of the numbers in a column or a row in tables contained in 

this document may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row.
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I. Overview and selected financial information 

The following section contains a review that presents honestly and truly the development and the financial results 

of the Group and its condition, together with a description of the main risks the Group faces. 

The following section contains an analysis of the main financial and non-financial activities results with regard to 

the economy activities of the companies in the Group, including information on the matters of ecology and 

employees. 

The Bank is specialized in providing of secured finance to small- and medium-sized businesses in Bulgaria and at 

the same time searches for diversification of its portfolio through exposures to corporate customers and other 
sectors of strong fundamentals such as renewable energy as well as financing of projects that are contracted under 

the EU operational programs and last but not least - by expanding the range of services and products offered in the 
retail banking segment. 

At 31 December 2022 the Group employed 357 people compared to 367 people on 31 December 2021. 

The Group reports its results of operations in BGN and EUR 

The constituent meeting of the shareholders of the Bank was held on 22 December 1995. The Bank is established 
and exists in compliance with the laws of the Republic of Bulgaria. The esistence of the Bank is not limited in time. 
The Bank was registered with Sofia City Court on the grounds of a court decision of 3 December 1996 under 

Company Case No. 12587/1996, Lot No. 35659, Volume 397, Register |, Page 180, as a joint stock company under 

the 1991 Commerce Act after obtaining a license issued by BNB for performing banking activities. The Bank is 
registered with the Commercial Register and the Register of Non-Profit Legal Entities at the Registry Agency under 

UIC 121246419. The Bank is registered as an issuer of publicly offered bonds with the Register of Public Companies 

and Other Issuers of Securities, maintained by the Financial Supervision Commission (“FSC”) under Lot No. 05-1082 

according to decision No. 296-E/2001. 

The Bank has the status of a public company and its shares are listed on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange - Sofia (BSE- 

Sofia code: BACB). 

The seat and registered office of the Bank is at: 2, Slavyanska Str, Sredets District, Sofia Municipality, Sofia 1000, 

telephone: 4(3592) 9058 377, fax: *(3592) 9445 010, email: bacb@bacb.bg and website: www.bacb.bg. 

BACB operates through a head office in Sofia and operational offices in Sofia, Plovdiv, Varna, Burgas, Stara Zagora, 

Ruse, Pleven, Kardzhali, Veliko Tarnovo, Kozloduy, Chepelare, Pamporovo and Petrich. All offices offer the full scope 

of banking services, provided by the head office. 

The Bank operates in compliance with Regulation (EU) 575/2013 regarding the prudential reguirements, 
applicable to credit institutions and investment firms, the Credit Institutions Act and the regulations of BNB for its 

implementation, the Public Offering of Securities Act (“POSA”) and the regulations of the FSC forits implementation, 
as well as the Commerce Act. 

Important issues for investors in connection with the status of the Bank as a public company are regulated in the 

following regulatory instruments: 

Regulation (EU) Ne 597/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council on market abuse; 

Corporate Income Tax Act; 

Income Taxes on Natural Persons Act; Foreign Exchange Act; 

Application of Measures Against Market Abuse of Financial Instruments Act; 

Markets in Financial Instruments Act: 

Ordinance No. 2 of the Financial Supervision Commission (FSC) on initial and subseguent disclosure of 

information in public offering of securities and admission of securities to trading on a regulated market; 

The provisions of Section I, Chapter Eleven of POSA and the Ordinance on the disclosure of shareholdings in public 

and investment companies govern the reguirements for disclosure of significant interest in the Bank. The Bank's 

transactions in treasury shares are regulated by Art. 111 (2) and (5) POSA and the Commerce Act. The mandatory 
auctions are regulated by Art.149, Art. 150-157A POSA, the Ordinance on the reguirements for the content of the 

justification of the price of shares of a public company, including the application of valuation methods in the cases
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of transformation, joint venture agreement and a tender offering, as well as in Ordinance 13 of 22 December 2003 

on tender offering for the purchase and exchange of shares. 

The conditions for the deregistration of the Bank from the Register of Public Companies and Other Issuers of 

Securities under Art. 30 (1) (3) of the FSC Act are regulated in APOSA and in Ordinance No. 22 of the FSC on the 

terms and conditions and the procedure for registration and deregistration of public companies, other issuers of 

securities and securities issues with the register of the FSC. 

The Banks's accounting policies are similar to the ones implemented through the previous reporting period. There 
are no significant changes in the accounting policy, with the exception of the "Basic Elements of Accounting Policies" 

referred to in item 3 of the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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e OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ON CONSOLIDATED BASIS 

Results of Operations for the Years Ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 

The following table sets out the Group's net profit for the year and the principal components thereof for the years 
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, as well as the percentage variation within each line item. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As of December 31 

2022 2021 Change 
2022/2021 

(* 000 EUR) % 
Data from the Consolidated $Statement of 
Income 

Interest income 28 748 25 517 12,7 

Interest expense -2 080 -2 676 -22,2 

Net interest income 26 668 22 841 16,8 

Fees and commission income, net 7 594 5 976 2741 

Other non-interest income, net 9 892 2 148 360,8 

Operating Income 44 154 30 965 42.6 

Operating expenses -17 366 -16 153 75 

Impairment of financial assets -2 839 -4 403 -35.5 

Impairment of non-financial assets 7 124 -94.6 

Profit/(Loss) before tax 23 942 10285 132.8 

Tax income / (expense) -2 393 -1 041 129.7 

Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations 21549 9244 1331 

Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations -3 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 21549 9241 1332 

Data from the Consolidated Cash Flows 
Statement 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities 143 327 114 252 25.4 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing 

activities -22 864 -23 810 4 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 6 854 -4 516 -251.8 

Net change in cash and cash eguivalents 130 069 88 553 46.9 

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

Key Ratios 

Return on average total assets, 9() 1.74 0.89 

Return on average total eguity, %@) 16.79 8.13 

Earnings per share, in € @) 1.71 0.73 

Shares Outstanding 24 691313 24 691313 
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Registered capital (in EUR) 12 624 468 12 624 468 

Declared dividend (EUR per share) 4 Refer to (*) Refer to () 

Cost/income ratio, % (S! 39.33% 52,17% 

Shareholders' eguity/Total assets, % 'ë! 10.19 10.51 

Tier 1 capital ratio 18.00 17.11 

(1) Return on average total assets is calculated by dividing net profit/(loss) for the year by the average of total assets at the end of the period 
and at the end of the previous period. 

(2) Return on average total eguity is calculated by dividing net profit/(loss) for the year by the average of total shareholders' eguity at the end 
of the period and at the end of the previous period. 

(3) Earnings-per-share is calculated by dividing net profit/(loss) for the year by the average number of shares outstanding during the period. 

(4) At the date of this report no dividend payment has been proposed to the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders for Y 2022. 

(S) Cost/income ratio is calculated by dividing operating expenses for the period by operating income for the period (excluding any losses or 
gains from foreign currency revaluation). 

(6) Shareholder eguity /Total assets is calculated by dividing total shareholders eguity at the end of the period by total assets at the end of the 
period. 

Among other things, the discussion below addresses the reguirements of Appendix 10 of Ordinance No.2 of the 
Financial Supervision Commission, taking into account the specific activities of the Bank as a lending institution. 

Net Interest Income 

A number of factors affect the Group's net interest income. lt is primarily determined by the volume of interest 
earning assets, such as loans and advances to customers, interest-earning securities which the Bank holds and 

loans to other credit institutions, and the volume of interest bearing liabilities, such as debt securities issued, loan 

facilities from international financial institutions, deposits from other credit institutions and customer deposits, as 

well as the difference between rates earned on interest earning assets, on the one hand, and rates paid on interest- 

bearing liabilities on the other. 

Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2022 contains detailed breakdowns of the principal 

components of net interest income for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. 

Interest income is comprised of interest on joans and advances to customers paid to the Bank (94.6% of interest 

income for 2022), as well as these from ,deposits from banks” (2.7% of interest income for 2022), as well as these 

from "recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income" (1.3% of interest income for 2022) and 

interest on "measured at amortized cost" (1.4 % of interest income for 2022). 

Interestincome increased by EUR 3 231 thousand, or 12.7%, from EUR 25,5 million in the year ended 31 December 
2021 to EUR 287 million in the year ended 31 December 2022. This increase was primarily a result of the loan 

portfolio dynamics during the year ended 31 December 2021, which registered progress to the expected recovery. 

During the year ended 31 December 2022, interest income from loans and advances to customers report an 

increase and reach EUR 27.2 million or an increase by 8.6%, from EUR 25 million as at the end of 2021. 

Regardless of the impact of the pandemic caused by Covid-19 /which started in 2020/, the income from interest 

on loans increased significantly compared to the previous year of 2021. 

Interest income from banks increased by EUR 781 thousand, and from EUR 8,7 thousand in the end of 2021 to EUR 

790 thousand in the year ended 31 December 2022 with share 2.7% of interest income for 2022. 

The interest income from “recognized at fair value through other comprehensive income" has been immaterial due 

to the limited size of such investments in the Bank's assets. Despite that in 2022 seeking higher profitability from 

its liguid assets BACB continued to maintain and increased its portfolio of Bulgarian government securities and 

corporate securities debt but the interest income generated from financial assets "recognized at fair value through 

other comprehensive income" increased - from EUR 352 thousand as at the end of 2021 to EUR 361 thousand as 

at the end of 2022 and form income in the total amount of interest income with a share of 1.3% in 2022 compared 

to 1.4% in 2021. The formed a portfolio of debt securities "measured at amortized cost" generated interest income 

in the amount of EUR 414 thousand which represents 1.4% of the interest income for 2022 (2021 - EUR 135 
thousand and 0.5%). 
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Interest expense comprises amounts paid by the Bank as intercst on funds depositcd by customers and banks, 

interest on debt securities issued and other attracted funds, as well as interests on the asset. 

Interest expense decreased by EUR 596 thousand, or 22.3%, from EUR 2,7 million in the year ended 31 December 

2021 to EUR 2,1 million in the year ended 31 December 2022. 

Interest expense on deposits from customers decreased by EUR 674 thousand, or 49.1%, from EUR 1,4 million in 
the ycar ended 31 December 2021 to EUR 0,7 million in the year ended 31 December 2022. The decrease resulted 

mainly from the significant decrease of the interests on deposit products repeatedly throughout the year, despite 

the reportcd increase of the total amount of the deposits from clients at the end of the year. 

At the ycar cndcd 31 December 2022 the Bank registered interest expense on other borrowed funds in the amount 

of EUR 222 thousand, while for 2021 the reported expense was EUR 253 thousand (decrease by EUR 31 thousand or 

12.2%). These interest expenses are mainly under the credit line from the Bulgarian Development Bank under the 

NAPRED program for BGN 35 million (EUR 18 million) low-interest resource and signcd in November 2018 a new 

agreement with BDB which is the first agreement for BDB under the EU COSME * Program to support the small and 

medium-sized business in Bulgaria to 10 million EUR for a 10 year period. 

On 23 December 2022 BACB issucd an unsecurcd bonds issue in the amount of EUR 15 million. The bonds are issued 

to satisfy cguity and cligible liabilitics reguirements in accordance with the provisions of the Recovery and 

Resolution of Crcdit Institutions and Investment Firms Act. The type of bonds issued - ordinary, interest-bearing, 

book-entry, registercd, freely transferable, unsecured, non-convertible bonds. Maturity of the bonds issued is seven 

ycars and the total principal is payable at maturity. The interest rate is fixed and the interest amount is payable on 

six-month coupon payments. The issue is expected to be registered for trading on the Bulparian Stock Exchange 

within 6 months after issuance. 

As of 31 Dcecember 2022 the Bank reports interest on issued debt securities in the amount of EUR 16 thousand 

(2021: EUR 0). 

Intercest expense on lease agreements reported under IFRS 16 amounted to EUR 63 thousand at the end of 2022, or 

EUR 24 thousand more than a year ago (2Z021: EUR 39 thousand). 

During the period, the Bank recorded interest expense of EUR 1,082 million, which was formed from the paid 

negative interest on assets, mainly held by BNB (2021 - EUR 1,013 thousand), or an increased by EUR 68 thousand 

(6.8%). 

For the reported period the Group registers a significant increase of the net interest income (increase by EUR 3,827 

million or 16.8%) on an annual basis or total amount of EUR 26,7 million. This is a result of increase of the interest 

income by FUR 3,231 thousand or 12.7% and decrease of interest expenses by EUR 596 thousand (-22.2%) with 

increase by EUR 202,6 million of the deposit basis. For the reported period the determinating factor for the 

formation of the net interest income remain the income from the eredit activities. Reported incomc from interbank 

deposits amounted to EUR 790 thousand in Y 2022 against EUR 9 thousand for the previous year. Interest income 

from security portfolios amounted to EUR 775 thousand at the cnd of the ycar 2022. In line with the trend of 

decreasing the interest on deposit products in the banking system, BACB also decreased the interest on deposits 

levels several times over the past year, which nevertheless remain at attractive levels for the Rank's customers. 
Despite the significant increase in the deposit base since the end of 2014, there has been a significant reduction in 

resource costs on an annual hasis. 

Net fees and commissions income 

Fees and commission income is composcd of feecs in connection with current accounts, such as maintenance and 

moncy transfer fees; loan fees, such as prepayment, appraisal and guarantee fees; asset servicing fees and fees and 

COm MISsionNs on settement and brokerage operations. 

Notec 5 to the Consolidatcd Financial Statements for 2022 contains detailed breakdowns of the principal 

components of fees and commission incomec, and fecs and commissions expense, for the ycars ended 31 December 

2022 and 2021. 

For the twelve months of 2022 Group reports net fees and commissions income in the amount of EUR 7,594 million. 

This result is EUR 1,618 million or 27.1% higher than and is mainly due to higher revenucs from fees and 
CoOmMMiIssions under contracts with customers. 
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With the greatest contribution of this income are the fees and commissions under payment services which report 

EUR 5,2 million compared to EUR 4,2 million in 2921 (increase by 21.9%)] and share of 64.2% (2021 - 67.1%). The 

fees and commissions under deposit accounts increased from EUR 1,346 million in 2021 to EUR 2,01 million in 2022 

and form 25% of the tota! amaount of the fees and commissions income. The fees and commissions income under 

guarantees and letters of credit keep their volume fraom EUR 284 thousand in 2022 and share increase from 3.4% 

in 2021 to 3.5%. The fees and commissions income under loans and advances to clients reached to EUR 524 

thousand and form 6.5% of the total fees and commissions income and report an increase by 17.5% compared to 

EUR 446 thousand reported in 2021. Other fees and commissions reached to EUR 63 thousand - share 0.89%. 

The positions forming the Group's expenses for fees and commissions report an increase EUR 117 thousand or 35% 

from EUR 334 thousand in 2021 to EUR 451 thousand in 2022. The fees and commissions under hank cards report 

EUR 364 thousand with share of 80.7%, compared to EUR 257 thousand in 2021 with share 76.0%. The fees and 

COmMmIssions expenses under payment and other services in 2022 report EUR 87 thousand or an increase 13% 

(2021: EUR 77 thousand) and farm 19.3% of all fees and commissions expenses (2021 - 23.1%). 

Other non-interest income 

Other net non-interest income increased on net hasis by EUR 9,8 million from EUR 2,15 million in Y2021 to EUR 

9.89 million in the end of Y 2022 or -360.5 %. 

The profit from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in 2022 reached EUR 82 thousand compared to 

EUR 150 thousand for the previous year. The pasition reflects the net change in fair value of the investment in 

preferred stock of Visa Inc. 

In 2022 and in 2021 the Bank does not report a result of debt securities reported at FVOCI. 

The net income from foreign exchange transartions increase by 34% - from EUR 1,4 million in 2021 to EUR 1,9 

million in 2022. 

In 2022 a profitof EUR 323 thousand was reported from the revaluation of assets and liabilities in foreign currency 

(2021: gain of EUR 145 thousand). 

As of 31.12.2022, other operating revenues reached a significant growth due to the positive result from sold assets 

classified as held for sale. As a result, at the end af 2022 the Group reported EUR 9.2 million on this item vs. EUR 

1.7 million a vyear earlier or an increase of 437.7% 

The direct administrative costs of investment properties and assets held for sale, as well as the generated revenue 

from the management of these properties, also affect the result. 

Notes 6, 7 and 8 to the Cansolidated Financial Statements for 2022 contain detailed breakdowns of the principal 

components of other non-interest income. 

Operating income 

Atthe vyear ended 31 December 2022 the operating income (net] of the Group reach EUR 44,2 million compared to 

EUR 30,9 million in 2021. A number of factors affect the Group's operating income. The net interest income has the 

highest weight in total operating income for 2022 with share of 60 .4%, followed by other non-interest income (net) 

with 22.4% and net fees and comnmissions income with 17.2%. 

Operating Expenses 

Operating expenses consist of administrative costs, incl. contributions to the Bank Deposit Guarantee Fund (BDIF) 

and the Bank Restructuring Fund (BRF]), salaries and benefits and depreciation and amortization. Total operating 

expenses increased hy EDUR 1.213 million, or 7.5%, from EUR 16,1 million during the vear ended 31 December 2021 

to EUR 17,4 million during the year ended 341 December 2022. 

Personnel cost, inrl. social security cost, increased by EUR 835 thousand (12.8%] compared to 2021 and represent 

42.3% of the administrative expenses. The expenses to the Guarantee Insurance Fund and the Restructuring of 

Banks Fund amounted EUR 1,57 million. The tatal amaunt of these costs decreased by EUR 5,6 thousand on an 

annual basis compared to the expenses in 2021. The share of these expenses is 9.1% of the total administrative 

expenses in 2022. Rent cost decreased by 11.8%, from EUR 220 thousand reported at the end of 2021 to EUR 194 

thousand as at December 31st 2022. 

Advertising expenses increased hy EUR 58 thousand - from EUR 392 thousand in 2021 to EUR 450 thousand in 

2022. 
For further analysis of administrative expenses please refer to Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements. 

The Group's depreciation and amortization expenses retain the amount of EUR 1,889 million. 
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Expenses for Impairment 

The annual expense accrued for impairment of Jaans and advances to customers and financial assets (pravisions) 

decreased by EUR 1,564 million from EUR 4,4 millien in 2021 to EUR 28 million in 2022. 

In 2022, the 'Impairment of financial assets' item in the statement of comprehensive income includes the recognized 

effect on modification of loans and advances of EUR 241 thousand5 (2021: EUR 856 thousands). 

In 2022 the Bank has written off fraom the balance sheet unrecoverable receivables against allocated impairment 

provisions in the amount of EUR 62 million. The write-offs relate to loans, which the Bank believes are non- 

recoverablr. 

The total amount of previsions at 41 December 2022 was EUR 30,7 million compared to 34,4 million as at 31 

December 2Z021, which is a derrease by 10.6%. 

The NPL$ with overdue more than 90 days decreased fram 11.3% of the gross laan portfolio as at December 31, 

2021 to 9.4% as at December 31, 2022. 

The share of classified laans vs the grass loans is above the bank system average, with a downward trend from the 

end of2011, but the aggregate amountof all dlassified loans, decreased fram 13.6% of the Bank's gross loan portfolia 

at 31 December 2021 to 10.8% at 31 December 2022. 

As a percentage to the gross amount of laans ta customers, the provisions for impairment decreased rom 5.1% at 

Decemher 31, 2022 to 4.2% at December 31, 2022. 

For further details, please, refer to Selected Statistical Information below. 

Taxes 

Tax expenses comprises thr current tax expense and income ar the delferred tax expense and income. 

In 2022 the Bank reported profit hefore tax in the amount of EFUR 239 million, current tax expcense in the amount 

of EUR -Z 378 thousand and a deferred tax expenses of EUR 15 thousand or tolal tax expenses EUR 2,493 million. 

A pretax profit of EUR 10,3 million was recorded in 2021 and a current tax expense in the amount of FUR 1 012 

thousand and deferred tax income of in the amount of EUR 29 thousand or total tax expenses EUR 1,041 million. 

MNet fmanciad result for the vear 

The Group reported net profitof EUR 21 525 thousand for 2022 in comparison te net profit of FUR 9 254 thousand 

for the previous finaneial year ar increase 133.2%. 

The net profit for the ycar endcd 31 December 2022 was caused hy a combination of the factors discussed above in 

details. 

e  CAPITAL RESOURCES 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Eguity 

The following table sets out the structure of liabilities and eguity of the Bank at 31 December 2022 and 2021. 

  

  

  

As of Decemher 31 Change 

2022 2021 Z022/2071 

( G00 EUR) % 

Liabilities 

Deposits from banks 29 95 -GA,9 

Deposits fram customers 1178 454 975 R15 20,8 

Other borrowed funds 9176 16 136 

Debt seeurities in issue 15 O16 g 100,0 

Other liabilities 17470 14 774 182 

Total Liabilities 1 220 155 1 006 820 212 
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Shareholders' Eguity 

Share capital 12 624 12 624 00 

Share premium 18 944 18 944 60 

General reserve B6 604 74 882 157 

Current year profit 21 549 8241 1312 

Revaluation reserve 1 224 2 554 -147,9 

Total Shareholders' Eguity 138 497 118 245 171 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders' 
Eguity 1358 652 1125 065 20.8 
  

In 2022 the liabilities structure of the Bank remains the same as in the previous period. 

The Bank continued the successful implementation of its funding strategy with a focus on building a diversified 
customer deposit base. In the reporting period the deposits fram customers increased by 20.8% to reach EUR 1 

17845 million (2021 - EUR 975,82 million) and were the major funding source for the Bank accounting for 98% of 

total attracted funds at the year-end (2021- 98.4%). 

On 23 December 2022 BACB issued an unsecu red bonds issue in the amount of EUR 15 million. The bonds are issued 

to satisfy eguity and eligible labilities reguirements in accordance with the provisions of the Recovery and 
Resolution of Credit Institutions and Investment Firms Act. The type of bonds issucd - ordinary, interest-bearing, 
book-entry, registered, freely transferable, unsecured, non-convertible bonds. Maturity of the bonds issued is seven 

years and the total principal is payable at maturity. The interest rate is fixed and the interest amount is payable on 
six-month coupon payments. The issue is expected to be registered for trading on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange 

within 6 months after issuance. 

As of 31 December 2022 the Bank's obligation related to debt securities in issue, including accrued interest, amounts 

to EUR 15,016 million (2021: 0). 

Since July 2015 the Bank has an effective agreement with the Bulgarian Development Bank for participation in the 

BDB Napred program for indirect financing for micro, small and medium business enterprices. The main goal of the 
program is the financing of the Bulgarian business under competitive terms and conditions the development of the 

economy, creating new jobs and investing in regions with high unemployment. Under the agreement BACB utilizesa 

line of credit in the anount of BGN 35 million for financing projects in compliance with the program's aims. 
In November 2018 The Group signed a new agreement with BDB which is the first agreement for BDB under the EU 

COSME-*- Program to support the small and medium-sized business in Bulgaria. COSME* Program is implemented 
with the support of the European Fund for Strategic Investments. Its purpose is to facilitate the access to long-term 
and cheap financing for SME companies while reducing the reguirements towards the collateral under the loans. 
Under the agreement the Group will receive up to 10 million EUR for a 10 year period for providing investment loans, 

working capital and guarantees to its dlients. 

The share of other attracted funds in the BACB liabilities decreased by 43.1% compared to the reportcd at the cnd 

of 2021 - from EUR 16,1 million to FUR 9,2 million. 

As of 31.12.2022 the funds attracted from banks amount to EUR 39 thousand (2021 - EUR 95 thousand). 

The Bank started accepting institutional deposits in 2000 and retail deposits in 2001. In 2013 The deposits form 

customers kept its high level, reporting nominal decrcease to EUR 310 million. The level is kept in 2014, reporting a 

slight increase to EUR 317 million. In 2015 the deposits reach EUR 411 million and in 2016 - 430.3 million in 2017 —- 

EUR 51 1.02 million, in 2018 - EUR 604.13 million, in 2019 - EUR 721.14 million, in 2020 - EUR 815.54 million, in 

2021 - EUR 975,82 million and in 2022 - EUR 1 178,45 million. Aiming to achieve independence and diversiftcation 

of the sources for financing in 2015 the Bank hegun presenting deposit produrtsfor persons and houscholds on the 

German market, and from beginning 02 2017 begun presenting deposit products for persons and households on the 

Spanish market. A Y/e 2022 the deposits from Germany represent 1.9% and deposits from Spain represent 0.3% of 

the total deposit base, banks excluded. Due to the large number of clients, there is no separate dlicnt with a sharc of 

BACB's cxpenses larger than 10%. 
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As at Dec 31, 2022 the Bank had no loans from international financial institutions or international banks. 

As a result of the changed liabilities structure, as discussed above, the Bank's average cost of funding decreased 

from 0.29% for 2021 to 0.19% for 2022. 

The Bank is subject to, and is in compliance with, the capital adeguacy reguirements of the BNB. The minimal levels 

of capital adeguacy in Bulgaria are set forth in Regulation 575/2013, as per which the institutions in any moment 

have to gualify the following capital reguirements: 

- . Ratioof the basis Tier 1 capital 4.5%; 

- . Ratio of Tier 1 capital 6%; 

- . 'Total capital adeguacy ratio 8% (before buffers); 

As at 31 December 2022 the Group's total capital adeguacy ratio amounts to 18.00% (above the reguirements of 

BNB) despite of the additional provisions for credit risk (Y2021 - 17.11%). 

Management believes that the high capital ratio of the Bank is consistent with the risk profile of its assets. 

e  LIOUIDITY 

As of 01.01.2018 the Liguidity Asset Ratio (under BNB Ordinance 11) was replaced by a Liguid Coverage Ratio 
(LCR), which was 178.62 % as at 31.12.2022. 

The Group follows the principles of diversification of sources of financing and optimization of interest costs in 

pursuance of the strategy for securing its liguidity needs. 

At the end of 2022, the Group maintained a stable deposit base and reported an increase in customer deposits of 
20.8% compared to the end of 2021. The Bank's active deposit activity contributed to a reduction in its dependence 
on external financing. The Bank continues to carry out deposit-taking of individuals from Germany and Spanish 
market. 

The ratio of gross customer loans to customer deposits is 62.4% at December 31, 2022. 

The liguidity position of the bank remains strong as the liguid assets (cash and balances and funds on accounts with 
BNB, short-term loans and advances to banks and liguid securities - government and corporate) amounted to EUR 

549,7 million. The ratio of the liguid assets to the total deposit amounts (clients and banks) is 46.28% at December 
31, 2022. 

In 2022 the Group formed a debt securities portfolio, accounted with fair value in other comprehensive income in 
the amount of EUR 421 million (2021: EUR 38,4 million) or an increase by 9.7%. The cash and advances with BNB 

and other banks increased by EUR 144.7 million. During the period from the beginning of the year to 31.12.2022,a 
net increase in debt securities of EUR 3.7 million was reported, due to purchases of government securities issues 
with a nominal value of EUR 16 million and a government securities issue with a nominal value of BGN 16 million, 
while at the same time one issue with a nominal value of EUR 15 million and one issue with a nominal value of BGN 
6 million - government securities of the Republic of Bulgaria, as well as an issue of government securities of the 

Republic of Croatia with a nominal value of EUR 1 million are maturing. 

Since the beginning of 2022, the Bank has made new investments in government securities in the amount of EUR 

75.5 million in the "held for collection of contractual cash flows" portfolio and in the "held for collection of 
contractual cash flows and sale" portfolio. 

As at 31 December 2022 the government bonds portfolio is with balance value of EUR 103 million (2021: 70,3 
million), from which financial assets, appraised by fair value in other comprehensive income of EUR 37,2 million 

and financial assets, accounted by amortization value of EUR 65,8 million (2021: EUR 33,3 million and EUR 37 

million). 
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The unrealized profits and losscs from reappraisal of the financial assets, accounted with fair value in other 

comprchensive income, are deferred in eguity account, net of taxes. In the period when an asset is derecognised, 

the result of the revaluation is includced in the profit or loss for the period. Since the beginning of the period in 

connection to completed investments in debt securities accounted with fair value in other comprehensive income 

there are no reported gains of losses in conneclion with completed investments (2021: 0,00). Interest income rom 

debt instruments at fair value in other comprchensive income is currently recognizcd in profit or loss, as for Y 2022 

they amount to EUR 361 thousand. 
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s SELECTED STATISTICAL INFORMATION 

Average Balances and Related Interest Rates: Assets 

Due from other banks 
Loans and advances to 
Customers, net 
Investment securities- 

available-for-sale 
Investment securities-hold- 
to-maturity 

Total interest earning 
assets 

Non interest earning assets 

Total Assets 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

Average Interest in?\;er?gret Average Interest in:\ve:;grzt 

Balance (1] income ros .rate Balance (1) income sré é 
(2) (2) 

000 EUR 900 EUR L 000 EUR 000 EUR % 

54 758 791 0.72 56 974 9 0.01 

671 219 27 183 4.12 612 255 25 021 4.06 

40 281 361 0.89 33 522 352 1.01 

51 391 414 0.98 28 169 135 0.47 

817 649 28 749 3.37 730 920 25 517 3.35 

424 210 0 309 464 0 

1241 859 Z8 749 235 1040 384 25 517 248 
  

(1) Average balance is the arithmetic average of the opening and rlosing balances for earh period. Note that the average balance 

calculated on a daily basis, monthly basis, or weighted average basis may be different to thie average balance calculated on an annual 

or semiarmual basis, and these differences may be substantial 

(2) Averageinterestrates were calrulated on the basis of management arcounts using average monthly balances. 

Deposits from banks 

Deposits from custemers 

Other borrowed funds 

Debt securities outstanding 

Interest bearing liabilities 

interest bearing liabilities 

Non interest bearing liabilities 

Shareholders' Eguity 

Total Liabiliies and 
Shareholders' Eguity 

Average Balances and Related Interest Rates: Liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

Blee . IMterest . inierees a RE IMSESE gs 
m expense 2) m BXpense 2) 

OOo ELUR OY EUR % GYO EUR 000 EUR % 

67 0 0.00 47 0 0.01 

1077 135 607 0.06 895 679 1370 E 

12 656 239 1,93 17 817 252 1.38 

7 SOB 16 5 00 0 0 0 

1 097 366 952 0.09 913 543 1623 0.18 

d 628 63 1.44 2 804 39 1.38 

11 494 1082 - 10 375 1013 - 

128 371 - 113 662 - - 

1241 859 2 097 0.19 1 040 384 2 675 0.29 
    

(1) Average balance is the arithmetic average of the opening and closing balances for each period. Note that the average balance 

Calculated on a daily basis, monthly basis, or weighted average basis may be different to the average balance calculated on an annual 

or semiannual basis, and these differences may be substantial. 

(2) Averageinterestrates were calculated on the basis of management accounts using average monthly balances, 
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Volume and Rate Analysis 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

As of December 31 

2022 2071 

Net Change Due to Net Change Due to 

Volume Rate Total Volume Rate Total 

) @) O) 2) 

( € 000) ( € 000) 
Due from other banks 211 571 782 3 -80 -77 
Loans and advances to 
rustomers 1788 373 2161 2 703 -1 691 1012 

Investment securities- 

available-for-sale 51 -42 9 s1 -123 -72 
Investments securities - 

hold-to-maturity 131 148 279 54 -72 -18 

Change in interest income 2181 1 050 d231 2811 -1966 845 

Deposits from banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Deposits from customers 122 -795 -673 259 -1008 -7A9 

Dther borrowed funds 109 103 -6 -57 -101 -158 

Debt securities outstanding 16 16 0 0 

Change in interest 
Bxpense 29 -692 663 202 -1 109 -907 

Net change in interest 
income 2152 1 742 3 894 2 609 857 1752 
    

(1) The net change due to a change in volume is the change in the average monthly outstanding balance multiplied by the 

average mterest rate for the current period; 

(2) The net change due to a change in interest rate is the change in the average interest rate multiplied by the average 

monthly outstanding balance for the prior period. 

Average Interest Earning Assets, Yields, Margins and $preads 

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

(€ 000. except in %) 
  

Averapr Interest Farning Assets B17 649 730 920 

Interest Income 28 749 25 517 

Net Interest [ncome 26 668 22 B41 

Average Vield ) 3.37% 3 35% 

Average Margin ) 3.26 % 3.12% 

Average Spread GI 3.28%, 3.17% 

(1) Average yield is interest income expressed as a percentage of average monthly interest earning assets for the period. 

(2) Average margin is net interest income divided by average monthly interest earning assets for the period. 

(3) Average interest spread is the spread between average interest on assets and average interest on liabilities, the latter 
presented as a percentage of the interest expenses to interest on liabilities 
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EUR 

YSD 

BGB 

Tetal 

Under 16,000 

10,600 - 100,000 

100,000 - 1,000,000 

(ver 1,000,000 

Total 

Loan Portfolio: By Currency 

  

  

  

  

    

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

000 EUR % 000 EUR 

276 612 37.6 269 932 40.2 

23 579 32 31 002 4.6 

435 528 59.2 370 875 55.2 

735 719 100 671 809 100 

Loan Portfolio: By $ize 

As of December 31 

Z022 2021 

No. of No. of 
joons f € DO0) % of LP loans ( € 0OO) % of LP 

11277 14 713 20 11324 14816 2.2 

3499 124 972 17.0 3236 112 873 16.8 

725 175 534 238 622 147 570 22.0 

134 420 500 57.2 130 396 550 59.0 

15635 735 719 100 15312 671809 100 
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Loan Portfolio: Diversificatian under Industry $ectors 

  

  

  

industry Sector 2022 2021 
Loan Loan Loan Loan 

portfolio, portfole, portfolie, portfolp, 

Gross Net Gross Net 

Mortgage loans to ndiv Huals 132 460 182 134 107 169 106 833 

Realestate construction 83 206 75 445 77 633 66 d86 

Hotes 61 069 59 400 60 880 59 139 

Vitoksak distr bution 67 233 66 186 59 857 58 789 

Consumer loars to ndiv duals 39 255 35 777 37 950 33 813 

P imry agricuture and farming 37 510 36 732 38 382 37 708 

Hlectr cfy production 40 985 40 422 36 276 36 178 

Transportation 28 721 28 031 35 695 35 048 

Furnture and w ood products 22 981 20 566 25 017 21 834 

Food process hg 27 329 26 630 24 589 24 021 

Realestate nvestmentêLand develbpment 29 199 23 763 23 004 17 637 

Chemcal industry 17 332 17 307 21 058 21 043 

Financial services 22 671 22 235 17 ga1 17 725 

Waste colecton and recicing 15 290 15 272 15 204 15 204 

Retail 16 163 16 068 13 360 13 243 

T servces 10 297 10 289 12 395 T2 392 

Production of metalproducts and edgu pment 15 313 15 074 11 408 11 362 

Entertanment and Recreation 9 450 8 955 8 958 8431 

Light industry 19 402 17 414 7 BS7 5 657 

Other 39 953 37 295 37 246 34 921 

Loans and advances to customers 735 719 704 995 671 809 637 dad 

Credit portfolio analysis: Large exposures 

Large Exposures (Including Unutilized Loan Commitments) before impairment 

  

    

    

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

* f Capital 
(€ 08 base (€ 0O00) % of Capital base 

20 280 177 20,365 192 
Largest total exposure to a single client group 

91,269 795 87,070 B1,9 
Agregate of five largest exposures 

182,765 1593 178,763 1681 
Agregate of all largest exposures - over 10% of eguity 
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Non-Edguity Funding: $Sources of Non-Eguity Funding by Category, Amount and Percentage 

As of December 31 
  

  

  

  

20272 2021 

% of % of 
( E O00) Total ( E 040) Total 

Deposits from Banks 39 0.0 95 00 

Deposits from Customers 1178 454 90 975 815 9R.d 

Other attracted funds 9 176 08 16 136 1.6 

Debt Securities 15016 1.2 0 0.0 

Total Funding 1 202 GAS 100 992 O4G 100 
  

Non-Eguity Funding: Deposits by Type and Currency 

  

  

  

  

  

  

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

000 EUR 000 EUR 

Demand deposits 

in EUR 194 195 142 098 

in BGN S78 724 451 790 

in USD 47 611 36 635 

in GBP 0 n7 

Total 820 530 630 580 

Term deposits 

in EUR 188 B84 1/8 379 

in BGN 127 181 125 712 

in USD 41 HY 41 185 

Other 0 54 

Total 357 963 345 330 
  

Non-Eguity Funding: Deposits by Type and Customer group 

  

As of December 31 

2022 2021 

000 EUR 000 EUR 

Demand deposits 

Bank 39 95 

Institutional OR 772 526 RS$6 

Individual 121 719 103 629 

Total 820 530 630 580 

Term deposits 

Bank 0 0 

Institutienal 74 066 50 140 

Individual 283 897 295 190 

Total 357 963 345 330 
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Dif-Balance Sheet Liabilities: By Type 

As of Decemhber 31 

  

  

2022 2021 

f €006) 9 (€ 000) o 

Bank Guarantees 11 007 131 11329 16.5 

Letters of Credit 284 0.3 4 267 6.2 

Unutilised Loan Liabilities 73 044 B6.6 53 250 773 

Total 84 335 100 68 846 100 
  

Off-Balance Sheet Liabilities: By Maturity 

As of December 31, 2022 

  

  

  

Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity after 

within 1 after1 after 3 after 6 1 vear 
month month but months months 

before3 but before but before 
months 6 months 12 months 

000 EUR 

Bank Guarantees 2746 478 1173 1516 S 094 

Letters of Credit y 0 95 189 0 

Unutilised Loan Liabilities 380 2 436 20 108 21271 28 849 

Total 3126 2 914 21376 22 976 33 943 
  

e ECOLOGY and EMPLOYEES 

Ecology 

In 2022, the Bank continued to pursue its objective to reaffirm its position as a bank supporting initiatives in the 

field of "green economy” and sustainable development, offering its clients guality and reliable financial services and 

ensuring profitability for its shareholders. 

In its credit policy the bank continues to put an emphasis on projects for the development of green economy, 

financing of business ventures related to energy saving and renewable energy sources, projects under European 

funds in the field of energy efficiency and environmental protection, as well as providing innovative solutions for 

business. 

In 2022, the Bank participated in the following initiatives and programs with an environmental focus: 

e "Books for trash" campaign, together with the "Credo Bonum"” foundation - sponsorship of BACB AD in 
the amount of BGN 6 000 including VAT. The initiative is dedicated to recycling and reading in Bulgaria. In 

2022, the event was held for the 10th consecutive year. Due to the scale of the event, it was held in 2 stages 

- spring and autumn, in May and September in more than 10 cities and enjoyed lots of attendance and 

activity. 

e Clean Account Online - BACB's current account for individual clients, which can now be opened online, 

without visiting an office, and managed entirely online. This digital product saves printing paper for 

standard forms for opening a current account. Since the launch of the digital platform in late 2022 to date, 

BACB has saved 5 640 pages of paper. 

e Online loan "Just Now": launch of a fully digital consumer loan, with remote application, evaluation and 

utilization, without visiting a bank office. The service saves our clients time and protects nature, avoiding 

the printing of 140 pages when signing a standard consumer loan contract. Since the launch of the digital 

platform, around 500 000 pages of paper have been saved, along with more than 30 trees. 
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* BACB participated in the competition of b2b Media "The Greenest Companies in Bulgaria 2022" and won 
second place for the online loan "Just Naw" in the "Banks" sector, as well as 3rd place in the “Green Project" 
category. 

e Green BACB Express: we continue to offer Bulgaria's first fully digital consumer loan, which is offered at 
the bank's kiosks in shopping centers. A completely paperless procedure has been developed that saves 
nature by avoiding the printing of 140 pages upon signing a standard consumer loan agreement. Since the 
start of the project until the end of 2022, more than 500 OOD sheets of paper have been saved along with 
more than 30 trees. 

e Bulgarian-American Credit Bank was awarded a prize for “Technological Innovation of the Year” at the 
annual b2b Media Annual Awards in 2019 for Green BACB Express; 

Employees and staff management 

The Bank's strategy for human resource management is aimed at increase the employees' efficiency and improve 
the performance. 
The professional development program of the Bank's emplovees provides an opportunity for professional 
development according to the individual capabilities, knowledge, experience, competence, interests and motivation 
of the employees. The human resource management framework regulates working conditions and improving the 

working environment, stimulates building and maintaining relationships of honesty, justice, trust, teamwork and 

continuity, provides an objective assessment of the employment and workload of individual employees and 

structural units. 

In 2022 the Group incurred expenses for trainings, seminars and enhancing the gualification of the employees in 

the amount of EUR 12.1 thousand. 

e RISK FACTORS/ DESCRIPTION OF THE MAIN RISK$S FACED BY TRE BANK 

Risks related to the Bank 
The Bank's operations are subject to risk factors that may affect its future results or its ability to continue to operate 

as a going concern. Certain risks can be mitigated by safeguards, through the implementaticn of control 

mecharisms, appropriate svstems. However, some risks are beyond the Bank's control and cannot be mitigated. 

The main factors related to the Bank are mentioned herein below. The listing of factors shall not be considered an 
exhaustive and comprehensive disclosure of all possible risks and uncertainties because there may be risks and 
uncertainties that are not known to the Bank or that BACB considers immaterial but may prove to be material in 
the future. 

The Bank 's development and success depend to a large extent on the state of the Bulgarian and global 
economy, and the Eurozone, in particular 

Banking activity in Bulgaria is dependent on the general level of ecenomic activity in the country and on a global 
scale, and the Eurozone, in particular. As a result of this dependence, the Bank's activities, its operating results and 
its financial condition largely depend on the state of the globa!, European and Bulgarian economies, which in turn 

affects the growth of lending, interest income and costs and the ability of borrowers to pay their debts in due time. 
Any negative change in one or multiple macroeconomic factors, such as interest rates, inflation, wapge levels, 

unemployment, foreign investment, international trade, etc, may have a material adverse effect on the Bank's 

activities, operating results and its financial situation. 

The bank is exposed to the risk of a sudden deterioration in the economic environment due to the war in 
Ukraine 
On 24 February 2022, Russia launched military operations against Ukraine, which escalated into a protracted 

military conflict and triggered a significant refugee and humanitarian crisis. In response to the Russian invasion of 
Ukraine, the EU countries and the USA imposed a number of economic sanctions against Russia and Belarus, which 

undoubtedly have a negative effect on the economies of the EU countries and Bulgaria, in particular. The 

conseguences af the war and the imposed sanctions led to high volatility on the energy markets, disruption of the 

Supply chains of basic raw materials for industry and high uncertainty for the development of the economy. In the 

last guarter of 2022, energy markets experienced a normalization of prices and a retreat of volatility under the 
influence of the expectations for a slowdown in economic activity and effective filling of gas storages in the EU to 
ensure demand during the winter season. Nevertheless, the dependence of the Bulgarian energy market on the 
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supply of Russian gas and the existing possibilities of providing alternative sources put pressure on prices and 

contribute to the retention of high inflation rates and the slowdown of economic growth. 
BACB AD has no significant direct exposures to counterparties from Russia, Belarus or Ukraine. As of 31 December 

2022, less than 2.0% of the borrowed funds were from citizens of Russia, Belarus or Ukraine. As of 31 December 

2022, only 0.16% of loan exposures were granted to individuals or companies whose activities are directly related 

to Russia. 

The bank is indirectly exposed to the risks arising from the military conflict due to their influence on the prices of 

energy carriers, potential difficulties in the supply chains and a slowdown in external demand - factors that can 

have a negative impact on the economic activity and financial condition of companies and households in Bulgaria, 

which in turn may have a direct negative impact on the guality of the Bank's assets and financial results. 
BACB AD has taken all necessary measures to comply with the sanctions imposed by the competent authorities. The 

Management closely monitors any developments and periodically assesses the impact they may have on the 

operations of the Bank and its clients, including retail and corporate clients and more broadly on the 

macroeconomic outlook. 

Continued inflationary pressures, combined with the aggressive financial policy of central banks and 
expectations of a significant slowdown in economic activity worldwide, may have an adverse effect on the 

Bank 's operations 

The Bank's business and operations may be affected by the continued rise in inflation that started around mid-2021 

- initially as a result of the slower recovery in supply /output versus the drastic rise in economic activity following 

the lifting of COVID-19 restrictions and which subseguently intensified by the outbreak of the crisis in Ukraine and 

the subseguent shock on energy and non-energy commodity markets. 

Russia's invasion in Ukraine and retaliatory sanctions since February 2022 have led to substantial rises in energy 

costs and other international commodity prices, pushing inflatjon rates in most advanced economies around the 

world to their highest level since the early 1980s. 
Inflation in Bulgaria started to rise more noticeably in the second half of 2021, mostly under the influence of the 
prices of energy resources and food on international markets, and as of 31 December 2021, the harmonized index 
of consumer prices (HIPC) reached 6.6%. Inflation growth continued to accelerate in 2022, reaching 14.8% on an 

annual basis at the end of June and 15.6% at the end of September, and registered a slight decline to 14.3% as of 31 

December. (Source: NSI - Infostat, HIPC). 
The drastic acceleration of inflation rates in Europe and the US has necessitated aggressive action by central banks 

after along period of financial easing and liguidity facilities. In 2022, the ECB suspended its asset purchase program 

and initiated a gradual increase in key interest rates, reaching 250 bps (2.5% percentage points) at the end of 

December 2022. In early 2023, the ECB announced another 50 bps hike and continues to underline its 

determination to combat persistent inflationary pressures with further rate hikes even at the risk of a sharp 

slowdown in economic activity in 2023. 

The exact impact of inflationary pressures on the Bank's operations depends on the duration and rate of inflation 

in the future and is therefore difficult to predict. If inflation continues to rise over the next months, this could bring 

further increases in key interest rates and adversely affect households, businesses, banks and the public sector. 

Reduced household purchasing power and increased costs to businesses could reduce the size and/or guality of the 

pool of potential borrowers and/or increase defaults on existing loans, which in turn could have a material adverse 

effect on business operations and the Bank's financial results. In addition, inflation may put pressure on the Bank's 

costs. 

The degree of diversification of funding sources and changes in the regulatory framework may reguire 

changes in the choice of strategies in terms of resource and credit policy. 
BACB AD is dependent on its deposit base as an external source of funding to maintain its liguidity. The Bank's 
ability to finance its core business by attracting deposits under reasonable economic conditions, depends on the 

economic conditions of the markets where BACB operates, as well as on the confidence of the depositors in the Bank 

and/or the banking system in general. 

As of 31.12.2022, BACB AD financed its banking operations mainly with deposits from individuals and legal entities, 
which represent approximately 94% of the Bank's total deposit portfolio. At the end of 2021, the funds borrowed 
from clients amounted to 95% of the Bank's liabilities. 
As a result of worsening economic conditions or for any other reason that would reduce depositors' confidence in 
the banking sector in general or in the Bank in particular, there may be an outflow of funds deposited with the Bank. 
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In this case, BACB AD may not be able to maintain the current levels of cash security for its activity or it may be 
reguired to dispose of its assets or to seek other sources of external financing. 

Shocks on the interbank eredit market, which would significantly increase the cost of financing between banks or 

make it unavailable, could cause liguidity difficulties for the Bank, which would result in higher than anticipated 

interest costs. 

The price of the Bank's borrowed resources at present depends mainly on the competitive conditions of the local 

market, and the amount and price of institutional financing also depends on the Bank's rating/profile. 

On 21 April 2022 and 13 September 2021 "BACR - Credit Rating Agency" AD maintained and confirmed the ratings 

assigned to BACB AD. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

                      
  

Primary Updated Updated | Updated Updated Updated | Updated Updated 
Financial strength rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating Rating 

July 27, | July 26,| July 30,jApril  17,| April 17,| April 20,| September | April 21 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 13, 2021 2022 

Long-term rating B B- Bt BB- BB- BB- BB BB 

Outlook stable Stable positive | stable stable positive | stable stable 

Short-term rating B B B B B B B B 

National-scale long-term BBB- BBE 
rating B*(BG) |EBB-(BG) | BB (BG) | BB-* (BG) | BB* (BG) (BG) BBB (BG) (BO) 

Outlook stable Stable positive |stable stable positive | stable stable 

:_“a"‘tti;“gna"“a"’ short-term | g g  |Beg l|acg |aig |BEY A-3(BG) | A-3 (BG) |A-3 (BO) 

increased competition in the Bulgarian banking sector mav redure the interest margins of market 
participants or otherwise affect the Bank 's competitive position 
The markets where the Bank operates are highly competitive, The Bank fFaces significant competition in all business 
aspects, “competing” with a number of subsidiary banks of major international financial institutions and some 
domestic competitors. The main competitors have lower funding costs due to lower dependence on local depositars 
and the support of parent companies - mainly Eurozone banks. We are entering a period of increasing prime rates, 
which poses an additiona) challenge, 
In order to cope with the increased competition, the Bank relies on knowledge of the specifics of the domestic 
market, on its established relations with ciients, on increasing the guality of the services offered, as well as on the 
development of digita] banking services. However, if the Bank is unable to provide competitive product and service, 
it mav fail to attract new and /or retain its existing clients, may lose its market share, its net interest margin and fee 
and commission income may decrease. Any of these events could have a significant adverse impact on the Bank's 
operations, financial condition and operating results. 

The hank has significant concentration towards certain economic sectors 

The credit portfolio structure by industry reflects the Bank's strategy to diversify its credit activity by expanding its 
market positions in the "retail" segment and investments in sustainable and "ereen"” sectors of the ecenomy such 
as: energy efficiency and electricity production from renewable energy sources, processing and light industry, 
wholesale and retail trade, agriculture and animal breeding, transport. In order to achieve better diversification in 
the risk management policy, the bank has set a maximum tota! exposure in a certain industry of up to 15% of the 

total eredit portfolie. 
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Notwithstanding the limitations, a sustained downturn in any of the major sectors to which BACB actively lends, 

rould result in lasting financial difficulties for the Bank's clients in those sectors and an increase in the risk of credit 

losses, which could have a material adverse impact on the Bank's operations, its operating results and financial 

condition. 

A singnaificant share of the Banak 's credit portfolio is concentrated in a limited numher of clients 

The bank limits €redit risk and concentration risk by setting limits on credit exposures in relation to an individual 
horrower or a group af related borrowers. Adherence to these limits is monitored on an ongoing basis, and the 

adeguacy of the limits set is reviewed periodically. By the end of 2022, part of thc Bank's credit portfolip is 

concentrated in a limited number of borrawers. The activities of the Bank, its financial condition and the results of 

its activilies might be negatively affected in thr event of a prolonged deterioration of business climate, which may 

lead to default an the part of some its largest borrowers. As at Y/E 2022 and 2021 the twenty largest Cxposures 

(including loans, bank guarantees and other cercdit forms) represent 32.4% and 34.4% of the loan portfolin 

respectively. 

Risks related to the creditworthiness of borrowers and counterparties are fnherent in the Bank's activities 

The ability of clients to repay their lpans can be affected by the general econamic developgments in the country, ind. 

unemployment arnd inflation rates and access to finance. In ihe event of a prolonged slaowdawn in economic growth, 

persistence of high inflation rates, accompanied by an increase in interest rates and tightening of financing 

conditions, the share of non-perferming loans may increase, and the resulting impairments will reduce the bank's 

profits, which in turn may have a negative impact on its capital adeauacy levels. 

Although the Bank sets aside provisions for potential eredit lesses in accordance with the applicable reguirements, 

the expected credit lasses are determined based on the available information, estimates and assumptions, whick by 

delinition contain a certain level af uncertainty. Therefore, there can be no assurance tiat the provisions made by 

the Bank are or will be sufficient to cover potential future losses. In addition, a deterioration in the eredit gualsty of 

laans granted by the Bank ar the financial condition of any af its harrowers may reguire the Bank to set aside 

additional provisions for impairment, which could have a material adverse effect on its operations and results. 

For 2022 the Bank accrucd provisions for impairment of loans and advances to customers in the amount of EUR 6 

219 thousand compared ta EUR 12 767 thousand in 2021. The impairment costs in 2022 report EUR 28 million 

(2021 - EUR 44 million) 

Anv failure hy the Bank fatlure to adeguatcly manage and control its credit portfolio cauld have a materia!l 

adverse effect on its operations 

The loan portfolio has grown consistently since Z014, when an increase by 9.486% was reported mainly because 

of the growth in the grass laan portfolio. This trend continued in 2015, 2016, 2Z017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 

ZO022 with 14.6%, 16.3%, 10%, 13.8%, 9.6%, 11.4%, 6.8% and 4,5% respectively. The bank constantly monitors 

the guality of loans granted and the adeguacy of its provisions. This process is coupled with continuous 

development of risk management strategies and systems. The bank actively seeks diversifi€ation of its portfolia 

through exposures to corporate clients and economic sertors with sustainable indicators, as well as throughfurther 

development of retail banking. A failurc in the management and maintenance of the Bank's credit portfolie or asset 

growth could have a material adverse effect on the Bank's business, operating results and financial condition. 

The Bank is exposed to risks that mayv adversely affect its operations and results if the Bank's risk 

management policy is unsuccessful 

Just jike any other bank, BACB faces various types of risk that may adversely affect it. This includes, but is not limited 

to: redit, market, currency, interest rate, liguidity, investment and operatianal risk. Although the Bank invests 

considerable time and effart in developing risk management systems and strategies, these systems and strategies 

may fail under certain circumstances, in particular when the Bank is faced with a risk that it failed to identify 

correctly or in a timely manner. Morcover, risk methodoiogies and technigues may not cover the entire range of 

risks faced by the Bank. If such risks materialize, losses therefrom may be higher than anticipated by the Bank, 

which may have a materiai adverse impact on the Bank's business, operating results and financial condition. 
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The hank operates in a highly regulated environment. The compiexity and fredguent amenrdments in the 

appliicahle iegisiatian may adversely affect the Bank 's artivity, in the context of timely adaptation of processes 

and fulfillment of increased reguirements 

The bank is subject to numerous regulations designed to maintain the safety and stability of banks by ensuring 

compliance with econnmic and other obligations and limiting (their risk ezposures. As part of the Bulgarian banking 

system, we are subject to the international regulatary framewaork - Basel IN in the European Union, part of which 

is directly applicable to the member states, and part of which is transposed into Bulgarian legislation, through the 

Credit Institutions Act (CLI) and its implementing acts. The Bank's activity is also regulated by directives and 

regulatiaons adopted hy the European Parliament and the Council, delegated repulations of the European 

Commission and guidelines and recommendations issued by the European Banking Authority. 

There are numerous ongoing initiatives to develop new, implement and amend eristing regulatory reguirements 

applicable to European €redit institutions. Many nf these initiatives, aimed at continuously improving the 

regulatory framework of the banking sectar, are being currently further developed and discusscd, and no firm 

conclusions can be drawn abonut their potential effect. Any amendments to the laws and regulations or in their 

interpretation or implementation may expose the bank to additienal costs and liabilities, may reguire a change in 

business strategy or have a negative impact on the business, the produrcts and services offered, and the value of its 

assets. If BACB is unable to sufficiently or timely inerease its capital ratias and/or comply with (other] regulatory 

reguirements, the caompetent authorities may impose restrictions, fines, sanctions or other regulatory measures. 

Such events could have a significant adverse effect on the Bank's business, financial condition and operating results. 

Apart from the specific banking legislation, the Bank's activity alsa depends on the general corporate legislation in 

Bulgaria (tax and accounling regulations, laws on measures against money laundering, personal data protection, 

etc.), and any amendments therein may have a significant impact on the operating results and the Bank's financial 

position. For example, the intradurtion of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” Jed to significant rhanges in the 

classificatien and measurement of the guality of financial assets, as wel] as to the introduction of a new impairment 

moadel based on experted credit losses. 

The bank may need a future capital increose 

The Bank's eguity (capital base) reguirements depend on numerous factors, including asset and profit growth, 

regulatory capital adeguacy reguirements and potential asset acduisitions. Any deterioration in the guality of the 

Bank's credit porttolio may exceed the expectations and result in a reguirement for additional capital. The effective 

Bank capital management is essential to its ability to operate, grow organically and pursue its strategy. Any change 

that limits the Bank 's ability to manage its assets and capilal effectively [including, for example, a decrease in profit 

and reinvested profit as a result of impairment charges or ior other reasons, an increase in risk-weighted assets, a 

delay in the sale of certain assets, etc.) or gain access t sources of financing may have a material adverse effect on 

the Bank's financial condition or capital position in compliance with the regulatory reguirements. The Bank's 

management cannot accurately predict the amount and the time when the Hank would need more eguity. 

The minimal levels of capital adeguacy in Bulgaria are set forth in Regulation 575/2013, as per which the 

institutions in any moment have to gualify the following capital reguirements: 

- Ratio ofthe basis Tier 1 capital 4.5%; 

- . Ratio of Tier 1 capital 6%; 

- . Total capital adeguacy ratio 8%; 

In addition, Ordinance 8 of BNB stipulates additional capital buffers that banks have to keep above the minimum 

capital reuirements and which as at December 31 2022 and December 31 2021 are the following: 

- Precautionary capital buffer cgual to 2.58% of the amount of the total cisk exposure of thr Bank; 

- Anti-cycle capital buffer - 1% / D.5% of the of the amount of the tatal risk exposure of the Bank; 

- System risk buffer - 3% of the amount of the total risk exposure of the Bank; 

-A buffer for a global systemically impartant institution; 

-A buffer for another systemically important institution. 
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The Bank reviews and analyses on a monthly basis its Capital position and prepares guarterly reports for 
supervision purposes, which are presented to BNB pursuant to the reguliatory reguirements. The gradually 

performed of stress tests review the effect of the portfolio guality deterioration and/or the impairment of the 

existing collaterals on the portfolio guality as well as on the capital position of the Bank. The capital buffers are 

evaluated periodically and measures for their maintenance and increasing are undertaken. 

The Group's capital adeguacy ratio as at 31 December 2022 of 18.00% is above the minimum levels set by 

Regulation 575/2013. The capital position of the Bank depends on many factors such as the increase of the loan 

portfolio and income, regulatory capital reguirements. Any change that limits the capability of the Bank to actively 
manage its balance and capital reguirements, for example additional deterioration of the loan portfolio guality, 

decrease of the profit as a result of accruing additional impairment provisions, increase of the risk assets, slowdown 
of the assets disposition, may lead to decrease of the capital buffers and additional capital reguirement. Events 

outside the Bank's control may also result in additional funding reguirements, including changes to regulatory 

capital reguirements or worsening of the global economic and market conditions. 

Any additional financing of the Bank through an increase in its share capital could have a "dilutive” effect for the 

Bank's shareholders, and possible debt financing or other forms of resource borrowing, if such are possible, may 

reduce the Bank's profitability and lead to restrictions on its future financing and operating activities. In addition, 

if it does not have the necessary eguity, the Bank may be subject to increased regulatory supervision and 

intervention, and its business, operating results and financial condition may be adversely affected. 

The Bank is dependent on its experienced emplovees, and competition for such emplovees on the labour 
market mav be guite significant 

The Bank's success depends, to a significant extent, on its ability to recruit, retain and incentivize its senior 

management and other gualified and experienced employees at an expert or managerial level. If the Bank is unable 

to solicit, promote and retain gualified personnel, this could have a material adverse effect on the Bank's business, 

operating resuits and financial condition. The successful implementation of the Bank's business plan to a certain 

extent depends on its ability to hire and retain gualified operational, financial and technical specialists from the 

Bulgarian labor market. 

The Bank's system aimed at ensuring compliance of its activities with the legislation and internal regulations 
may not be fully effective 

The Bank's ability to comply with the reguirements of all applicable laws and regulations is largely dependent on 

the establishment and maintenance of compliance, auditing and reporting systems, as well as its ability to retain 

gualified personnel competent with regards to tie applicable legislation, control, auditing and risk management. 

Although the Bank's management believes that it has adeguate systems and procedures in place, there is no 

assurance that they would be fully effective on the background of a shifting market environment. The bank is subject 

to intensive supervision by regulatory authorities, including regular inspections. The risk of actual or suspected 

non-compliance with the rules, respectively the probability of the launch of administrative proceedings, initiation 

of court proceedings against the Bank with a significant cost of the claims, incl. on client dlaims for compensation, 

is limited by the Bank through a regular internal review of its internal regulations and control procedures. 

The bank is dependent on complex information systems 

The Bank is dependent on complex information systems, including a management information system, and any 

failure, inefficiency or disruption of these systems could have a significant adverse impact on the Bank. 

Information systems are generally exposed to numerous problems such as computer viruses, hacker attacks, 

software and hardware malfunctions. Anvy failure, disruption or breach in the security of these systems coulid result 

in problems or disruptions of our dlient relations, risk management, accounting and deposit and loan servicing 

systems. If the Bank's information systems cease to function normally, even for a short period of time, the Bank may 

be temporarily unable to serve its clients and lose them. In addition, any temporary suspension of information 

systems may result in extraordinary costs for restoring and confirming lost information. In addition, any failure by 

the Bank to update and develop its existing information systems as effectively as the Bank's competitors, could 

result in it falling behind its competitors. Although the Bant's management believes that it has an adeguate security 

and contingency plan, including a fully eguipped backup information center, there can be no assurance that they 
will be sufficient to prevent such issues or to ensure that the Bank's operations are not be significantly hindered. 
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Any of these or other issues related to the Bank's information systems may have a significant negative impact on 
the Bank's activities, operating results and financial condition. 

Risk Management 

Review 

The Bank has developed and introduced rules and procedures for risk management and control in order to 
determine, manage and control the degree of risk for the Bank in its operations. The risk management and control 
policy is adopted by the Management Board and approved by the Supervisory Board. The document regulates the 
organization for implementation of the strategic goals, the risk management framework and the risk tolerance 
adopted by the Supervisory and Management Board of the Bank. The risk policy and the rules for risk management 
and control define the methods for evaluating various types of risk to which the Bank is exposed (including credit 
risk, liguidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and credit risk from the counterparty), define the relationships 
between the individual structural units in risk management and establish a system of limits and early warning 

indicators that reflect the risk tolerance adopted by the Bank. The main objective of the Risk Management Policy is 

to impose clearly defined parameters for the Bank's operations, so as to limit as much as possible the potential 

negative impact of risks on the Bank's financial results. Compliance with risk management rules and procedures is 

monitored regularly, depending on the level of risk and its potential impact on the Bank's operations. Any deviation 

from the Bank's accepted internal standards is reported to the Bank's management and appropriate measures are 

taken. The Risk Management Policy is reviewed annually in order to implement adeguate and effectively functioning 
risk management and control systems. In addition, the internal control unit conducts an independent review of the 

state of risk management and compliance with the adopted policies. 

For a detailed discussion on the financial risks relating to the Bank please see Note 32 to the Bank's consolidated 
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022. 

Strategic risk 
The sustainable development of the Bank is directly dependent on the success and fulfillment of the goals set within 
the provided terms. The strategic choice, based on an adeguate assessment of the accompanvying risks and economic 
conditions, ensures its proper management, and the regular review and evaluation of theimplementation, generate 
the reguired prereguisites for the relevant addition to or modification of the goals. The Bank's policy reguiring it to 
have sufficient capital to cover the risks associated with its ordinary functioning, as well as any unforeseen risks, 
has a positive effect. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the current or potential risk for the income and capital, arising from the inability of the debtor to fulfill 
the reguirements of the contract concluded with the Bank or the inability to act in compliance with the contractual 
conditions. Credit risk for the Bank arises from its lending activities, deposits made in other banks, as well as 
investing in securities. Credit risk is decisive for the Bank's financial profile, which is why the management manages 
and monitors its exposure to credit risk very carefully. The Bank's credit activity policy and lending instructions are 
developed by the structural units involved in credit activity management, credit risk and the Legal department and 
are adopted by the Management Board. 
The systerm of internal rules, procedures and standardized credit products reflects the organization of the Bank's 
activity and strategy, regulates the process of performing credit analysis and the process of credit approval, defines 
the persons authorized to approve credits, defines the rules for preparing, maintaining and storing credit 
documentation, procedures for granting funds and defines the activities for exercising appropriate current and 
subseguent control, the type and amount of collateral accepted, the necessary insurances and other risk reduction 
technigues. 

The Bank conducts regular stress tests to assess exposure to credit risk, assess the effect on the Bank's capital 

position, identify critical exposures and identify measures to mitigate credit risk and preserve the capital position. 

As disclosed above, there is a concentration of risk in the credit portfolio both with respect to a limited number of 
borrowers and to a limited number of economic sectors that may be adversely affected if economic growth slows 
down or inflation accelerates. 
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Liguidity risk 

Liguidity risk is the danger of shortage of sufficient cash resources, in case of withdrawal of funds from deposits er 

fulfilliment of other obligations, which may arise from a discrepancy in cash flows. 
The main objectives of the Bank's liguidity management are to ensure the Bank's constant ability to meet its 

financial obligations, to provide a resource that meets the demand for loans and to achieve positive financial results 

from the management of own and borrowed funds. The Bank's goals and strategy in this direction are also tied to 

the development of a sustainable financing structure and adeguate fulfillment of liguidity standards. 
The Bank's liguidity management principles include: 

s Centralized control over the Bank's liguidity exercised by the liguidity management body; 

e Constant monitoring and assessment of the necessary cash by time ranges in the future, assessment of the 
adeguacy af the Bank's liguid assets; 

e Diversification of funding sources; 

e Adeguate planning of actions in extraordinary circumstances 

The Bank has adopted internal ruies for determining and monitoring liguidity buffers in order to maintain 
additional liguidity immediately available for use in the event of a liguidity shock for a short pericd of time. The 
rules define the composition of the liguidity buffer, the characteristics and periodicity of the applied stress scenarios 
and the sources of funding in going concern scenarias and liguidity crisis scenarios. 

The framework for managing the liguidity position is supplemented by internal limits to ensure adeguate coverage 

of borrowed funds with liguid assets, regular stress tests to assess the guality and stability of the liguidity buffer as 
well as indicators corresponding to the reguirements of the regulatory framework - leverage, stable funding ratio, 

liguidity coverage ratio. 

Upon managing its liguidity position, the Bank uses interbank deposits primarily to cover short-term liguidity 
shortages, rather than to finance loans. 

In order to optimize sources of liguidity and at the same time achieve better profitability, the Bank invests in 

government securities issued by the Republic of Bulgaria or government securities of issuers with a first-class 

sovereign rating such as Germany, France, the USA. Investments in corporate bonds and shares issued by Bulgarian 

tompanies are approved by the Assets and lLiabilities Management Committee on an individual basis, Securities 
acduired by the Banik for liguidity purposes are currently classified as "investments held for cash flow collection 

and sale” or “investments held to collect cash flaws”. 

As part of the liguidity risk management system, the Bank has introduced additional internal thresholds to limit 
concentration risk and support liguidity buffers. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is related to the potential adverse effect on the Bank arising from fluctuations in interest rates oa 
BACB'S net income and eduity value. BACB'S policy is to reduce interest rate risk by granting loans with a floating 

interest rate combined with the application of fixed floor thresholds, so as to limit the potential negative impact 
resulting fom non-parallei ar time-varying changes in interest rates on assets and liabilities. 

In addition, in order to limit the interest rate risk by reducing the probability of prepayments on business loans 
(loans to small and medium-sized enterprises, corporate clients and municipalities), the Bank deducts a 
prepayment fee on business loans granted as a percentage of the prepaid principal. However, this does not apply to 

consumer and mortgage loans granted to consumers-individuals, where the Bank applies the relevant provisions of 

the Consumer Credit Act and the Consumer Real Estate Credit Act and does not deduct a prepayment fee. 

The bank does not trade in derivatives on interest rates. This policy means that the risk of the Bank incurring 
significant losses even with large movements in market interest rates is relatively limited. 
The Bank's interest rate position is monitored and managed on an ongoing basis by the Markets and Liguidity 
Department and the Risk Management Directorate, and is reported monthly to the Assets and Liabilities 
Management Committee. The Asset and Liability Management Committee assesses the interestraterisk for the Bank 

in the general context of all banking operations and activities. The Risk Management Directorate carries out 

independent control over the open interest pasition, monitors risk indicators regarding interest imbalance and 

prepares guarterly reports to the management. 
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The bank measures the risk of negative changes in net interest income and the financial result by an analysis of 
selected interest scenarios for a one-year horizon. The effect on capital is based on a standardized methodology of 
the Basel Committee and interest rate scenarios according to the Guidelines of the European Banking Authority 

(EBA) EBA/GL/2018/02, on the management of interest rate risk arising from non-trading book activities, 

reflecting the absolute values of the sensitivities in all maturity intervals to a yield curve shift. 
Herein below we have presented a sensitivity analysis as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 prepared by 

the Bank as part of the internal capital adeguacy analysis 

  

  

  

  

  

e e 31.12.2022 e 31.12.2021 

e Change | * Change in . Change in . Change in . Change in 

in interest the economic value | the i2m. -net the economic value | the 12m. -net 

rates of capital in interest income in | of capital in interest income in 
. thousands of EUR thousands of EUR thousands of EUR thousands of EUR 

. t 200 . -4 717 . -2 918 . .s 608 . 2174 

bps 

. - 200 . t2 429 . t2 748 . . 1349 . , 773 

bps 
ë ] . . . 
              
Evident from the table above, based on the data as of 31 December 2022, if the interest rates on the positions with 

a floating interest rate increase by two hundred basis points (12%), the economic value of capital would decrease 
by EUR 4 717 thousand or 4.11% of the capital base (2021:5.3%), and the profit would decrease by EUR 2 918 

thousand. 

Currency risk 

The Bank is exposed to the impact of fluctuations in exchange rates in terms of open currency position and cash 

flows. 

The bank operates in euro, US dollars and leva, and in limited cases carries out operations in British pounds and 

Swiss francs. It is exposed to a relatively limited currency risk, since the BGN has been pegged to the German mark 

since 1997, and subseguently to the euro, through the introduction of the Currency Board system in the country. 
The Markets and Liguidity Department continuously monitors the compliance with the limits regarding currency 
risk and reports to the Asset and Liability Management Committee on a monthly basis. 

The currency risk management policy aims to maintain open positions in USD as close as possible to a neutral level 
by attempting to balance the amounts and maturities of its liabilities denominated in USD with its receivables 
denominated in that currency . The Bank maintains a limit of open positions in US dollars in the amount of up to 1% 
of its capital base and this limit was not exceeded during the reporting periods ending on 31 December 2022 and 
2021. The Bank maintains a long EUR/BGN position (i.e. its assets denominated in euro have a higher value than its 
liabilities in euro. The bank does not trade on the foreign exchange market for its own account. The bank offers its 
clients currency trading services. The limit for overnight maximum open currency position in connection with 
operations with clients is EUR 100 000.There is no limit for the Euro position due to the presence of the Currency 
Board. Under certain circumstances the above open position limits may be exceeded with the approval of the 
Executive officers. 

In the course of its operations, the Bank may enter into short-term currency swaps in order to manage its currency 
flows and as a tool to reduce the cost of borrowed funds in certain relevant currencies, taking advantage of existing 
differences in their interest rates. 

At 31 December 2022 there are no active contracts for foreign currency swaps. 

Counterparty risk 
BACB has established interbank limits with banks operating in Bulgaria and also with its main foreign 
correspondent banks. Counterparty limits are approved by the Asset and Liability Management Committee. 
Counterparty limits are approved based on a review of the capital adeguacy, liguidity and shareholder structure of 
the counterparty banks. The list of approved counterparties and limits is reviewed and updated at least once a year. 
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Investment Risk 

The investments are approved by the ALCO after a review of the credit risk of the issuer. The total amount of the 

securities portfolio at 31 December 2022 is EUR 103 million (2021: EUR 70,3 million), divided in two sections - 

Financial assets, appraised by fair value in other comprehensive income in the amount if EUR 37,2 million and and 

Financial assets, accounted by amortization value - in the amount of 65,8 million. As of the same date, EUR 7,1 

mislion of the securities in the Bank's portfolio are corporate bonds and eguity securities, incl. EUR S$ million 

corporate debt securities and EUR Z,1 million - eguity securities. 

Operational risk 

Operational risk management is an important component of the proper and sound risk management in any modern 

financial institution. Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inappropriate or faulty processes, peaple or 

systems, or from external events. In this context, the moestimportant operational risks are those related to breaches 

in internal contrel and corporate governance. Such breaches may result in financial losses due to errors, abuses or 

untimely action er inaction or may otherwise endanger the interests of the Bank. BACB has adopted internal 

operational risk management rules regulating the risk management and control processes. The organizational 

moedel for operational risk management is based on the principle of responsibility allocation between risk 

management and contro) and includes three main pillars: 

e identification and management of risks by individual business lines; 

e independentreview, assessment and reporting of risk hy the operational risk management function; 

e independent verification of controls, processes and systems used to manage operational risk by internal 

and/or external auditors. 

The operational risk management and mitigation is facilitated by internal control mechanisms, risk transfer, risk 

assumption and monitoring or risk avoidance by suspending a certain activity or process. The main internal control 

mechanisms include defining and delegating clearly defined powers and responsibilities to afficials and ensuring 

an ethical organizational culture, adopting rules and procedures for approving, executing and repoerting operations, 

including exceptions, analysis of factors contributing to the occurrence of operational risk and taking measures £o 

limit it, etc. 

The Bank has adopted a Disaster and Accident Actjon Plan to ensure business continuity. 

Custodian activities 

In its capacity as an investment intermediary the Bank is safeguarding assets on behalf of its clients. As disclosed in 

Note 3 ($Summary of Significant Accounting Policies] to the Bank's separate financial statements, no such assets are 

presented in the statement of financial position as they are not an asset of the Bank. It is disclased in Note 32.5. to 

the separate financial statements that the Bank carries out its custodian activities in accordance with the 

reguirements of Ordinance No 38 of the FSC. 

Hedging 

For a short summary of hedging instruments and the types ofrisks being hedged, please refer to the Notes to Bank's 

Consolidated Financial Statements for 2022. 

Recovery Plan/Directive 59/15.05.2014 

In pursuant of the reguirements of Directive 59/15.05.2014 of the European Parliament to create a framework for 

the recovery and restructuring of credit institutions, art. & of the Recovery and Restructuring of Credit Institutions 

and Investment Intermediaries Act, Art. 73d of the Credit Institutions Act and Art. 25 of Ordinance No. 7 of the BNB 

on the organization and management of risks in banks, all hanks are aobliged to develop a recovery plan, containing 

actions and measures to restore their financial condition in the event of financial difficulties. 

The recovery plan adopted by the Bank consists of four main sections, describing the process of plan development, 

the procedure for its activation, the recovery options in individual scenarios and the procedure for internal and 

external communication in case of plan activation. 

The recovery plan contains an analysis of the impact of adverse events that may strongly affect the Bank's financial 

condition, including crises affecting the entire financial market and the Bank itself. The processes of action 

development and activation are described, along with the limits and indicators used, related to the preventive 

assessment of the vulnerability of the Bank'sliguidity and capital position, profitability and risk profile, and targeted 

actions. The plan also describes and analyzes the structure and key activities of the Bank, as well as the key points 
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in its strategy. A major part of the plan is devoted to recovery options - the selected recovery measures, assessment 
of the guantitative/gualitative effect, implementation period and probability of implementation, as well as 
evaluation of the results of applied stress scenarios. A plan for communication with the Bank's internal structures 
and external organizations was also developed, as well as the stages, seguence and scope of actions related to 
recovery plan activation. 
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I. INFORMATION UNDER ART. 247 OF THE COMMERCE ACT 

e Participation by thc members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board of the Bank in 

other companies 

Nonc of the members of the Bank 's Management and control bodics participates in trade companies as a partner 

with unlimited liability. 

The members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board of the Bank have shareholdings in the amount 

of morc than 25% of the capital or are members of the Management and control bodies of the following companics 

as of 31 December 2022: 

Members of the Supervisory Board: 

1. 'T4vetelina Borislavova Karagyozova - Data on sharcholding and/ or participation in management and control 

bodies of companies other than the Bank: 

  

    

Company namé Direct shareholding of more than | Participation in 

25% of the capital or indirect control | management and control 

bodies 

CSIF” AD Direct sharehoiding - 99,997% of the | Member of the Board of 

Capital are property of Tzvetelina | Directors and CEO 

Borislavova Karagyozova and indirect 

shareholding through the Credo Bonum 
Foundation, which has 0,003% direct 
shareholding; 

“ITP-Bulgaria” EOOD Direct shareholding - 57,5% of the 
capital are praperty of 'Tzvetelina 

Borislavova Karagyozova and indirect 

shareholding through the controlled 

, Company ,CSIE” AD, which has 43,5% 

' direct shareholding: 

“IDS Fund" AD | ndirect sharehokding through the 
controlled company .CSIF” AD, which 

has S50% direct shareholding and 
through the controlled company ,BACB 

(baiinenuc", which has S0% direct 

shareholding. 

#ORK Consult ” OOD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,IDS Fund” AD, 

which has 75% direct shareholding; 

Vital Concept” OOD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company .CSIF” AD, which 
has 36% direct shareholding and 

through the controlled company ,IDS$ 

Fund” AD which has 44% direct 

shareholding. 

,CSIF Hydro” EAD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has a 100% direct shareholding 

HPP Stankova Reka” EOOD | Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled companv ,CSIF Hydro” EAD, 

which has 100,00% direct shareholding 
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,Disib” OOD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled companvy ,CSIE” AD, which 

has 8B7,43% direct shareholding 

,Windex” OOD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,CSIF Hydro” EAD, 

which has 99,04% direct shareholding 

and through the controlled cempany 
,CSIE” AD, which has 0,96% dirert 

shareholding; 
  

vProvidenti” AD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,Disib” OOD, which 
has 35,70% direct shareholding 
  

uPamporovo Gas”* EAD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company,CSIF Energy” EAD, 
which has a 100% direct shareholding 
  

4CSIF Energy” EAD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 
has a 100% direct shareholding. 
  

,Green Pawer Group 

Bulgaria” OOP 
Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has 50% direct shareholding. 
  

,Green Power Group 

Bulgaria-2* OOD 
Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled companv ,CSIF” AD, which 

has 50% direct shareholding. 
  

sLibera Estate” OOD Direct shareholding - 50,33% of the 

capital is property of Tzvetelina 

Borislavova Karagyozova and indirect 

shareholding through the controlled 

company ,CSIF” AD, which has 49,77% 

direct shareholding 
  

,Sunny Apple” EOOD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has a 100% direct shareholding 
  

,Sunny Fruits Bulgaria" 
OOD 

Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,ITP-Bulgaria” 

EOOD, which has a 10% direct 

shareholding, through the controlled 

company ,Sunny Apple” EOOD, which 

has a 10% direct shareholding and 

through the controlled company ,Libera 

Estate” OOD, which has a 20% direct 

shareholding 
  

,Rival 5” EOOD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has a 100% direct shareholding 
  

,Pamporovo” AD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,CSIF” AD, whirh 

has 88,39% direct shareholding and 
through the controlled company 
sDespred” AD, which has 11,44% direct 

shareholding 
  

sMonek-Yug” AD     Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 
has 98,07% direct shareholding     
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,Port Bulgaria West” EAD Direct shareholding - 35,00% of the 

Capital is property of Tzvetelina 

Borislavova Karagyozova and indirect 

shareholding through the controlled 

company ,CSIF” AD, which has 49,60% 

direct shareholding,through the 

controlled company ,Despred“AD, 

which has 12,60% shareholding and 

through,,Buljack” EAD, which has 2,80% 

shareholding; 
  

,PB Management” EOOD Indirect shareholding through the 
controlled company ,Port Bulgaria 

West” EAD, which has a 100% direct 

shareholding 
  

sMorska Mechta* EOOD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,Port Bulgaria 

West” EAD, which has a 100% direct 

shareholding 
  

,Buljack” EAD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has a 100% direct shareholding 
  

,Sea Food" EOOD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has a 100% direct shareholding 
  

“PB Shipping” OOD   Direct shareholding - 5,25% of the 
capital is property of 'Tzvetelina 

. Borislavova Karagyozova and indirect 
, shareholding through the controlled 

| cCompany ,CSIF” AD, which has 0,21% 
direct shareholding and through the 
controlled company ,Port Bulgaria 

West” AD, which has 94,54% direct 

shareholding 
  

,Despred” AD Indirect shareholding through the 

controlled company ,CSIF” AD, which 

has 93,789% direct shareholding 
  

      Credo Bonum Foundation - Chairman 

Tipping Point Foundation - Executive officer 

Association Global Bulgaria | - Chairman 

Initiative     

Association Bulgarian 

Sustainable Development 

Board 
  

| Digitalization and New 
Technology 

Implementation 

Foundation 

| Member of the Management 

Board 

  

Chair of the Management 
Board 

  

National Tourism Board 

Association 

Member of the Management 

Board   
  

Bulgarian Ski  School 

Association       Chairman     
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2. Petar Georgiev Atanasov has no shareholding and/ or participation in management and control bodies of 

companies other than the Bank. 

3. Martin Boychev Ganev - Data on shareholding and/ or participation in management and control bodies of 
companies other than the Bank: 

  

Company name Direct shareholding of more than 25% of the | Participation in 

capital or indirect control management and 
control bodies 

  

1. ,Project Management, | Direct shareholding - 90,00% of the capital are 
Energy, Ecology, Finance” | property of Martin Boychev Ganev 

  

  

AD 

2. ,Pasat Bulgaria” AD Direct sharehoiding - 26,16% of the capital are 
property of Martin Boychev Ganev 

3. ,Papia 1” EOOD Directshareholding - 100,00% of the capitalare | Manager 
property of Martin Boychev Ganev 

4. ,Green Strandzha” EOOD Directshareholding - 100,00% of the capital are | Manager 
property of Martin Boychev Ganev 

  

  

  

          
$. ,DK-Domostroene” AD s Member of the Board of 

Directors 

6. ,Ansa Borima” OOD Direct shareholding - 50% of the capital are 
property of Martin Boychev Ganev 

7. ,Terra Way (Investment Member of the Board of 

Group"AD Directors 
  

  

Members of the Management Board: 

1. Mr. Iian Petrov Georgiev (Chief Executive Officer) - Data on shareholding and/ or participation in management 
and control bodies of companies other than the Bank: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

          

Company name Direct shareholding of more than | Participation in 
25% of the capital or indirect control | management and control 

bodies 

“BACB Trade” EAD - Chairman of the Board of 
Directors 

“BACB Finance” EAD Member of the Board of 
Directors 

“IDS Fund” AD Member of the Board of 
Directors 

,Paynetix” AD Member of the Board of 
Directors 

,Nivel Group”* OOD Direct shareholding in the amount of 
50% of the company shares 

,Stana Vinyard” OOD Direct shareholding in the amount of 
98,00% of the capital; 
  

2. Mr. Aleksandar Dimitrov Dimitrov (Executive officer) - Data on shareholding and/ or participation in 
management and control bodies of companies other than the Bank: 

x
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Company name Direct shareholding of more than | Participation in 
25% of the capital or indirect control | management and control 

bodies 
  

  

LAY Investments" EOOD Direct shareholding - 100% of the 
capital is owned by Aleksandar Dimitrov 
Dimitrov 

,Fire” AD Member of the Board of 

Directors 

            
3. Mrs. Lorcta Ivanova Grigorova (Executive olficer) - has no shareholding and/ or participation in management 

and control bodies of companies other than the Bank. 

4. Mrs, Silvia Kirilova Kirilova (Member of the Management Board) - Data on shareholding and/ or participation in 

management and control bodics of companies other than the Bank: 

  

  

        

Company name Direct shareholding of more than 25% | ParticipatHon in 
of the capital or indirect control management and control 

bodies 

Kirilov & Kirilova Law Firm Managing partner 
  

e  Conflict of Interest (art. 240b of the Commerce Act) 

In pursuance of Art. 116b, para. 1, item Z of POSA and based on the Bank's Statute, the members of the Management 

Board and the Supervisory Board should avoid any direct and indirect conflicts between their interest and the 

interests of the Bank, and if such conflicts arise - promptly and fully disclose them in writing to (he relevant body 

and shall not participate or influcnce the other board members in the process of taking decisions in such cases. 

None of the members of the Bank's Supervisory or Management Board has a potcntial conflict of interest between 

their duties to the Bank, on one side, and their poersonal interests, on the other. 

Nonc of the members of the Supervisory and Management Board of the Bank or any person related thereto has 

entered into any transactions with the Bank outside of its ordinary activitics. All transactions between the Bank and 

members of the Supervisory and Management Board, to the extent that there are such, were concludcd under 

market conditions and after receiving approvals according to the Bank's Statute and its operational rules, taking 

into account and applying the reguirements of the internal rules for disclosure and avoidance of conflicts of interest 

and cnsuring confidentiality. 

e Shares acguired, owncd and transferred by members of the Supcervisory Board and the 
Management Board 

In 2022, no other member of the Supervisory Board or the Management Board acguircd or transferrced sharcs of 

the Bank's capital. 

e Rights ofthe members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Hoard to acguire shares and 

bonds of the Bank 

The members of the Bank's Managcement and Supervisory Board do not have spcecial rights and privilecges for buying 

securities issucd by the Bank. The bank does not have a bonus plan for granting options on its own sharcs. 
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IN. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

As of 31 December 2022 no significant events have been identified. 
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IV. EXPECTED FUTURE DEVELOPMENT AND PLANS FOR 2022 

BACB 's 2023 financial plan: 

e Is based on the approved strategic goals for the period 2021-2023 and the updated guidelines of the 

Management Board for 2023; 

e Determines the short-term development goals of the institution and the resources reguired to achieve them 
in 2023, taking into consideration the external and internal factors at the time of its development, competitive 

environment, dangers/risks and new development opportunities; 

e Contains a brief analysis and assessment of the external and internal environment, forecast and 

expectations for development within a one-year horizon; 

e Determines the main objectives and tasks of the main structural units and activities; 

e Outlines a financial framework and a forecast for changes in the balance sheet and performance indicators; 

e Includes an assessment of capital adeguacy and its distribution by business lines; 

e It was developed in compliance with the current and upcoming regulatory reguirements regarding the 
activity of credit institutions for the period 

External factors that influence the bank's development prospects are characterized by dynamics and variability, 

which the bank is unable to directly control. The continuation and escalation of the war in Ukraine remains the 

main risk factor for the development of economies on a global scale. There is a growing number of indications of a 
deterioration of the external economic environment in the remaining months of 2022 and the beginning of 2023, 

as a result of the high prices of raw materials and resources, the increase in interest rates, the fears of a shortage 

of natural gas in Europe, which are still present. The dynamics in the prices of raw materials and resources is 

expected to will remain high, along with a subseguent increase in the prices of energy resources and food products, 

reaching levels in the middle of 2023 significantly higher than those in 2021. In view of interest rates, there is 

already a substantial increase in the reference interest rates compared to the negative territory up until a few 

months ago. The ECB increased interest rates by 0.5% (July), 0.75% (September) and by further 0.75% in October. 

High interest rates will have a negative impact on the investment activity of companies, as well as on the public 

sector spending. As a result, the EU economy will shrink in 2023 and the GDP growth in 2022 and 2024 will be 

lower 

The domestic political uncertainty and its impact on reforms and investments is a major threat to Bulgaria's 

economic growth, and the forecast is for an unstable political environment - freguent early elections and short- 

lived governments. In the autumn forecast of the Ministry of Finance, the expectations for GDP growth in 2023 

have been lowered compared to the spring forecast. GDP growth is expected to slow down to 1.6%, while domestic 

demand is also expected to decrease. For 2024-2025, GDP growth is expected to reach the range of 3.4-3.3%. The 

European Commission raised its forecast for Bulgaria's GDP growth this year from 2.8% to 3.1%. At the same time, 

expectations for 2023 were lowered from 2.3% to 1.1%. For 2024, the EC expects an acceleration of GDP growth 

to 2.4%. The EC forecasts that inflation rates in Bulgaria will reach 12.8% on average for the entire 2022 and will 

slow down to 7.4% next year. This figure is above the levels entered in the spring forecast (11.9% for 2022 and 

5% for 2023). The Commission expects inflation rates to normalize in 2024, when the indicator will reach 3.2% 

for the year. 

The key objectives in the 2023 Budget cover: 

e Effective management and utilization of capital resources by reducing non-earning assets, active 

management of loan guality, emphasis on loan protection technigues combined with preferential 

expansion of the credit portfolio with exposures to micro companies, SMES and individuals, optimal 

placement of free funds. 

e Improving the sustainability of the financing model by increasing the share of the small segment and the 

local market, extending the maturity structure, including by forming the necessary volume of acceptable 

liabilities. 

e Effective management of interest rate risk with interrelated transfer of increased interest rates on active 

and passive operations and reduction of the share of non-earning assets. 
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V. RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITY 

BACB is a credit institution and as such it does not have a dedicated R&D unit. 
The bank provides financing tailored to the specific needs of each dlient. As early as 2012, the Bank started offering 
standardized loan products to its clients under its programs for lending to individuals and Small and Medium 
Enterprises (SMES). BACB prioritizes the financing of projects with approved financial assistance under EU 
operational programmes. The Bank has a specialized department working with European programmes and 

financial institutions, with the aim of providing a full range of services to BACB's clients at all stages of the project 
implementation process under European programmes. 
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VI. TREASURY SHARES AND SHARE REPURCHASE (Art. 187e of the Commerce Act) 

The Bank doecs not hold any treasury shares and has not bought or sold its treasury shares for its own account. 

As of 31 December 2022, the Bank has two 100% subsidiarics - BACB Finance FAD and BACB Trade FAD. As of the 

samc date, thc Bank has indirect shareholding in the amount of 50% of the capital of IDS Fund AD. The financial 

results of these companies are includcd in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of 31 Dbecember 

2022. BACB Finance EAD, BACB Trade EAD and IDS Fund AD do not hold treasury sharcs, have not bought or sold 

their treasury sharcs for their own account. None of the companies included in the consolidation holds any Bank's 

shares. 

At the cnd of 2021, the procedure for voluntary liguidation of 100% of the subsidiary Paytech EOOD was completed. 
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VI. BRANCHES 

The Bank has no registered branches within the meaning of the Commerce Act. 

Apart from its Headaguarters in Sofia, 2 Slavyanska St. (registercd address of BACB), in 2022 the Bank carried out 

its activities through operational offices in Sofia (5), Burgas (2), Plovdiv (2), Varna (2), Kozloduy (1), Kardzhali (1), 

Pamporovo (1), Chepelare (1), Pleven (1), Ruse (1), Stara Zagora (1), Veliko Tarnovo (1) and Petrich (1)), offering 

a full range of banking services. The purpose of the offices is to provide additional support for the growth of the 

client base and good service level to the existing dlicnts. Information about the location of the offices can be found 

on the Bank 's website. 
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VIN. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS IS$SUED BY THE BANK 

On 23 December 2022 BACB issued an unsecured bonds issue in the amount of EUR 15,000,000. The bonds are 
issued to satisfy eguity and eligible liabilities reguirements in accordance with the provisions of the Recovery and 

Resolution of Credit Institutions and Investment Firms Act. The type of bonds issued - ordinary, interest-bearing, 

book-entry, registered, freely transferable, unsecured, non-convertible bonds. Maturity of the bonds issued is seven 
years and the total principal is payable at maturity. The interest rate is fixed and the interest amount is payable on 

six-month coupon payments. The issue is expected to be registered for trading on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange 

within 6 months after issuance, 
As of 31 December 2022 the Bank's obligation related to debt securities in issue, including accrued interest, amounts 

to EUR 15,016 thousand (2021: 0). 
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[X. STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

1. Information on compliance, as appropriate, with the Code of Corporate Governance, approved by the 

Deputy Chairman of the FSC under Art. 100n, para. 8 of the POSA 

Pursuant to the reguirements of Art. 100n, para. 8 of POSA "Bulgarian-American Credit Bank" AD declares that in 

2022 it will comply with the National Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as appropriate, approved by 

decision No. 461-KKU of 30.06.2016 of the member of the FSC, exercising the powers of the deputy chairman of the 

FSC, managing the “Supervision of investment activity” department for a corporate governance code under Art. 

100n, para. 8, item 1, letter “a” of POSA, as last amended and supplemented in July 2022 

The text of the National Corporatec Governance Code is published on the website of the Financial Supervision 

Commission www.fscbg 

2. Information on corporate governance practices applied by the Bank in addition to the National 

Corporate Governance Code 

The bank helieves that the provisions of the National Corporate Governance Code sufficiently cover the 

reguirements for good corporate governance of companies. In this regard, the Bank does not apply additional 

corporate governance practices other than those established by the National Corporate Governance Codc. 

3. Explanations on the parts of the Corporate Governance Code, approved by the Deputy Chairman of 

the FSC under Art. 100n, para. 8 of the POSA, which are not complied with by the Bank and grounds 
thercof 

Clarifications for certain corporate practices applicd by the Bank: 
( 1) - , ANEE ` a " D 

Based on a decision from April 2012 and a decision from 17 May 2018, the Management Board approved a Code of 

Conduct (Code of Ethics) for the Bank's cmployccs, determining the basic principles, ethical standards and 

corporate values, used as basis for the Bank's policics and business plans, rules and procedures in the day-to-day 

operational work of the Bank and applicd by the employees in their duties. The adopted Code of Ethics is applicable 

to all employees, as well as to the Bank's management. In this regard, the Management Board has not adopted an 

ethical code of conduct applicable only to the members of the Management Board, different from the one that applies 

to the entire Bank. 

   

    

The remunerations paid in 2022 to the executive members of the Bank's Management Board (executive officers) 

are made up of basic remuneration only. 

For his activities, the member of the Managemcnt Board of the Bank, who is not in charge of the operational 

management and representation of the Bank to third partics ("non-executive” member of the Board), does not 

receive remuneration under a managemecnt contract. 

  

Given the advisory nature of the provision and thc absence of such a reguirement in the applicable legislation, no 

such restriction has been introduccd in the Bank. BACB AD believes that the reguirements for independence 

according to Art. 116a of POSA sufficiently guarantee the interests of the company and its sharcholders (including 

minority shareholders). 

  

In vicew of the fact that the Bank is a “credit institution"” within the meaning of the Crcdit Institutions Act, the 

reguirements of Art. 10, para. 5 of the Credit Institutions Act and the Regulations on thc Implementation of the law 

xlviii



Bulkarian - Amerkan Credit Bank AD 

Consoldated Actvity Report 

As at 31 December 2022 

shall apply. The regulatory framework sets out in detail the positions that a person - a member nf the Managerial 

and supervisory bedy ofa bank - has the right to occupy. BACB AD believes that the regulatory provision is sufficient, 
BACB complies with the established regulatory reguirements. 

(5) Ari - 

  

In view of the spercificity of BACB as a credit institutian and the provision of Art. 76, para. 4 of the CIA, BACB aligns 

in advance with the BNB the selection of the Bank's auditors. In view of the applicable legislation, in 2022 a joint 
audit of BACB AD was carried out by two audit companies. 

  

The bank complies with the legally established rules under the Commerce Act and POSA regarding the organization 
and conduct of general meetings of shareholders, and these rules sufficiently guarantee the egual treatment and 
rights of shareholders during the General Meetings of shareholders. In 2022, the Bank also adopted Rules for 
corporate events, identification of shareholders and holding a general meeting of shareholders. 

       
      

(7) Art. 32 of the Code: "The 
         

                   mal and ipterim statements and the procedure for disclosing 

The bank complies with the reguirements of the applicable legislation according to POSA and the by-laws on its 

implementation, which regulate to a sufficient extent the reduirements for the preparation of the annual and interim 
financial statements, With regards to the disclosure of information, the relevant provisions of the BAGB's Internal 
Rules for the Implementation of Measures Against Market Abuse with Financia! Instruments shall apply. 

4. Description of the main characteristics of the internal contrel and risk management systems in 

relation to the financial reporting process 

  

The risk control function at BACB is performed by the Risk Management Directorate, which reports directly to the 
Executive Officer responsible for Risk Management. As part of the Bank's organizational structure, the directorate 

is directly subordinated to the sectoral Executive Officer of the Bank. Pursuant to the ruies of procedure and 
organizational structure of the Bank, the “Risk Management" department is independent from the business areas 

responsible for lending, client operations and investments, which are directly subordinated to another Executive 

officer. 

In order to ensure consistency between the Bank's strategic objectives set by the management and the activities of 

the directorates, including the Risk Management Directorate, the management has developed a matrix with risk 
indicators, which are monitored by the Audit Committee on a guarterly basis. 

  

The system af control processes for identification, measuring, monitoring and managing risks in the Bank is based 

on the internal rules and procedures, the functional characteristics of the individual units and the job descriptions 
of the employees. 
The procedure for limit-setting in the Bank is strictly regulated and, depending on the level within the organizational 
structure, is approved and discussed by the higher levels of management. 
In 2022, no violations of the procedure for setting powers and limits were found. 

GCredit risk 
The credit process at the Bank is based on the principie of division of functions and competences for analysis, 
decision-making for credit approval, management and control over credit transactions. The independence of the 

units involved in contro] functions from the business areas is ensured. 
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The activities of identification, monitoring, management of credit risk and limitation of its negative effect are 
regulated in the adopted intermal regulatory documents - Risk Management Policy, Credit Actvity Policy, 
Instructions for lending te SMEs and corporate dlients, Instructions for providing consumer and mortgage loans to 

individuals, Rules far control, managerment and collection of problematic exposures, Internal rules for operations 

on the financial markets - limits by counterparty banks, Work manuals. The rules are mandatory for the structural 
units of the Bank, directly involved in the lending activity. They examine the transactions in detail - bearers of eredit 
risk, the powers of the structural units and employees engaged in lending activity, the authorization powers, the 
procedures and activities for preliminary, Current and subseguent control, the type and amount of collateral 

accepted, the insurances reguired and other technigues for risk mitigation. 
The process af approving loan transactions, respectively, the decision-making levels are clearly defined in the 

rurrent rules and approved by the Management Board of BACB AD. The composition of the committees that take 
decisions on credit transactions is determined by the Managernent Board, and each Dne includes persons 

representing the Bank. 

Credit risk monitoring is performed on an individual transaction level, as well as on a portfolio basis. 

Periadic reporting on credit risk, including information on the state of the credit portfolio, compliance with internal 
and regulatory limits, the level of concentration risk, etc. is presented both to the Bank's management and at the 
regular meetings of the Independent Audit Committee, the Risk Committee and the Supervisory Board. 
The limits related to the Bank's credit activity comply with the reguirements of the Credit Institutions Act, the 
external regulatary framework - directives, regulations, the ordinances of the BNB and best banking practices. 
Exceeded limits are reported in writing to the Bank's senior management. 
Limits for counterparty exposures are determined by the Assets and Liabilities Management Committee, within the 

rights delegated to the Committee by the Baard of Directors. The Markets and Liguidity Department reviews new 
proposals for counterparty limits, coordinates them with tite Risk Management Directorate and submits them for 

approval to the ALMC at least once a vear. The “Markets and Liguidity'” Department may propose for approval by 
the ALMC the change, deletion or addition of counterparties if necessary and in the event of a change in the market 
situation or the position of a certain counterparty. 
The bank has adopted an internal policy and procedures for monitoring and classifying its risk exposures and 
determining experted credit losses. These documents regulate the terms and conditions for identifying excessive 
credit risk and forming impairment losses. The specialized internal body for monitoring, evaluation and 

classification of risk exposures, analyzes the available information and determines the amount of expected credit 

losses on a monthly basis. 

Market risk 
Market risk management in the Bank is afmed at svstematically identifying, assessing, analyzing, limiting, 

monitoring and reporting market risk. The functions and responsibilities of the identification units The market risk 
management framework is defined in the Internal rules for identifying, measuring and managing market risks in 
the activities of BACB AD, the Risk management policy, the Rules for the operations on the financial markets, Rules 

for management of securities in a banking and trading portfolio, the precedures for approval of transactions of the 
Payments Directorate. 

The main principles underlying market risk management are: defining and approving a market risk strategy by the 
BACB Management Board, as part of the overall risk management strategy; separation of responsibilities between 

the persons who assume and currently manage the risk and those who contra] it. The ongeing management of risk 
and execution of transactions on the financial markets by BACB is carried out by the Markets and Liguidity 
Department, in accordance with the Bank's strategy and according to the decisions of the Asset and Liability 

Management Committee (ALMC) and the Management Board. The control of market risks and methodological 
guidance on the processes is performed by the Risk Management Directorate. 

The bank has defined a system of limits aimed at mitigating market risks in its daily operations. The limits are 
grouped according to the relevant market risk category. Limits/levels of competence have also been determined by 

types of activities of the employees of the Markets and Liguidity Department. 

The internal rules for operations on the financial markets determine a list of widely traded currencies with which 

the Bank trades, limits for the transactions on the local and international interbank foreign exchange market and 
limits for open currency positions. The compliance with the currency trading limit is monitored at a system level. A 
change in the limits is made after a corresponding approval by the ALMC. Exceeding limits and/or daily ratios of an 
open currency position by counterparty, instrument, etc, is only allowed with the permission of the Executive 
officer. In 2022, no violations of the restrictive thresholds set were reported.
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Interest rate risk 
The Bank's interest rate position is monitored and managed on an ongoing basis by the Markets and Liguidity 

Department, which reports to the Assets and Liabilities Management Committee on a monthly basis. The Asset and 

Liability Management Cammittee assesses the interest rate risk of the bank in the general context of all banking 

operations and activities. The “Operational, market and other risks” Department under the Risk Management 
Directorate carries out independent ongoing control over the open interest position, monitors the risk indicators 

regarding interest imbalances and draws up guarterly reports to the management. 
BACB's policy is to reduce interest rate risk by granting loans with a floating interest rate combined with the 
application of fixed flaar thresholds so as to limit the potential negative impact resulting from non-parallel or time: 

varving changes in asset and liability interest rates. 

price ris! 

The Bank strives for optimal price risk management, with investments in securities approved by the Asset and 
Liability Management Committee after analyzing the credit risk of the relevant issuer and the potential profits ata 

transaction level. The bank does not keep a trading portfolio. The portfolio is conservative from a counterparty risk 
point af view - the investments are mainly made in Bulgarian government securities. 

) tonal ris] 

The operational risk control system includes rules and methodologies that are applied in the operational risk 
management, as well as the effective systems limiting errors or abuses. 

The operational risk management framework combines: 

1. The Bank's risk management strategy and the level of risk tolerance, defined in the Risk Management 
Policy; 

2. An organizational model based on the principle of separation of responsibilities between risk management 

and control and including three main pillars - risk identification and management by individual business lines, 
independent review, assessment and reporting of risk by the operationat risk management function, independent 
verification of controls, processes and systems used to manage operational risk by internal and/or external auditors 

3. An accountability system covering the preparation of reports and information on the nature and reasons 
for the occurrence of significant operational events, as well as a comprehensive analysis and assessment of the 

dynamics of registered events by categories and business lines and aimed at providing timely and accurate 
information to support business unit heads, the management and the Management Board in taking appropriate 

decisions for the purpose of enhancing the effectiveness of the operational risk management framework 
As of 31 December 2022, operational risk management is carried out by the "Risk Management” directorate assisted 
by the heads of individual units of the Bank under the direct supervision of the Management Board. 

The Bank has developed an Action Plan in the event of unforeseen circumstances, ensuring the continuity of the 
Bank's activities, adopted by the Management Board on 30 August 2012, updated by a decision of the Management 
Board of 05.2021, the purpose of which is to ensure the continuity of the activities. BACB has a UPS (for the 
Headaguarters and the offices]) in order to maintain the operations in the event cf an emergency power outage. In 

2022, no technigues described in the Plan were applied. 

oomo Ris) 

Related to legal and regulatory penalties, material financial loss or loss of reputation as a result of failure to comply 
with laws, regulations, internal rules and standards, the code of business conduct applicable to banking (collectively 

referred to as compliance with laws, rules and standards). 

The Bank has developed the compliance function (" Compliance "), carried out by the "Regulatory compliance and 
control” department, which identifies and assesses the risk of regulatory non-compliance by the Bank, monitors 
and controls all activities, measures taken to mitigate the risks of regulatory non-compliance, controls the entry of 

the changes in the regulations applicable to the banking activity in the internal policies, rules and procedures of 

compliance of the Bank's activities with them, reports the risks of regulatory non-compliance to the Management 

Board and the Supervisory Board of the Bank, provides training and consulting activities on compliance issues 

within the Bank. Compliance with the regulatory reguirements is a responsibility of all employees and managers of 

the Bank, but it is also an integral part of its corporate culture. The scope of the function covers, as a priority for 
regulatory compliance and control, all regulations, laws, ordinances, instructions related to banking activity. The 
entire internal banking system shall be provided with a sufficient gualitative and guantitative set of policies, rules 
and pracedures complying with regulatory and legal reguirements. The Bank's regulatory compliance function 
regularly reports to the Management on important amendments in the regulatory framework regarding internal 
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bank policics and rulcs. The identified risks of non-compliance are also reported, as well as targeted measures for 

their mitigation and effective management. The Bank has developed a policy and rules for the implementation and 

organization of the compliance function, which are allocated among all employees of BACB, who have to be familiar 

with them and strictly observe them. 

Audit services 

The audit companics auditing the annual financial statements of the Bank (individual and consolidated) also issuc 

a Report on the reliability of the internal control systems pursuant to Article 76, paragraph 7, item 1 of the Credit 

Institutions Act and Ordinance 14, Article 5 on the content of thc audit report for supervisory purposes as at 

December 31, 2022 (Ernst & Young Audit OOD and Afa OOD has issucd such a report for the Bank as of December 

31, 2021). 

5. Information under Art. 10(1)(:), (d). (f, (h) and (i) of Directive Z004/25/EC of the European 

Parliament and of the Council of 21 April 2004 on takeover bids 

(1) Significant direct or indirect sharcholdings (including indirect shareholdings through pyramid structurcs 

and cross sharcholdings) within the meaning of Art. 85 of Directive 2001/34/EC 

As of 31.12.2022, the Bank 's sharcholder structure is as follows: 

31.12.2022 

Number of 

  

  

Shareholder shares held % of the capital 

“CSIE” AD 11277 473 45.68 

LTBI Holdings LLC 8 824 755 35.74 

'Tzvetelina Borislavova Karagyozova 2 465 000 9.98 

Other sharcholders 2 124 085 8.60 

Total 24 691 313 100.00 
  

The significant direct sharcholdings in the Bank's capital include the participations of the sharcholders “CSIF” AD, 

LTBI Holdings LI.C. 

Mrs. Tzvetelina Borislavova Karagyozova is a sharcholder who dircctly owns 9.98% of the capital of BACR AD and 

at the same time is a person who owns morc than 50 percent of the votes in the general meeting of shareholders of 

the direct sharcholder “CSIF” AD and accordingly, can determine morc than half of the members of its Board of 

Directors. Based on the above, Mrs. Tzvetelina Borislavova Karagyozova has a significant sharcholding (dircct and 

indirect) in the Bank's capital. 

(2) Holders of all securitiecs with special rights of control and description of such rights 

The bank has not issucd securities with special control rights. 

(3) Any restrictions on voting rights. 

The Bank's Statute does not provide for restrictions on the voting rights of sharcholders. 

Similar restrictions may arise by virtue of thc law in two cases: (a) upon cxcecding of certain thresholds of 

sharcholding without the prior consent of the BNB according to the CIA and (b) the voting of certain transactions 

with relatcd partics pursuant to Art. 114 of the POSA.
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(4) Rules regulating the appointment or replacement of members of the Supervisory Board and Management 

Board and the introduction of amendments to the statute 

“Bulgarian-American Credit Bank" AD has a two-tier management system, which consists of a Supervisory Board 
and a Management Board. The members of the Supervisory Board can be both individuals and legal entities, while 
the members of the Management Board can only be individuals. 

Supervisory Board 

The Bulgarian legislation and the Bank's Statute provide that the Supervisory Board must consist of at least three 
and no more than seven members, and currently the Supervisory Board of BACB AD consists of three members. The 

members of the Supervisory Board are elected and dismissed by decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, 

adopted by a two-thirds majority of the shares presented at the meeting. According to the Public Offering of 
Securities Act, at least one third of the members of the Supervisory Board must be independent persons (i.e. they 

shall not be shareholders owning 25% or more of the Bank's capital, employees or persons in lasting commercial 
relations with the Bank, persons related to the aforementioned, to another member of a Bank 's board, as well as to 

the Bank itself). 

The Supervisory Board appoints and dismisses the members of the Management Board and approves the election 
and authorization of the executive officers (two or more executive members of the Management Board), as well as 
the withdrawal of such authorization. 

Management board 

The Bulgarian legislation and the Bank's Statute provide that the Management Board consists of at least three and 

no more than nine members, and currently the Management Board of BACB AD consists of four members, three of 

whom are executive members (Chief Executive Officer and executive officers). The members of the Management 

Board are appointed and dismissed by the Supervisory Board, which also reguires BNB's approval. 
The Bank's Statute provides that a guorum of at least half of all members of the Management Board is reguired for 
holding a valid meeting and taking decisions. As a rule, the decisions of the Management Board are adopted by a 
simple majority, unless the law or the Statute provide otherwise. The Management Board, with the approval of the 

Supervisory Board, elects at least two of its members as executive members (executive officers) to represent the 

Bank and be responsible for its activities. The members of the Management Board can be re-elected without 

restrictions, and can be dismissed at any time by the Supervisory Board. Pursuant to the provisions of the applicable 

law, any Member of the Management Board may resign by giving a six-month written notice addressed to the Bank. 

Amendments and additons to the Statute 

The Bank's Statute provides that the decision on the approval of amendments and additions to the Bank's Statute 

shall be adopted by a majority of at least two-thirds of the voting shares present at the General Meeting of 
Shareholders. In addition, any change in the Statute is subject to prior approval by the BNB. 
The amendments and additions to the Bank's Statute shall enter into force from the date of entry of the decision in 
the Trade Registry and the approval of the BNB. 

(5) Powers of the members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board and, in particular, the right 
to issue or redeem shares. 

Supervisory Board 

The main powers of the Supervisory Board are to exercise ongoing control over the activities of the Management 

Board, including approval of the Bank 's business strategy and its three-year business plan. The Supervisory Board 
monitors the functioning of the risk management and control systems, as well as the management information 
systems. The Supervisory Board has the authority to appoint and dismiss members of the Management Board, to 
approve the election and authorization of the executive officers (two or more executive members of the 

Management Board), as well as the withdrawal of this authorization. 

Management board 
The Management Board directs the activities of the Bank in compliance with the law. The Management Board takes 
decisions on all issues that are not within the exclusive competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the 
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Supervisory Board. The Management Board reports its activities to the Supervisory Board and to the General 

Meeting of Shareholders. 

Issuance of shares 

The Bank may increase its capital by issuing new shares in accordance with the current legislation, including: (1) in 

order to borrow new funds, (2) convert part of the Bank's profit into capital, (3) transform part of the funds into 
reserve fund into capital and (4) convert bonds issued as convertible into shares. 
Tae Bank's capital cannot be increased by increasing the nominal value of already issued shares or by converting 

bonds that have not been issued as convertible ones, into shares. 

The Bank's capital cannot be increased by contributions in kind or on the condition that the shares will be acguired 

by certain persons, in violation of the shareholders' pre-emptive right (in compliance with Articles 193, 195 and 

196, paragraph 3 of the Commerce Act] , except in the cases specifically provided for by law. 

As an exception, under the conditions provided for in Art. 113, para. 2 of POSA (within the framework of the Bank 's 

recovery program or based on an order by the BNB, if this is reguired for the purpose of am acguisition or an offer 
for the exchange of shares, as well as to ensure the rights of holders of convertible bonds or warrants) the Bank's 
capital can be increased in accordance with Articles 193, 195 and 196, Paragraph 3 of the Commerce Act. The 

inerease with contributions in kind reguires written permission from the BNB. 
According to Art. 24, item 2 of the Statute of BACB AD, the competent authority for adopting a decision for capital 

increase is the General Meeting of Shareholders. 

Share redemption 
The decision to redeem shares falls within the exclusive competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders. In 

addition, the Bank may redeem its shares subject to a written approval by the BNB pursuant to the Credit 

Institutions Act, the Commerce Act, POSA and other applicable laws. 

The bank cannot exercise its rights on the redeemed shares. These rights can be exercised only after the Bank has 

transferred the shares to third parties. 

In 2022, the Bank did not undertake any share redemptions. The bank does not hold any of its own shares. The bank 

did not grant loans against its own shares, nor did it accept its own shares as collateral. The bank was not a party to 

anvy of the transactions described in art. 187e and 187f of the Commerce Act. 

6. Composition and functioning of the Management and Supervisory bodies of the Bank and their 
committees 

Supervisory Board 
As of 31 December 2022, the BACB Supervisory Board consists of three members: 

1. Mrs.Tzvetelina Borislavova Karagyozova, Chairperson 

2. Mr. Petar Georgiev Atanasov 

3. Mr. Martin Bovchev Ganev, independent member 

The main powers of the Supervisory Board are to exercise ongoing control over the activities of the Management 

Board, including approval of the Baak's business strategy and its three-year business plan. The Supervisory Board 

also monitors the functioning of the risk management and control systems, as well as the management information 

systems. The Supervisory Board has the authority to appoint and dismiss members of the Management Board, to 

approve the election and authorization of the executive officers (two or more executive members of the 

Management Board), as well as to withdraw such authorization. The approval of the Supervisory Board is also 

reguired for the decisions of the Management Board regarding: 

e theBank'sinternal and organizational structure and significant organizational changes; 

e the internal rules governing the scope, conditions and procedure for transactions and operations of the 

Bank; 

e opening and closing branches; 

e increase of the Bank's capital, pursuant to the authorization of the Management Board according to the 

Statute; 
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e theacguisition and disposal of shares, in the cases provided for by law and the Statute; 

e  draftsontheamendment of the Statute; 

e transactions with real estate, other than those related to enforcement on loan collateral and exceeding the 

thresholds set by the Rules of the Supervisory Board and other internal rules of the Bank; 

e authorization of proxies; 

e provision of loans forming a large exposure of more than 10% of the Bank's capital and loans to members 
of the Bank's boards and administrators; and 

e issuance of bonds at a nominal value of the issue exceeding 1/3 of the Bank's capital base. 

Management board 
As of 31 December 2022, the Management Board of BACB consists of four members: 

1. Mr.Ilian Petrov Georgiev, member of the Management Board and Chief Executive Officer 

2. Mr.Aleksandar Dimitrov Dimitrov, member of the Management Board and Executive officer 

3. Mrs. Loreta Ivanova Grigorova, member of the Management Board and Executive officer; 

a Mrs. Silvia Kirilova Kirilova, member of the Management Board 

The Management Board directs the activities of the Bank in compliance with the law. The Management Board takes 

decisions on all issues that do not fall within the exclusive competence of the General Meeting of Shareholders and 
the Supervisory Board. The Management Board reports its activities to the Supervisory Board and to the General 

Meeting of Shareholders. 

The most important decisions of the Management Board that reguire approval by the Supervisory Board, are 

described above. 

Audit Comnmittee 

BACB's Audit Committee consists of three members, two of which being members of the Supervisory Board and one 

member is independent of the Supervisory Board, as follows: 

1. Mr. Martin Boychev Ganev, member of the Supervisory Board, chairman of the Audit Committee; 

2. Mr.Petar Georgiev Atanasov, member of the Supervisory Board; 

3. Mrs. Sevdalina Velkova Paskaleva, independent member of the Audit Committee; 

The Audit Committee is a specialized body of the Bank, the functions of which comply with the Independent 
Financial Audit Act. 

The audit comnmittee is elected by the General Meeting of the Bank's shareholders and performs the following 

functions: 

e  controlsthe guality and integrity of the accounting policy, financial statements and information disclosure 

practices; 

e monitorsthe processes involved in the financial reporting activity; 

e monitors the compliance with the applicable regulatory provisions, tax obligations and relevant internal 
regulations and “business ethics” rules; 

e monitorstheindependence and effectiveness of the internal audit; 

e Supervises the external (independent) auditors and monitors their independence in accordance with the 
reguirements of the applicable legislation or regulatory bodies, including in cases of provision of additional 
services; 

e monitors the effectiveness of internal control systems; 
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e monitorsthe effectiveness of risk management systems; 

e recommends to the General Meeting the selection of external (independent) auditors to perform an 
independent financial audit 

Risk Comnmittee 
BACB's Risk Committee was created based on a decision of BACB $upervisory Board dated 9 September 2014. The 
fanctions and duties of the Committee are set out in accordance with the reguirements of Regulation No. 7 of the 
BNB on the organization and management of risks. The Risk Committee consists of the three members of the 

Supervisory Board as follows: 

1. Mr.Petar Georgiev Atanasov, Chairman; 

2. Mrs.Tzvetelina Borislavova Karagyozova; 

3, Mr. Martin Boychev Ganev; 

The Risk Committee assists the Supervisory Board and the Management Board in the management, monitoring and 

control of the risks assumed by the Bank. The Risk Committee also performs the following functions: 

s advises and consults the $upervisory Board and the Managcment Board on the current and future risk 

tolerance/appetite, as welt as on the control over the implementation of the Bank's strategy; 

. monitors the effectiveness of the framework, systems and processes related to risk management and 
proposes to the Supervisory Board and the Management Board measures to improve the existing 

organization and controls; 

e verifies theadeguacy of the incentives applied according to the Remuneration Policy in relation to capital, 

liguidity, implementation of the business plan 

e monitors the applied pricing policy and makes proposals to tiie Supervisory Board and the Management 

Board for correction in casc of anv identified deviations from the business model and risk strategy: 

” assiststheSupervisory Board and the Management Board in the control and evaluation of the adeguacy of 

the Bank's capital, liguidity and funding sources; 

e monitors the compliance with the interna! rules and their compliance with the legal regulations. 

Remuneration Cemmittee 

The Bank does not have a Remuneration Committee as an independent ausiliary body. All functions, dutics and 

powers related to remuneration administration at the Bank according to BACB's Remuneration Policy and 

Regulation No. 4 of the BNB on remuneration in banks, are carried out by the Supervisory Board of BACB. 

7. Diversity pelicy implemented by the Bank in relation to its management and supervisory bodies 

BACB, as a “credit institution” within the meaning of the CIA, is subject to special iegally established criteria in the 
selection and approval of candidates for members of the Bank's boards, including but not limited to reguirements 

for education, gualificatian and professional experience, reliability and suitability, etc. 

BACB declares the following information in relation to diversity in the Supervisory Board and the Management 
Board: 

$upervisory Board 

e A members of the Supervisory Board of BACB AD have completed higher education with an acguired 

educational and gualification degree not lower than "Master”; 

e AI members of the Supervisory Board have sufficient gualifications for the relevant education and 

professional experience in banking; 

e Allmembers of the Supervisory Board meet the other reduirements for gccupying the relevant position n 

accordance with the reguirements of the Credit Institutions Act and Ordinance No. 20 of the BNB on the 
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Issuance of Approvals for Members of the Management Board (Board of Directors) and the Supervisory 

Board of a credit institution and reguirements in connection with the performance of their functions: 

The Supervisory Board includes both men and women (the chairman of the Supervisory Board is a woman 

and the other two members are men); 

Management board 

All members of the Management Board of BACB AD have completed higher education with an acguired 

educational-gualiftcation degree not lower than "Master", with three of the members of the Management 

Board having a completed higher economic/financial education, and one Member of the Management 

Board has completed higher legal education; 

The executive members of the Management Board (executive officers)] have occupied a position with 

management functions in a bank or in a company or institution comparable to a bank for at least 5 years; 

All members of the Management Board meet the other reguirements for occupvying the relevant position in 

accordance with the reguirements of the Credit Institutions Act and Regulation No. 20 of the BNB on the 

Issuance of Approvals for Members of the Management Board (Board of Directors) and the Supervisory 

Board of a credit institution and reguirements relating to the performance of their functions; 

The Management Board includes both men and women (two of the Management Board members are 

women and the rest are men); 

In addition, the Bank applies and observes the following principles as part of the diversity principle in the 

composition of the Supervisory Board and Management Board: 

the composition of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board are structured in a way that 
guarantees the professional approach, impartiality and independence of their decisions in relation to the 

Bank's activities; 

after their election, the members of the Boards familiarize themselves with the main legal and financial 

issues related to the Bank's activities; 

the members of the Boards continuously expand their professional gualifications; 

tie members of the Boards have the necessary time to fulfill their tasks and responsibilities; the executive 

members of the Management Board (executive officers) are present daily at the company's registered 

address; 

Based on the above, BACB believes that the compliance with the above principles and standards sufficiently 
guarantees greater transparency of the information provided by the Bank, leads to better results with limited costs, 

better management of non-financial risks, etc. The compliance and the disclosure of these principles act as a catalyst 

for increasing and improving the Bank's results in the field of corporate social responsibility, which can bring a 
positive impact on the society's and, accordingly, the consumers' perception of the Bank. 

The disclosures contained in this Annual Activity Report related to the actions and policies implemented by the 

Bank in the field of ecology and environmental protection lead to better management of resources and internal 

sustainability awareness. 
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X. INFORMATION UNDER APPENDIX NO. 2 TO ART. 10 OF REGULATION NO. 2 OF THE 
FSC 

(1) Information on the main categories of services provided, revenues and sources of revenues and 
their dynamics in 2022 

Bulgarian-American Credit Bank AD is a licensed credit institution holding a full license to perform all banking 

activities under the Credit Institutions Act, and respectively - the main categories of services offered by BACB 
include lending and other financing for its own account and risk and publicly attracting deposits and other 
repayable funds. Detailed information on attracted deposits and granted loans is provided in Section | "Review of 
the financial position" of this Report. 

Sources of revenue and their dynamics in 2022 

The table below provides a breakdown of the sources of income of the Bank on a consolidated basis, as well as the 

variance in revenue by source in 2022 as compared to 2021. 

  

2022 2021 2022/2021 

INCOME 000 EUR % 000 EUR % %A 

Interest Income 28 748 62.18 25 517 75.85 12.7% 

Fees and commission income, net 7 594 16.42 5 976 17.76 271% 

:ï‘er RI 9892 2140 2148 639 360.8% 

TOTAL 46 234 100% 33 641 100% 37.4% 
  

The interest income represented over 62.18% of the Bank's total income for 2022. For a further discussion, please 

see section Results of Operations above. 

Main markets, sources of funds and concentration of borrowers and lenders 

The Bank operates in Bulgaria, where it generates its income. 

BACB does not have investments abroad except for funds placed in the interbank money markets and current 

accounts with international banks with high level credit rating. The debt securities portfolio of the Bank includes 

mainly Bulgarian government bonds. In 2022 the Bank continued and broadened the presenting of deposit products 

for individuals and households on the German and Spain Markets. at Y /e 2022 the deposits from Germany represent 

1.9% and these from Spain - 0.3% of the total deposits from clients and 1.8% and 0.3% of the liabilities of the Group. 

Because of the significant number of clients from Germany, there is no single client on the German market with 

share larger than 10% of the total expenses. 

The Loan Portfolio of the Bank includes mainly loans to clients from Bulgaria. As of December 31 2022 and 2021 

there are no exposures towards other countries that exceed 10% of the amount of the Bank's assets. Meanwhile 

there is no single dlient which have received more than 10% of the operating expenses of BACB (including interest 

expenses, fees and commissions expenses and non-interest expenses). 

For a detailed discussion on sources of funds, please, see section Capital Resources above. 

(3) Major transactions or transaction essential to the operations in 2022 

In accordance with the reguirements of Ordinance No. 2, the Bank has adopted a materiality threshold of its 
transactions eguivalent to the thresholds specified under Art. 114 POSA. 
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In 2022 the Bank did not enter into large-value transactions under Art. 114(1) POSA as regards its assets or 

liabilities. 

(4) Transactions with related parties, transactions outside of the normal scope of activity or 

unusual transactions 

In 2022 the Bank has executed transactions with related parties within the scope of its regular activities and 

under the market conditions. The main transactions with related parties represent deposits to the managerial and 

control bodies, credit exposures to subsidiaries and other related parties. For details on transactions with related 

parties, please see Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 2022. 

(5) Unusual events and indicators with significant impact on the operations 

There are no such events and indicators for 2022. 

(6) Off-balance sheet exposures 

The unutilized commitments on loans represent funds that are committed but not yet disbursed to barrowers. At 

31 Decemher 2022 unutilized commitments on laans represented 10.4% of net loans (2021 - 8.4%). For a 

detailed breakdown of off-balance sheet exposures, please see the Selected Statistical Information above and Note 

28 to the 2022 Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank. 

(7) Information on shareholdings and investments 

The fair value of the securities classified "at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income" as of 31 Decemhber 

2022 is presented in Note 17 to the Separate Financial Statements for 2022. 

At 31 December 2022 the Bank had the following participations in other companies: 

Owner Companv #ofshares Nominalwvalue Dateof % 

held of 1 share acguisition shareholding 

BACB BACB Finance 3,000,090 1.00 4713/2006 100.00% 

EAD  (previous 

name Kapital 

Direct EAD) 

BACB BACB Trade EAD 50,000 1.00 6/13/2013 100.00% 

BACB Bulgarian  Stock 20,000 1.00 13/03/2003 0.30% 

Exchange 

D BACB Paynetiks AD 34 306 8.00 12.032020 7,78% 

D BACB Phyre AD 82 657 1.00 12.032020 8,7% 

BACR Tiksi AD 5,385 1,00 26.04.2021 6,25% 

The main real estate owned or leased by the Bank for operational purposes are the following: 

  

  

  

Address Description Type of rights Area (m2) 

2 Slavyanska St. Headauarters Rental Agreement | 2 691,43 

1000 Sofia valid by December | (78,912% 

2026 of the entire 

building 

area)           
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rlf-i i(ra-krá SL Building for | Rental Agreement | 2 258 sa.m. 

1504 Sofia operational activity | valid by December 

2024 

202 Vitosha Blvd. Yuzhen park Office | Rental Agrcement | 184.47 
Sofia valid by December 

2027 o 
159 Tsarigradsko Shose Blvd. Iztok Office Rental Agreement | 182 

Sofia valid by April 2026 

13 Henrih lüéen St. Paradise Office Rental Agrceement | 255,30 

Sofia, 1407 valid by December 

2023 

14 Vanga St Petrich Office Rehtal Agreement '3(—)6 ' 

Petrich valid by January 2025 

6 Belgrade St. Plovdiv 1 Office Rental Agreement | 287 
4000 Plovdiv valid by May 2027 

152 Shesti Sepie&&ri Blvd. Plovdiv 2 Office Rental Agrcement | 115 

4000 Plovdiv valid by July 2027 

76 Tsar Simeon Veliki Rlvd. Stara Zagora Office | Rental Agreement | 179 

6000 Stara Zagora valid by March 2028 

68 Bratya Miladinovi Sl | Varna Office Rental Agreement | 253 

9000 Varna valid by January 2027 

100 Osmi Primorski Polk Blvd. | Orbita Office Rental Agreement | 102,66 

Varna valid by March 2024 

5 Adam Mitskevich St Burgas 1 Office Property right 157 

 Burgas 

57 Ferdinandova SL Burgas 2 Office Rcntal Agreement | 592 

Burgas valid by April 2027 

1 Despot Slav St RW Kardzhali Rental Agreement | 11 

Kardzhali (Remote valid by May 2023 

M workplace) 

3 Stefan Karadzha SL Kardzhali Office Rental Agreement | 167 

Kardzhali valid by February 

2024 

4 Alcksandrovska St. Ruse Office Rental Agreement | 182 
Ruse m valid by June 2024 

15 Danail Popov St15 Pleven Office Rental Agrcemcnt | 171 

Pleven . valid by May 2024 

41 Hristo Botev St. Kozloduy Office Rental Agreement | 90,60 

Kozloduy valid by Scptember 

" 2024 

Perclik Hotcl Reception Rental Agreement | 5 
Pamporovo Desk/Pamporovo valid by December 

Office 2023 
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1 Ivaylo St. Veliko Tarnovo | Rental Agreement | 215,80 

Veliko Tarnovo Office valid by February 
2026 

7 Han Asparuh St, Chepelare office Rental Agreement | 107 

Chepelare, valid by March 2028 

Chepelare Municipality 

1B Vasil Levski St. Trade premise Rental Agreement | 655,84 

Village of Kazichene, valid by October 2029 

Pancharevo Region 

Sofia           

For the subseguent accounting of its investment properties after their initial recognition, the Group has chosen the 

fair value model and they are valued in the statement of financial position at fair value. For the reported period Y/E 

2022 the Bank disposed of real estate properties, classified as “investment properties” with gross balance value of 

EUR 10,5 million. No new assets classified as investment properties were acguired during the year. For the reporting 

period upon Management's resolution assets held for sale with balance value of EUR 2$ thousand were reclassified 

as investment properties. The balance value of the investment properties as of Decerber 31, 2022 is EUR 42 million 

(2021: 52,9 million). 

The balance value of the assets held for sale as of the same date is EUR 12,3 million (2021: EUR 8,9 million), with 

newly acduired assets in the period in the amount of EUR 5,9 million and assets with balance value of EUR 2,5 

million were realized through sale. 

The sum of the two positions show a total decrease by 12.2% compared to the previous year. 

These assets are subject to future disposition that is facilitated by a specialized unit in the Bank. 

Details on these categories at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are provided in Note 18 and Note 20 to the 

Consolidated Financial Statements of the Bank. 

(1) Information on the loan agreements concluded by the issuer and by the subsidiaries in their 

capacity as borrowers. 

As stated above, the Bank uses financing from "Bulgarian Development Bank” AD under the partnership program 
of BDB "Napred". A detailed description of the parameters of the financial agreement is contained above in $ection 

I "Overview and selected financial information", section “Capital resources" of this Annual Activity Report. 

The Bank's subsidiaries - “BACB Finance" EAD and “BACB Trade” EAD use financing in the form of bank loans 
provided by the Bank as a lender. A detailed description of the bank loan parameters is contained in the tables 
below. 

“BACB Finance" EAD 
Loan agreement No. 003940.03 dated 30.09.2014   

  

  

  

  

        

Lender BACB AD 

Initial size EUR 1 000 000 

Outstanding part the loan as of EUR 355 240 
31.12.2022 

Maturity 20.09.2023 
Price conditions: 6 M Euribor * surcharge, not less than 4% 

Collateral: e Pledge of funds on an account in the amount of EUR 
' 177,620.00;   
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e Pledge on receivablesunder lease agreement with Sit-97 

      
  

  

  

  

  

EOOD:; 

“BACB Trade" EAD 
Loan agreement No. 026158.01 dated 12.02.2014 

Lender BACB AD 

Initial size BGN 200,000 (EUR 102,258.38) 

Outstanding part of the loan as of | BGN 0 (EUR 0) 
31.12.2022 

Maturity 20.02.2023 
  

Management fee - 0.25% 
Commitment Fee - 0.25% 

Interest rate - 3% - fixed 

Collateral: A pledge on all present and future receivables 

Price conditions: 

  

  

Loan agreement No. 026158.03 dated 12.02.2014 
  

  

  

  

  

        
Lender BACBAD 

Inital size BGN 400 000 (EUR 204 517) 

Outstanding part of the loan as of | BGN 0 (EUR 0) 
31.12.2022 
Maturity 20.04.2023 

Price conditions: Managementfee - 0.25% 
Interest rate - 5% - fixed 
1. A second-ranking pledge on all aggregate present and future 

Collateral: secelyablee 
2. First-ranking pledge of goods in circulation / for the relevant 

transacHon 
    

Loan agreement No. 026158.06 dated 08.07.2020 
  

  

  

  

  

Lender BACB AD 

Initial size BGN 14 000 000 (EUR 7 158 086) 

Outstanding part of the loan as of | BGN 13 996 611 (EUR 7 156 354) 

31.12.2022 

Maturity 10.07.2023 

Price conditions: Managementfee - 0.5% of each amount utilized, but not more than BGN 

70 000 (EUR 35 790) 

Interestrate - 4.5% - fixed 

A first-ranking pledge on all present and future receivables 

First -ranking pledge on bank accounts 
First -ranking pledge on all oil crops 

First -ranking pledge on a financial asset 

Promissory note 

  

Collateral: 

N
R
 
Y
N
D
E
       
  

(9) Loans received and extended by the Bank including guarantees and other commitments 

The Bank is a lending institution which provides banking services, including through extending loans, providing 

bank guarantees and gathering deposits, which represent the core of its business activity. For details on the 

Group's loan portfolio and structure of funding, please, see the discussion above as welli as Notes 15, 28, 32 and 

24-25 to the Group's consolidated financial statements for 2022. 
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(10) Use of proceeds from the issuance of new bonds or shares 

On 23 December 2022 BACB issued an unsecured bonds issue in the amount of EUR 15 million. The bonds are issued 

to satisfy eguity and eligible liabilities reguirements in accordance with the provisions of the Recovery and 

Resolution of Credit Institutions and Investment Firms Act. The type of bonds issued - ordinary, interest-bearing, 

book-entry, registered, freely transferable, unsecured, non-convertible bonds. Maturity of the bonds issued is seven 

years and the total principal is payable at maturity. The interest rate is fixed and the interest amount is payable on 

Six-month coupon payments. The issue is expected to be registered for trading on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange 

within 6 months after issuance. 

As of31 December 2022 the Bank's obligation related to debt securities in issue, including accrued interest, amounts 

to EUR 15,016 million (2021: 0). 
(11) Earnings guidance and results forecasts 

The Group has a policy not to provide earnings guidance and it does not publish forecasts of its expected results. 

(12) Funding strategy and management 

Historically the Group's funding strategy has been designed around the longer-term funding reguirements of its 

target markets, and has been aiming to raise wholesale funds from domestic and foreign debt capital markets and 

international banks. As a result, the Group has not developed a large network of branches as most of its competitors 

have done.. Results of the deposit raising strategy in the last financial years are excellent and the customer deposits 

reached EUR 1 178,5 million as at December 31, 2022. 

Further information for the Bank's liguidity is provided herein above in sections “Capital Resources” and “Risk 
Management” above. 

(13) Loans and advances to customers form the main portion of the assets of the Bank. BACB shall continue to 

pursue its targets for small and medium-sized enterprise (SME) financing and will simultaneously search for 

diversification of its portfolio through exposures to corporate customers and other sectors of strong fundamentals 

such as renewable energy as well as the retail banking. The Bank prioritises the financing projects with approved 

financial grants under EU operational programmes. 

For details on the Bank's ability to finance its loan portfolio and the associated financial risks, please see sections 
Capital Resources, Liguidity and Risk Management above 

(14) Changes in the management principles of the Bank and its economic group 

In 2021, the Bank did not change its management principles. 

The bank declares that it complies, as appropriate, with the National Corporate Governance Code, approved by the 

Deputy Chairman of the Financial Supervision Commission, responsible for "Investment Supervision", as a 

Corporate Governance Code under Art. 100n, para. 7 of the POSA. 

A detailed analysis of the compliance with the principles of corporate governance under the National Corporate 
Governance Code is contained in Section VIII “ Corporate Governance Statement” above. 

(15) Internal control and risk management 

The Bank has clearly defined operating procedures regarding internal control, which are updated and 
supplemented as necessary to reflect the growing business of the Bank. The Bank's organizational structure and 
human resources policy is designed to ensure control and management of all areas of banking operations by 

competent and highly gualified employees. In addition, the Internal Audit Specialized Services supervises and audits 

the implementation of the internal control systems at the Bank and reports the results of such audits directly to the 

Supervisory Board and the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Bank's management believes that the Bank's 

internal control systems are adeguate for its size and activity, and the Bank continues to update and improve them. 

More information on risk management is contained in the Risk Management section above. 
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(16) Changesin the Bank's Management Board and Supervisory Board 

No changes were made in the composition and number of the $Supervisory Board or the Management Board of the 

Bank within the reporting period. 

(17) Banksharesheld by members of its senior management 

The table below shows the shareholdings of the members of the Supervisory and Management Boards in the Bank's 

share capital as of 31 December 2022 

Number of shares held “% of the issued share 

capital 

Tzvetelina Borislavova 2 465 000 9.98 

Martin Ganev - - 

Petar Atanasov E - 

Hian Georgiev E E 

Aleksandar Dimitrov - - 

Loreta Grigorova - - 

Silvia Kirilova 1 600 0.0065 

  

As stated above Mrs. Tzvetelina Borislavova Karagyozova is a person who exercises control over the direct majority 
shareholder of BACB - “CSIF" AD. 

Except as stated above, no member of the Bank's Supervisory and Management Board has any other shareholding 

in the Bank's capital. 

During the reporting period, the Bank did not grant options on the Bank's securities to the members of its 

management and control bodies. 

(18) Rightsand privileges of the Directors in the purchase of shares or bonds issued by the Bank 

The members of the Bank's Management and Supervisory Board do not have special rights and privileges for buying 

securities issued by the Bank. The bank does not have a bonus plan for granting options on its own shares. 

(19) Court,administrative and arbitration proceedings 

The Bank is not a party to pending court, administrative or arbitration proceedings concerning liabilities or 

receivables in the amount of 10 and/or more than 10 percent of its eguity. 

In connection with its ordinary activity and in particular for the active management of the portfolio of non- 

performing exposures, in 2021 the Bank was a party to enforcement proceedings and/or bankruptcy proceedings 

against debtors for the collection of overdue receivables. 

(20) 'Imvestor Relations Director 

Petar Lyubomirov Nikolov 

2 “Slavyanska" St 

Sofia 10090 

Tel: *35929 0 58271 

Fax: 35929445010 

E-mall: ir@bacb.bg 

Website: www.bacb.bg 
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X1. INFORMATION UNDER APPENDIX No. 3 TO ART. 10 REGULATION No. 2 of the FSC 

(1) Information on securities not admitted to trading on a regulated market 

As stated above, on 23 December 2022 BACB issued an unsecured bonds issue in the amount of EUR 15 million, ISIN 

BG2100022222. Pursuant to the terms of the issue, within 6 months of its issuance, it is planned to be registered 

for trading on the BSE, ie, as of 31.12.2023, the bond issue ISIN BG2100022222 is not admitted to trading on a 

regulated market. 

Bulgarian-American Credit Bank AD has no other securities issued that are not admitted to trading on a regulated 

market on the territory of the Republic of Bulgaria or another member-state. 

(2) Information on the direct and indirect ownership of S percent or more of the voting rights at 

the general meeting of shareholders of BACB AD 

  

  

  

Shareholder Number of shares owned | Percentage of votes at the 
(directly and/or indirectly) | General Meeting of 
as of 31.12.2022 Shareholders as of 31.12.2022 

“CSIF” AD (CSIF) directly owns 11 277 473 
shares . us 45.68% 

Tzvetelina Borislavova | Directly owned .. . '. 9.98% 
Karagyezova - directly and indirectiy | 2 465 000 shares 
as a person who exercises control over | direct (through . fhe 45.67% 
the direct shareholder CSIF AD (oWnS | sgntrolled company. “CSIE” 

99.99% of the shares of CSIF AD) and | Ap) owns R 

11277 473 shares 
  

LTBI Holdings LLC Directly owns 8 824 755 35.74%         
  

The above-mentioned information is derived from (1) the book of shareholders, kept by “Central Depository” AD, 

(2) the data from the notifications received [or the disclosure of shareholding under Art. 145 and 146 of POSA and 

(3) the powers of attorncy and accompanying founding documecnts of thc sharcholders of BACB AD provided in 

view of the General Mectings of Sharcholders. 

(3) Information on shareholders with special control rights 

None of the sharcholders of BACB AD has special control rights. 

(4) Restrictive agreements between shareholders 

The bank has no information about agreements between its sharcholders that could result in restrictions on the 

transfer of shares or on thc exercise of voting rights 

(5) Material contracis of the Bank, which enter into force, are amended or terminated due to a 

change in the control of the Bank during the implementation of a mandatory trade offering 

To the Bank's knowledge, there are no such agreements or contracts. 

lX



Bulgarian - American Credit Bank AD 

Consolidated Activity Report 

As at 31 December 2022 

Internal control and control environment 

” # na TEREF D 

(a) control environment - a description of the control environment can be found in the Risk Management Sections, 

ltem IX. Corporate Governance Statemcent, Section 3. “Description of the Main Characteristics of the Internal Control 

and Risk Management Systems in Relation to the Financial Reporting Process” of this report. 

(b) risk assessment processes in the company - a description of the Bank's contral risk assessment can be found in 

item [X. Corporate Governance Statement, sections "Risk Management” and section System of control processes for 

identifying, measuring, monitoring and managing risks; 

(A) information system, including the related busincss processes essential for financial reporting, and 

communication - a description of the Bank's information system can be found in sections "Risk Management" and 

“The Bank is dependent on complex information systems" section; 

(d) control activities - a description of tie Bank's control activities can be found in sections "Risk Management", 

“Organizational and operational independence of the risk control function from the business lines that the Bank 

monitors and controls” and “Composition and functioning of the Bank's management and supervisory bodies and 

their comnmittees”; "“Internal control and risk management"; 

(e) ongoing monitoring of controls - a description of the ongoing monitoring and control of the Bank can be found 

in the sections “Organizational and operational independence of the risk control function from the business lincs 

that the Bank monitors and contrals", “Composition and functioning of the Bank's management and supervisory 
bodies and their committees'; "Internal control and risk manapgement" 

|' 

    

23.03.2023 

"{.f 

Eo 

Iian Georgiëv Loreta Grigorova 
Chief Executive Dfficer Executive officer 
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Statutory Audit Firm # 108 Statutory Audit Firm # 015 

Ernst & Young Audit OOD AFA OOD 

Polygraphia Office Center 38 Oborishte str. 

A7A, Tsarigradsko Shose Blvd., floor 4 1504 Sofia, Bulgaria 

1124 Sofia, Bulgaria 

Independent auditors' report 

To the shareholders of 

BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of BULGARIAN- 

AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the 

consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated 

statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in eguity and 

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated 

financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view 

of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its 

consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the 

European Union (EU). 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (SAs). Our 

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for 

Accountants' International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including 

International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) together with the ethical reguirements 

of the Independent Financial Audit Act (FAA) that are relevant to our audit of the 

consolidated financial statements in Bulgaria, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with the reguirements of the IFAA and the IESBA Code. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion. 
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Emphasis of matter 

As described in Note 3 Summary of Sigrificant Accounting Policies, Basis of preparation and 

presentation of the financial statements to the consolidated financial statements, the 

accompanying consolidated financial statements, presented in EUR, were issued by the 

Group in addition to the statutory consolidated financial statements presented in BGN. We 

have audited and reported separately on the consolidated financial statements presented in 

BCN and issued our auditor's report dated 27 March 2023. Our opinion is not modified in 

respect of this matter. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 

significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These 

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 

these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter 

is provided in that context. 

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit 

of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these 

matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to 

respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 

financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures 

performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the 

accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

dit matt o)! ] udit add sed th NY udit 
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mpairment of loans and advances to customers 

The Group's disclosures about impairment of loans and advances to customers are 

included in Note 3 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies", Note 15 "Loans and 

advances to customers” and Note 32.2 “Credit risk" to the consolidated financial 

statements. 

Loans and adwvances to customers . In this area, our audit procedures included, 

represent a significant part (52%) from the . amongst others: 

total assets of the Group as at 31 December e We obtained an understanding of the 

2022 with aagregate gross carrying value monitoring and impairment process 

of EUR 735,7 19 thousand and accumulated of the Group focusing on the applied 

loss allowance of EUR 30,724 thousand. In measurement and calibration 

accordance with the reguirements of IFRS 9 methodology, the impairment model 

“Financial instruments", the Group applies used, anrd the underlying Kkey 

an impairment model based on expected assumptions, judgements and 

credit loss (ECL) estimation. parameters as well as any cChanges 
made therein. 

. r



m. 

EY 
Building a better FINANGE 
working world AGGOUN HRG 

The application of such an impairment 

model relates to a high level of calculation 
complexity and significant degree of 
management judgment 'in the ECL 
estimations as disclosed in Note 32.2 
“Credit risk". 

The key inputs, assumptions and related 
judgements in the model relate to 
developing significant increase of credit 
risk (SICR) criteria for staging of loans and 
advances to customers (Stage 1: Exposures 
with no SICR, Stage 2: Exposures with SICR 

but no objective evidence for impairment 
and Stage 3: Exposures with objective 

evidence for impairment), determining the 
probability of default (PD), the loss given 
default (LGD) and the exposure at default 

(EAD), incorporating forward looking 

information (FLI) of macro-economic 
factors considering multiple scenarios in 
ECLs estimations. The higher degree of 
estimation uncertainty is inherent in 

calculating the ECLs for the portfolios of 
loans and advances to customers in Stage 1 
and Stage 2 assessed for impairment 
collectively in view of the availability of 
historical data for back testing and 

calibrating the PD and LGD estimates. In 
addition, significant management 
judgement is also reguired in calculating 
the ECLs for loans and advances which are 
assessed for impairment individually, in 
particular, in determining the timing and 
amount of the expected cash flows, 

probability of scenarios, including from 
realization of collaterals. 

Due to the significance of the recorded 
impairment on loans and advances to 

customers, their potential effect on the 

capital adeguacy calculation as well as the 

high degree of the inherent estimation 
uncertainty, complexity and management 
judgments and assumptions involved in ECL 

calculations under the impairment model 

applied under the redguirements of IFRS 9, 

this is considered as a key audit matter. 

1AR 

L AA 

e We assessed whether the Group's 

impairment policy and estimation 

approaches were applied consistently 

in accordance with the reguirements 

of IFRS 9. 

We obtained an understanding and 

assessed the internal controls at 

entity level with respect to the 
development and application of the 

impairment models, including the 
model documentation and the update 

freguency and reasonableness of the 
parameters and macro indicators 

applied. 

We obtained understanding and 

performed walk-throughs of (the 
Group's processes and controls 

related to monitoring and assessment 
for impairment of loans and advances 

to customers and the implementation 

of the calibration methodology. We 
involved our internal IT specialists to 
assess and test the IT general controls 
over these processes. 

We assessed the design and tested 

the operating effectiveness of key the 

controls over the monitoring and 
assessment for impairment of loans 

and advances to customers 
processes. 

We assessed the impairment model 

for application consistency and 

continuing appropriateness in view of 

IFRS 9 reguirements, the specifics of 

Group's loan portfolio and the 

availability of internal historical and 
forward-looking 'information. We 
assessed the reasonability of SICR 

criteria and proper staging of loans 
and advances to customers. n 

addition, we assessed for 

reasonableness the PD and LGD 

calculations by examining supporting 
information for the key assumptions 

used and data sources.
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We also analyscd the appropriateness 

of calibration approaches applicd and 

the reasonableness of resulting 

changes and effects considering our 

understanding of the developmenl of 

the loan portfolios and the gualidy of 

available dala. In addition, we tested 

the mathematical accuracy of the ECL 

calculations. 

We performced analytical proccdures 

on a disaggregated data to assess if 

the relationship in the trends in the 

recorded impairment loss allowance 

follow the tendencies of development 

of the loan portfolios. 

For a risk-based sample of loans and 

advances lo customers rom all 

stages 'that are subject lo an 

individual impairment assessment 

and focusing on those with the most 

significant potential impact on the 

consolidated financial statements, we 

specifically assessed (the Group's 

assumptions on the expecled future 

cash flows, including the realization of 

collateral based on our underslanding 

and available market information. We 

involved internal oxpoerts to assist us 

in assessing the value of realizable 

collateral on a sample basis. 

We performed subseguent evenls 

procedures focused on the 

development of the risk-based sample 

of loans and advances to customers 

as per the previous paragraph, after 

(he reporting period date to assess 

the consistency of the Group's 

assumptions for the expecled future 

cash flows. 

We assessed (he relevance and 

adedguacy of the disclosures for the 

impairment of loans and advances to 

Customers in accordance wilh the 

reguirements of IFRS 9
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Estimates of fair values of non-financial assets used for fair value measurement or for 

impairment review purposes 

Information on the estimates of fair values of non-financial assets used for the purpose of 

valuation at fair value or for the impairment review of those assets is disclosed in Nate 21 

“Assets held for sale"”, Note 19 "Investment properties" and Note 30 “Fair value 

information"” to the consolidated financial statements. 

AS disclosed in Note 21 and Note 19 to the In tnis area, our audit procedures included, 

consolidated financial statements, as of : amongst others: 

31 December 2022 the Bank reports assets 

held for sale of EUR 12,286 thousand and 

investment properties of EUR 42,016 

thousand comprising real estate acaguired 

mainly from foreclosed collaterals. 

The Group's accounting policy for 

Subseguent measurement of the 

investment properties is under the fair 

value model of IAS 40. Considering the 
general volatility of the real estate market, 

the Group's management performs annual 

valuation of these non-financial assets in 

order to determine the fair value less costs 

to sell for assets held for sale (for their 

impairment testing) and the fair value of 

tne investment properties for their 

Subseguent valuation. 

The fair value estimates of investment 

properties and assets held for sale are 

determined by 'independent external 
appraisers engaged by the Group. 

The fair value determination is based on 

various valuation inputs, assumptions and 

approaches and are designated at Level 3 

of the fair value hierarchy in accordance with 
IFRS 13. 

As the fair vatuation of tne Group's non- 

financial assets involves high degree of 
estimation uncertainty related to the fair 
value inputs and assumptions, which might 

have a significant impact on the carrying 
value of the non-financial assets as well as 
potential impact on the capital adeauacy 
calculation of the Group as at 31 December 

2022, we have considered this matter as a 
key audit matter. 

We assessed the objectivity, 
independence, and expertise of the 

external appraisers. 

For a sample of investment 

properties and assets held for sale 

subject to impairment review of 

subseguent measurement of fair 

value, we analyzed and evaluated 

the applied key real estate data 

inputs for the determination of their 

fair value involving our real estate 
valuation experts to assist us in the 

review and analysis of the applied 

valuation methods and the 

underlying key assumptions. 

For a sample of the Croup's 

investments properties and assets 

held for sale, we involved our real 

estate valuation experts to perform 

relevance test to assess whether the 

fair value estimates is consistent in 

relation to a range of comparable 

market prices for similar assets. 

We assessed (the adeguacy and 

relevance of the financial statement 

disclosures of the Group's estimates 

on fair value of the non-financial 

assets, used for the purpose of the 

fair value estimation or impairment 

review.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's 

Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information, which we have 

obtained prior the date of our auditor's report, comprises the consolidated management 

report, including the corporate governance statement prepared by management in 

accordance with Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act, but does not include the 

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information 

and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, unliess and to the extent 

explicitly specified in our report. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 

read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 

information, we are reguired to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 

Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the consolidated 

financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRS, as adopted by 

the EU, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the 

preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 

the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 

intends to liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 

do S0o. 

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial 

reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 

and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 

level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs 

will always detect a materiai misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 

fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 

responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 

exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's 

ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 

we are reguired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our 

Opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves true and fair 

presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance 

of the argup audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 

with relevant ethical reguirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 

all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 

independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards 

applied. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements 

of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 

our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 

when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse conseguences of doing so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

We are jointly and severally responsible for the performance of our audit and for the 

expressed by us audit opinion as per the reguirements of the IFAA applicable in Bulgaria. In 

accepting and executing the joint audit engagement, in connection with which we report 

hereby, we also have followed the Guidance on Performing a Joint Audit issued on 13 June 

2017 by the Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Bulgaria and the Commission for 

Public Oversight of Statutory Auditors in Bulgaria. 

Audit Firm Ernst & Young Audit OOD: Audit Firm AFA OOD: 

l / 

Milka Natcheva-Ilvanova Valia lordanov 

Legal Representative and Registered Legal Represantative and Registered Auditor in 
Auditor in charge of the audit charge of the audit 

Sofia, Bulgaria 

27 March 2023



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 

AI amounts are in thousands of EUR uniess ofherwise stated 

Interest income 

Interest expense 

Net interest income 

Fees and commission income 

Fees and commission expense 

Fees and commission income, net 

FX trade net income 

Dividend income 

Net gain on financial assets at FV tgrough profit or loss 

Exchange difierences, net 

Other operating income 

Olher operating expenses 

Share of (ioss) of joint ventures 

Net operating income hefore impaicment 

Impairment on financial assets 
Impairment of non-financial assels 

Personrel #xpenses 

Administrative expenses 

Depreciatien and amortization 

Profit before tax 

Tax expense 

Profit for the year from continuing operations 

Discontinued operations 

Loss from discontinued cperations 

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

ltems that will not be reclassified subseguantly to profit or loss 

Gain on revaluation of praperties, net of tax 

Fair value changes on eguity instruments at FVOCI, net of tax 

Htems that may be raclassified subseguently to profif or loss 

Debt instruments at FVOCI, net of tax 
Change in fair value 
Changes in allewance for ECL 

Other camprehensive income for the year, net of tax 
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Notes 

O
 

OO
 

O 
H 

10 

11 

27 

27 

2022 2021 
28,748 25517 
(2,080) (2676) 
26,668 22841 
8,045 6,310 

o (dol) . (3 
7,5% 5976 
1,889 1410 

11 9 
82 150 

323 145 
9217 1714 

(1,607) (1,233) 

(23) (87) 
MA 154 30,965 
(2,839) (4,403) 

7) (124) 
(7.340) (6,505) 
(8,137) (1,866) 
(1,889) (7,782) 

23,942 10,285 
(2,393) (1,041) 
21,549 9244 

- (3) 
21,549 9241 

214 - 

(M) 56 

(1,496) (15%) 
14 20 

(1,297) (75) 

20252 9166 
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The accompanying notes to the financial statements from page 5 to page 110 are an integral part thereof.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 41 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in ihousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

  

  

Notes 2022 2021 

Assets 

Cash and balances with the Central Bank 131 445,002 238,059 

Loans and advances to banks 14 23 648 85867 

Loans and advances to customers 15 704,995 637 444 

Fnancial assets at FV tgrough profit or loss 16 609 515 
Debt insttuments at FVOCI 17 42141 38 420 

Eauity insttuments at FVOCI 17 2,092 2093 
Debt insttuments at amortized cost 18 65,758 37 024 

Inventories 23 7,902 10 265 

Assets held for sale 21 12,286 8 940 

investment properties 19 42,016 52,938 
Other assets 23 4 762 3578 

Investments In oint ventures 22 115 138 

Tangible assets and right-of-use assets 20 6 257 8,940 
Intangble assets 20 925 854 
Deferred tax assets, net 11 144 - 

Total Assets 1,358 652 1,125,065 

Liabilities and Shareholders' Eguity 

Liabilities 

Deposits ffom banks 39 95 
Deposits from customers 24 1178 454 975 815 
Current tax liabilities 754 208 

Other iabilities 26 16 716 14.473 

Debt securities n issue 25 15.016 - 

Other borrowed funds 25 9 176 16,136 

Deferred tax liabiities, net 11 - 93 

Total Liabilities 1,220,155 1,006,820 

Shareholders' Eduity 

Share capltal 27 12,624 12624 

Share premilim 27 18,944 18 944 
Reserves and retalned earnings 27 106,929 86,677 

Total Shareholders' Eguity 138 497 118 245 

Total Liailities and Shar_l_glders Eguity 1,358,652 | N 1,125,065      
ve been prepared and approved by Ihe Mapamn?t Board 23 M*;ü 2023. 
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The accompanying notes to the financial statements fom page 5 to page 110 are an integral part thereof.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EOUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DEGEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in fhousands of EUR unless ofherwise stated 

31 December 2020 

Profit for the year 

Fair value changes on eguity instuments at FVOCI 

Fair value changes on debt insttuments at FVOCI 
Changes in allowens for ECL on debt insttuments at 
FVOCI 
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Transfer of FV reserve of eguity instruments at FVOCI at 
derecognition 

31 December 2021 (Note 27) 

Profit for the year 

Net change in fatr value of properties 

Fair value changes on eguity insttuments at FVOCI 

Fair value changes on debt instrtuments at FVOCI 
Changes in allowens for ECL on debt instruments at 
FVOCI 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Transfer of FV reserve of properties at derecognition 

31 December 2022 (Note 27) 

   

    

llian Georgiev 

CEO 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Retained 

Revaluation earnings 
reserve on and 

Share Share Fairvalue own other 

Capital premium reserve properties reserves Total 

12,624 18 944 158 2,353 75,000 109,079 

- - - - 9241 9241 

- - 56 - - 56 

- - (151) - - (151) 

- - 20 - 20 
O - (75) - - (78) 
- (75) 9241 9166 

- - 118 - (118) - 

12,624 18,944 201 2,353 84123 118245 

- - E - 21,549 21,549 
- - - 214 - 214 

- - j - - m 
E - (1,496) E - (1,496) 

Ë - (14) - Ë (14) 
- - (1,511) 214 - (1,297) 

- (1,511) 214 21,549 20 252 
- - E (2,482) 2482 ` 

12,624 18,944 (1,310) 85 108,154 138,497 
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BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMSBER 2022 

AN amaunts are in thousands of FUR uniess otherwise sfated 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Notes 2022 2021 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Profit for the year 21,549 9241 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nat cash fiow from operating 

activities: 
Tax experse 11 2,393 1,04H 

Depreciation and amortization 20 1,889 1,866 

Impairment of financlal assets 10 2839 4,A2?1 

Other non-cash items included in profit or loss 480 (57) 

Result on disposal of investment properties B (75) d2 
Share of loss of joint ventures 23 47 
Changes in operating assets and operating liabilities: 

Net change In restricted funds (14.539) (2,405) 

incraase in loans to customers (74,675) (57,760% 

Net change In financial assets at FV tgrough profd or loss 23 692 

Decrease in assels held for sale, net $ OB8 1,181 

Deerease in other assets 852 1,055 
Inerease in deposils from banks and customers 197 366 154375 
Increase in other liabilities 1257 — 1,530.| 

Net cash flow from operating activities before taxes 146 270 113,239 

Taxes paid (1,943). (1,007) 
Net cash flow from operations 143 327 114,252 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchases of debt instruments at amortized cost and financial assets at FVOCI 73 709) (38,491) 

Recelpts fom soid / matured debt Instruments at amortized cost and financial 

assets al FVOC| 40,974 11442 

Acdguksilon of tangible and intanglble assets 20 (629) (261) 

Sale of fiked assets 42 15 

Sale of nvestment properties 19 10458 3386 

Net cash flow used in investing activities (22, 864[ (23,809) 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from debt securitles in issue 15,016 - 

Repayments of ofher borrowed furds 25 (6,961) (3,360) 

Payments under lease agreements 26 (1,201) (1,156). 
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 6854. (4,516) 

Net effert of exchange rate changes on cash 2,752 2626 

Net change in cash and cash eguivalents 130,069 86553 

GCash and cash eduivalents at the beginning of the year 13.2 o R1IRBAT 231,276 

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the year 13.2 449,900 318831 

Supplemental cash flow information: 

Interest paid 2463 Z2,976 

interest receivkd 27,B91 26,535    

       

    

   

  

V g Receivdd d:'viüends 

C A 
 Katya Bineva 

syé Direclor Chief Accountant 
ü:l[ wï'l we have issued auditors' report dated 27 March 2023 

  

   
“Ernst and Young Audit" OOD I ,AFA” OOD 

  
The accompanying notes to the financial statements from page 5 to page 110 are an integral part thereof 4



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

1. Corporate Information 

The consolidated financial statements of Bulgarian American Credit Bank AD (“BACB"or the "Bank”) present the 
financial position af the Bank and the companies controlled by it as a single reporting entity. As of 31 December 
2022, tne Group consists of BACB and two subsidiaries: BACB Finance EAD and BACB Trade EAD, as well as a 
joint venture in which the Bank exercises joint contrl, through its subsidiary BACB Finance EAD. The two 
subsidiaries are fully owned and controlled by BACB and they conduct their activities at their registered office 
located at 2 Slavyanska Str., Solta, Bulgaria. The Bank generates the main part of the income and represents the 
substantiaf part of the assets and liabilities of tne Group at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively. 

The Bulgarian-American Credit Bank was registered as a Bulgarian joint stock company under the reguirements of 
thie Bulgarian Commercial Act in December 1996. Currently the BACB operates a full banking license, issued by 
tie Bulgarian National Bank (BNB) for offering and performing the full scope of banking operations, permitted by 
the Credit Institutions Act (CIA). From a bank, specialist provider of secured finance with specific lending programs 
for financing companies and individuals, BACB gradually affimed itself as a universal bank, offering both corporate 
and transactional loan programmes, and retail banking through various products in the areas of consumer and 
mortgage financing. The activities of BACB are conducted through its headauarters in Sofia and operations offices 
n tie country. The offices offer (he full scopea of banking services, provided by the headaguarters. 

In April 2006 the shares of the Bank's capital were listed for trading on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange (BSE) and 
as a resuit BACB became a public company. 

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group employs 457 and 367 employees respectively. The 
Bank's seat and registered office is located at 2, Slavyanska Str., Sofia, Bulgaria, 

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 fhe Bank has a two-tier management system consisting of the 

Management Board and the Supervisory Board. The operating management of BACB is represented by thne 
Management Board. Those charged wilh govemance are represented by the Audit Committee and the Supervisory 
Board. 

2 Regulatory Environment 

Currently the Group's activities and operations are govemed by the Credit Institutiions Act and all the related iegal 
regulations. The BNB is responsible for supervising the Bank's compliance with the banking laws and regulations. 
Following the Bank's listing on fhe BSE, fhe Bank's activity as a public entity is also subject to supervision by the 
Financial Supervision Commission (FSC). 

$ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements 

The consolidated financial statements presented in euro were issued by the Group in addition to the statutory 
consolidated financial statements presented in BGN. The consolidated financial statements presented in euro are 
prepared for foreign investors' information purposes only. 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Bank and its subsidiaries. The Group prepares 
and presents its financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), issued 
by the Intermational Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the interpretations, issued by the Intemational 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), as approved by the European Union (fhe “EU”) and 
applicable in the Republic of Bulgaria. Reporting framework "IFRS as adopted by the EU” is essentially the defined 
national basis of accounting "IAS, as adopted by the EU", specified in the Bulgarian Accountancy Act and defined 
in paragraph 8 of its Additional provisions.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TOTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

AM armounts are in fhousands of EFUR unless ofherwise stated 

3 Summary of Slgnificant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Basis of preparation and presentation of the financial statements (continued) 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated statement of financial position, fhe consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated staterent of changes in eguity, the consolldated statement 
of cash flows and the notes thereto. The financial year for the Group ends at 31 December 

When preparing the financial statements the Group uses the historical cost method as a basis for reporting the 
assets and liabilities, unless it is specifically indicated that the respective assets are evaluated at their fair value. 

The figures in the consolidated financial statements are presented in EUR (euro) and rounded down or up t 
thousands dthousand EUR), uniess otherwise specifted. 

In general, the group presents the statement of its financial position, based on the degree of liguidity. An analysis 
of tne recovery of assets or the settlement of liabilities within twelve months after the financial position statemert 
(current) and after more than 12 months after the financial position statement (hon-current) is presented in the 
attachments to the financial statements (Note 32.4). 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS reguires the management to make 
estimates and assumplions that affect the carrying value of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the amount of revenue and expenses during the reporting period and to disclose contingent assets 
and labilities. The management made approximate estimates and assessments for the purposes of the accounting 

teporting and disclosure, which may be different from the actual results. The uncertainty, related to the estimations 
and assumptions made, could lead to actual results, reguiring significant adjustments to the carrying value of the 
respective assets or liabilities in the future. 

The Bank and its subsidiaries apply the same accounting policies for reporting similar transartions and other events 
in similar circumstances. 

Changes to the accounting policies and disclosures 

The accounting policies of the Group are consistent with those, applled in the previous reporting period, taking into 

account the amendments to IFRS adopted by the EU and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2022. The Group did not significant changes in the accounting poloces applied 

The consolidated financial statements presented in euro are not statutory financial statements. Therefore, there is 
no legal reguirement in reference to ESEF regulations.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued] 

Changes to the accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

MNew and amended standards and clarifications 

The Group applied for the first-time certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. The Group has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or 
amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions after 30 June 2021 (Amendmend) 

The Amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021, with earlier application 
permitted, including in financial statements not yet authorized for issue at the date the amendment is issued. In 
March 2021, the Board amended the conditions of the practical expedient in IFRS 16 that provides relief to lessees 
fom applying the IFRS 16 guidance on lease modifications to rent concessions arising as a direct conseguence of 
the covid-19 pandemic. Following the amendment, the practical expedient now applies to rent concessions for which 
any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 40 June 2022, provided the other 
conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The Group has not received Covid-19-related rent 
concessions in 2022 , thus it has not applied this practical expedient. 

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business combinations (Amendment) 

The Amendments update a reference to the previous version of the |ASB's Conceptual Framework for Financial 
Reporting to the current version issued in 2018 without significantly changing the accounting reguirements for 
business combinations. The amendment had no impact on fhe consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Eguipment: Proceeds before Intended Use 

in May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Eguipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits 
entities deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and eguipment, any proceeds ftom selling items 
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the 
costs of producing those items, in profit or loss. The amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group. 

Amendments fo lAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

The Amendments specify which costs a company includes in detemining the cost of fulfiliing a contract for the 
purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous. The amendments clarify, the costs that relate directly to a 
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs and an allocation of costs directly related to 
fhe contract activities. The amendment had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 make minor amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International 
Financial Reporting Standards, IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS 41 Agriculture and the lllustrative Examples 
accompanying IFRS 16 Leases.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

41 DECEMBER 2022 

AN amounts are in fhousands of EUR uniess otherwise stated 

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Poltcies (continued) 

Changes to fhe accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted 

Listed below are the issued standards that are not yet effective or have not been applied earlier by the Group as at 
the date of these financial statements. It is disclosed how reasonably they may affect the disclosures, the financial 
position and the performance when the Group adopts these standards for the first time. This is expected to occur 
when they hecome effective, 

IFRS T7: Insurance Contractfs 

In May 2017, the JASB issued IFRS 17 insurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard 
for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. The standard is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted, provided the 
entity also applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments on or before the date it first applies IFRS 17. This is a 
comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts, covering recognition and measurement, 

presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 applies to al types of insurance contracts issued, as well as to certain 
guarantees and financial instruments with discretional participation contracts. The standard Is not applicable for 
the Group, 

Amendments to lAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IFRS Practice Stafement 2: Disclosure of 
Accounting policies 

In February 2021. the Board Issued amendments to AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality 
Judgements (the PS), in which it provides guidance and examples to help entities apply materiality judgements to 

accounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are 
more useful by: 

e Replacing the regufement for entities to disclose their 'signlficant' accounting policies with a reguirement 
to disclose their 'material' accounting policies and 

e . Adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about accounting 
policy disclosures 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application 
of the amendments to IAS 1 is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed. 

The Group will analyze and assess the impact of the new amendments on its financial position or performance.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued 

Changes to the accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued) 

Amendments to AS ê Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors: Definition of 
Accounting Estimates 

In February 2021, the Board issued amendments to IAS 8, in which it introduces a new definition of 'accounting 
estimates'. The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in 
accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, fhey clarify how entities use measurement technigues and 
inputs to develop accounting estimates. 
The amended standard clarifies that the effects on an accounting estimate of a change in an input or a change in 
a measurement technigue are changes in accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior 
period errors. The aspect of the definition for the accounting estimates that changes in accounting estimates may 
result ftom new information or new developments is retained by the Board. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Earlier application 
is permitted. 

The Group will analyze and assess the impact of the new amendments on its financial position or performance 

Amendments to AS 12 Income Taxes: Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single 
Transaction 

In May 2021, the Board issued amendments to AS 12, which narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception 
under |AS 12, so fhat it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to egual taxable and deductible temporary 
differences. The amendments clarify that where payments that settle a liability are deductible for tax purposes, it is 
a matter of judgement whether such deductions are attributable for tax purposes to the liability recognised in the 
financial statements or to the related asset component. This judgement is important in determining whether any 
temporary differences exist on initial recognition of the asset and liability. 

Under the amendments, the initial recognition exception does not apply to transactions that, on initial recognition, 
give rise to egual taxable and deductible temporary differences. It only applies if the recognition of a lease asset 
and lease liability (or decommissioning liability and decommissioning asset component) give rise to taxable and 
deductible temporary differences that are not edual. 

The amendments are effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2023. An entity should 
apply the amendments to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of the earliest comparative period 
presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, it should also recognise a 
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred tax liability for all deductible 
and taxable temporary differences associated with leases and decommissioning obligations. 

The Group will analyze and assess fhe impact of the new amendments on its financial position or performance.



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless ofherwise stated 

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Changes to the accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

Amendments to AS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of AS 1 to specify the reguirements for 
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify: 

What is meant by a nght to defer settlement 
That a right to defer must exBt at the end of the reporting period 
That classifcation is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise ts deferral right 
That only if an embedded derivatke in a convertible liability is itself an eouity instument would fhe terms 
of a liability not impact ts classfication 

In July 2021 the Board tentafiely decided to propose several amendments to the clarifications made in January 
2020. In particular, he Board decided to propose that if a right to defer settlement for at least twelve months is 
subject to an entity complying with conditions after the reporting date, those conditions do net affect whether the 
right to defer settlement exists at the reporting date for the purpose of classifying a liability as current or non-current. 
Additional presentaten and disclosure reguirements woulid be applicable in such circumstances. Furthermore, the 
Board tentatively decided to defer the effective date to no earlier than 1 January 2024 ftom 1 January 2023). 

The Group will analyze and assess the impact of the new amendments on its financial posifion or performance, 

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 

In September 2022, the |ASB issued amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liabilty n a Sal and Leaseback. 
The amendments are intended to improve the reguirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liablty 
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction in IFRS 16, while it does not change the accounting for leases unrelated 
to salk and leaseback transactions. In particular, the seller-lessee determines 'ease payments' or 'tevlsed lease 
payments' in such a way that the seller-lessee would not recognise any amount of the gain or bss that relates to 
the right of use it retains, Applying these reauirements does not prevent the seller-lessee from recognising, h proft 
or loss, any gain or loss relating to the partial or ful termination of a lease. A seller-lessee applies the amendment 
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and kaseback transactions entered into after the date of intial 

application, being the beginning of the annual reporting period in which an entity first applied IFRS 16. The 
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with earlier application 
permitted. The amendments have not yet been endorsed by the EU. 

The Group will analyze and assess the impact of the new amendments on its financial position or performance. 

10



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 
AI amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

3 Summary of Sianificant Accounting Policies (continued 

Changes to the accounting policies and disclosures (continued) 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and AS 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 

Assorciate or Joint Venture 

In December 2015, the JASB decided to defer the elfective date of the amendments urtil such time as it has finalised 
any amendments that result from its research project on the eguity method. The amendments address the conflict 

between IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 investments in Associates and Joint Ventures in 
dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The 
amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is recognised when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves a 

business as defined in IFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets fhat does not 

constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate or 

joint. The amendments have not yet been erdorsed by the EU. 

The Group will analyze and assess the impact of these amendments on its financia! position or performance. 

Comparatives 

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of fhe previous reporting period. The 
presentation of the data for previous years is adjusted, where necessary, with the aim of comparability with the 
Current year presentation. 

1



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Principles of Consolidation 

The principles of consolidation did not change compared to previous reporting period. The consolidated financal 
statements present fhe financial position and performance for the period of the Bank and its subsidiaries as of 31 
December 2022. 

The Bank consoldates its investments in other companies where it exercises control over them, i.e. when it defines 
these companies as subsidiaries. Exercise of control is available if the following conditions are simultaneously met: 

e The Bank has real powers to determine, directly or indirectly, the financial and operating policies of the 
investee. 

e The Bank is exposed to or has rights to the variable retums from its involvement with the investee 
e The Bank is able to use its powers within the company to influence the amount of its retum as an investor 

There is a presumption that holding more than half of the voting rights in an entity results n the exercise of control, 
and on a case-by-case basis all the facts and circumstances available are considered and analysed in order to 

determine the exercise of control over fhe investment. At the reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is 
a change in any of the three control criteria for the consolidated companies. As of 31 December 2022, the Bank 
defines its investments in BACB Finance EAD and BACB Trade EAD as subsidiaries, due to the fact that t is the 
sole owner of these companies. 

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on whkh effective control is 
transterred to the Bank and are no longer consolidated from the date on which control ceases, The assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses of subsidiaries acguired or sold during the year are included in the consolidated fnancl 
statements only for the period in which the Bank exercised control over the investment. 

At consolidation, all transactions, balances and unrealized gains between group members are elminated. The 
entites in the Group apply consistent accounting and valuation methods for similar transactons. assets and 
iabilties under s milar circumstances. 

The change in the shareholding in a subsidiary without loss of control is reported as a capltal transaction. I the 
Bank loses control over the subsidiary, then the related assets and liabilities are excluded from the consolidated 
financial statements, and any remaining gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss for fhe period . The rest of 
tne investment, if any, is recognized at fair value. 

Business combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for by using the acauisition method. The acguisiton method reguires the 
investor to evaluate the investment acguired, which undergoes four steps as follows: 

e (dentification of the acguirer. All facts and circumstances related to the parties to the transaction shal be 
analysed. 

e Determining the date and the cost of the acguisition. The cost of an acguisition n a business combinatbn 
is determined based on the consideration transferred and the amount of the non-controlling interest in the 
acduiree. The consideration is the aggregate of the acduisition date fair value of the assets acdguired, tne 
liabilities assumed, and the eguity instruments issued by the acguirer in exchange for the control acguired. 
The transaction costs are recognized in the profit or loss for the period.
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Principles aof Consotidation (continued) 

Business combinations (continued) 

Recognition and measurament of the identifiable assets acguired, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed, as well as non-controlling interests in the acduiree. jhe acauired assets and liabilities are 
measured at fair value as at the acduisition date. The non-controliing interests may be determined by two 
alterative approaches - at fair value as at the acguisition date, or in proportion to the shares in he net 
assets of the acguiree, For each business combination, the Bank chooses which approach to apply, 
depending on the particular cireumstances. In a business combination achieved in stages, the eguity 
interest in the investment held before the acguisition of contro] is remeasured to fair value as at the 
acauisition date. Any difierences resulting from the remeasurment are recognized on an ongoing basis in 
the profit or loss for the period or other comprehensive incomse, as appropriate. 

Recogniton and measurement of goodwill or gain from a bargain purchase. The excess of the acauisition 
cost over the acguirers share in (he net fair value of the acguired identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities is recognized as goodwill. If the cost of acguisition is less than fhe investor's share of 
the fair value of the net assets of the acauiree, the difference is recognized directly in profit or loss for the 
period as gain from a bargain transaction, After initial recognition, goodwill arising from business 
combinations is measured at the acguisition cost less the accumulated impairment. An impairment test is 
carried out at least once a vyear, or more freguently if events or changes in cicumstances indicate 
impairment. 

Investments in joint ventures 

A joint arrangement is an arrangement in which two or more parties have joint control. Joint controi exists when 
decisions regarding the management and operation of the arrangement reguire unanimous agreement of fhe 
parties and neither of them controls the joint arrangement on its own. A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement 
whereby the parties that have joint control, have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The parties that share 
control are joint venturers. For each specific case where the Bank is a party to a joint arangement, all relevent 
facts and circumstances are considered and analysed to determine the exercise of joint control over the investment 
as well as the type of the joint investment. As of 31 December 2022, the Bank has made an analysis and determined 
that fnrough its subsidiary BACB Finance EAD, it is a jointly controlling partner in IDS Fund AD and the investment 
is assessed as a joint ventur. The assessment was made on the basis of the following facts and circumstances: 

The joint activity is carried out through a separate registered company - IDS Fund AD. 
The share capital of IDS Fund AD is divided egually between two shareholders. BACB Finance EAD holds 
50% of the registered voting shares. 
Each of the shareholders has assumed liabilities up to the amount of its eguity holding in the company. 
There is a written agreement (Articles of Association) between the two members regulating the 
organization and management of the company, according to which valid decisions on all key business 
issues are taken by a majority of 50% * 1 share of all voting rights. This agreement presupposes joint 
control due to the fact that neither party can make a sole decision fhat would have material conseguences 
for the assets, liabilities or the performance of the company. 
From the rights and obligations of the shareholders provided for in the Articles of Association, including 
in tne event of liguidation, it becomes clear that each party is entitled to the net assets of the company up 
to the amount of its sharehoiding and thus designate the joint arangement as a joint venture 

13
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Principles of Consolidation (continued) 

Investment in joint ventures (continued) 

Investments in which the Bank, directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries, is a padty to a joint venture, are 
presented in the consolidated financial statements using the eguity method. 

Under ihe eduity method, an investment in a Joint venture is initlally recognized at cost. The carrying amount of tne 
investmer is Adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the joini venture since tne 

date of the acguisition. Goodwill relating to the joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment 
and Is not tested for impairment separately. The changes in the results of the jolnt venture after acguisition are 
recognized in profit or loss for fhe period up to the investor's share, and the changes in ofher comprehensmve income 
of the company are reported as part of other comprehensive income of the Group. 

The financial statements of fhe joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as those of the Group. 
Where necessary, adjustments are made to align the investee's accounting policies with those of fhe Group. 

At tne end of the reporting period, fie Group assesses whiether there is objective evidence that the investment in 
jomt venture is impaired. lf tnere is such evidence, (he Group determines the amount of the impaimment loss as the 
difference between the recoverable amount of tne investmert and its carrylng amount, and impaltment loss is 
recognized in profit or loss in iiem “Share of profit / (loss) ftom investments n joint ventures”.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Foreign currency transactions and translations 

The functional currency of BACB and ifs subsidiary is the national currency of Bulgaria - the Lev (BGN). Foreign 
currency transactions, i.e. transactions denominated in currencies other than BGN are accounted for at the 
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currency are translated to the statement at the exchange rate valid at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets 
denominated in foreign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate as of the date 
of initial recognition. Income and expense items resulting from foreign currency transactions are translated at the 
exchange rates existing at tne dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
turrency are measured in BGN at BNB's official exchange rate on the date of preparation of the statements, as 
follows: 

Gurrency 31-12-2022 31-12-2021 

EUR* 1.95583 1.95583 

USD 1.83371 1.72685 

fxed rate according to the Law on the Bulgarian National Bank 

The net result in transactions, involving the puichase and sale of foreign cuirencies are recorded in the 
comprehensive income statement, as “Income from foreign exchange trading, net'. Gains and losses, resulting 
ftom the translation of monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency are presented net in the comprehensive 
income statement, as “Exchange differences, net”. 

Financial instruments 

Financial instrument is any contract that generates a financial asset for one party to the contract and a financial 
liability or eguity instrument for the other party. A financial asset or financial liability is recognized in the statement 
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of a financial instrument resulting in 
legal rights for the Group to obtain either legal obligations to pay cash or other eduivalent. Planned future 
transactions are not reported as financial assets or liabilities until the Group becomes a party to the contract, 
regardless of the probability that the transaction may be realized. 

Upon their initial recognition, financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value. For financial assets and 
liabilities that are not subsedguently accounted for at fair value through profit or loss, the transaction costs fhat are 
directly attributable to the generation of the financial asset / liability are added to the fair value of the instrument 
upon initial recognition. Transaction costs for financial instruments that are measured at fair value through profit or 
loss are recognized directly in profit or loss on initial recognition. 

The fair value at the initial recognition of a financial instrument is usually the transaction price. 

Financial assets and liabilities fhat are part of a hedging relationship are accounted for in accordance with fhe 
hedge accounting reguirements. 

Effective interest method 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instument and allocating 
the relevant interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is tne rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (including all fees received and other premiums or discounts) 
through the expected life of the financial instrtument, or where appropriate, for a shorter period to its carrying 
amount. 

IE
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financlal Instruments (continued) 

Financial assets 

Upon initial recognition, financial assets are classified as such and are subseguently measured at amortized cost, 
at fair value in other comprehensive income or as such at fair value through profit or loss. The management 
determines the classification of investments at their initial acguisition and reassesses their use at the end of each 
reporting period, if this is permitted and appropriate. 

The classification of financial assets upon initial acguisition depends on: 
e Business model that applies to their management 

e Characteristics of the contractual cash flows of the financial asset 

In order to be classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value in OCI, the financial asset should generate 
cash flows that represent "principal and interest payments only” (PIPO) on the outstanding principal amount. This 
measurement is called the “PIPO test' and is performed at the level of the debt instrument concemed. 

The business model applied by the Group to manage financial assets refers to the way in whh it manages its 
fnancial assets for the purpose of generating cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will 
result from the collection of contractual cash flows, sale of financial assets, or bofh. 

For the purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories 

1. Debt instruments measured at amortized cost 

This category is the most significant category for the Group. The financial assets are measured at amortized cost 

if the following two conditions are met: 
e The assets are managed in a business model in order to collect the contractual cash flows. 
e  Underthe contractual terms of the instrument, cash flows arise on certain dates, which are only principal 

payments and interest on the outstanding principal. 

n fhis category, the Group reports loans and receivables, investments in debt securities, trade receivables. 

The amortized cost is the original value of the hstrument adjusted by the principal repayments and the accumulated 
depreciation of the difference between the original value and the maturity value using the effective interest method 
and less the loss allowance. In determining the expected future cash flows, the Group takes into account all agreed 
terms and conditions of the transaction, including premiums, fees and other remuneration payable by the 
counterparty, which directly affect the yield on the transaction and are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 
In cases where the cash flows reguired to calculate the effective interest rate cannot be reliably measured, the 
Group uses the agreed cash flows over the full contractual term of the instrument for the purpose of calculating the 
effective interest rate. For credit line and overdraft contracts where future cash flows cannot be reliably determined, 
interest revenue is recognized on a monthly basis based on the agreed interest rate. Revenue fom management 
fees under such credit agreements is deferred and depreciated on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract 
as a Supplement to interest income.
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3 Summary of Sianificant Accountina Policies (continued) 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Financial assets (continued) 

2. Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OG!) 

The Group measures its debt instruments at fair value in other comprehensive income if the following two conditions 

are also met: 
e The assets are managed in a business model thal targets both the collection of contractual cash flows 

and the sale of financial assets 
e (nderthe contractual terms of the instrument, cash flows arise on certain dates, which are only principal 

payments and interest on the outstanding principal. 

In respect of debt instrtuments measured at fair value in other comprehensive income, interest income, currency 
revaluation and impairment losses or their reversal are recognized in profit or loss and are calrulated in the same 

way as those for financial assets measured at amortized cost. The other changes in the fair value are recognized 
in ofher comprehensive income. When derecognized, the cumulative change in the fair value recognized in other 
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit ar lass. 

Debt insttuments at fair value in ofher comprehensive income of fhe Group include investments in govemment 
securities as well as investments in corporate bonds. 

3. Eguity instruments defermined for fair value measurement through olther comprehensive income (OC!) upon 

initial recognition. 

Upon their initial recognition, tne Group may choose to classify revocably as eguity instruments a fair value 
through ofher comprehensive income when they dualify for eguity in accordance with lAS 32 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and when they are not held for trading purposes. Classification is determined on an individual basis. 

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends are recognized as 
other income in the income statemeni when the entitlement to the payment is established except where the 
Company derives benefits from such proceeds as a refund of part of the acguisition cost of the financial asset n 
which case the gains are reporied in another comprehensive income. Eguity instruments determined as such at 
fair value in other comprehernsive income are not subject to impairment testing. 

The group has decided to classify in this category its eduity investments, which it intends to hold in the long run. 
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$  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Financial assets (continued) 

4. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss 

The financial assets measured at fair value fhrough profit or loss include financial assets held for trading and 
financial assets designated at their initial recognition as such at fair value through protit or loss or financial assets 
that are reguired to be measured at fair value. The financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are 
acguired for sale or re-acguisition within a short period of time. The derivatives are also classified as held for trading 
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not only 
principal and interest payments are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss regardless of the 
business model. 

Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at amortized cost or at fair value through other * 
comprehensive income as destcribed above, debt insttuments may be designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss upon initial recognition , if doing so eliminates or substantially reduces the accounting discrepancy 

The Group has no practice to invest in financial assets for profit and has not determined financial assets to be 
measured at fair value through profit or loss when initially acguired. 

Types of financial assets presented in the statement of financial position 

Cash and cash eguivalents 

The cash flow statement shows the change in cash and cash eguivalents arising during the reporting period from 
operating, investing and financing activities. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash indudes cash in 
hand and deposits in accounts with BNB without restricted collateralized funds. The Group considers current 
accounts with correspondent banks without restricted funds as cash eduivalents, as well as deposits with banks 
with an original maturity of up to three months, which are shown in the statement of financial posiion as "Loans 
and advances to banks". 

Debt securities 

Debt securities are presented in the statement of financial position depending on the business model under which 
they are managed and according to thelr initial classification. 

Interest received on debt securities is presented as interest income in the statement of comprehensive income (in 
profit or loos). 

Eaguity instruments 

Eauity instruments tnat are not designated as investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates are 

presented in the statement of financlal position at fair value through profit or loss, unless they have been selected 
for fair value presentation in another comprehensive income on initial recognition. 

Dividends received from edulty securities are presented in the statement of comprehensive income (in profit or 
loos) as dividend income when the Group acguires the right to receive dividends and the amount of dividends can 
be measured reliably. In the event that there is clear evidence that dividends represent a reversal of part of the 
Initial cost of an investment, they are not recognlzed In profit or loss for the period but reduce the carrying amount 
of the investment.
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financiad Instruments (continued) 

Financial assets (continued) 

Loans and recelvables 

The loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
traded in an active market. Initially, loans are recognized in the balance sheet at fair value which represents the 
cash outflow for the generation or purchase on credit, including all transaction costs. The initial recognition of the 
loan as an asset is the time of the extension of the funds to the borrower. The undrawn loan amounts are reported 
as of-balance sheet commitments. Loans and receivables are subseguently measured af amortized cost. 

Repurchase agreements 

Securities sold under a repurchase agreement in the course of banking are reported in the balance sheet in the 
category where fhey were initally recorded and fheir corresponding liability in “Deposits ftom banks” or Deposits 
fom customers". 

Securities purchased under a sell-back agreement are reported in the balance sheet as “Loans and advances to 

banks" or “Loans and advances to customers'. 

The difference between the purchase and sale price of such transactions is accounted for as interest income or 
expense and is accrued for the period of the transaction based on an effective interest rate. 

Derecognition of financial assets 

Financial assets (or, if applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) are 
derecognized, when: 

e therights for receiving cash flows from the asset have expired; or 
e the rights for receiving cash flows from the asset have been transferred or the Group has undertaken the 

obligation to fully pay the received cash flows, without material delays, to a third party, under a transfer agreement; 
whereby (a) all risks and rewards of the financial assets ownership are substantially transferred by the Group; or 
(b) all risks and rewards of ownership of a financial assets are neither transferred, nor retained, but the Group has 
not retained control over the financial asset. 

When the Group has transferred its rights for receiving cash flows from the asset or has entered into a transfer 
agreement, it assesses whether and to what extent it retains the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred, nor retained substantially all tne risks and rewards of the financial assets ownership, nor has 
retained control of it, it continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of its continued involvement in it. 
In this case, the Group also recognizes the related liability. The transferred asset and the related liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations retained by the Group. 

The on-going involvement in the form of a guarantee for the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the initial 
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that may be reguired to be paid by the 
Group. 

IA
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3  Summary of Signiftcant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Financial assets (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets 

The Group recognizes an allowance (provision) for impairment of financial assets by applying the so-called model 
of “Expected Credit Losses” (ECL), ie. a loss allowance is recognized regardless of whether a specific loss event 
has occurred. The model applies for initial recognition in respect of all debt instruments that are not reported at fair 
value through profit or loss, including lease receivables, loan commitments, financial guarantees and contractuai 
assets arising from the application of FRS 18 Contracts with Customers. 

No loss allowance is reported for financial assets that are measured at fair value through profit or loss, since the 
change in fair value is presumed to include potential credit losses. 

Loss allowance is also not reported for eguity insttuments measured at fair value in other comprehensive income 
due to the fact that any changes in their fair value are recognized in ofher comprehenstve income and subseguently 
are not reclassified in the income statement. 

ECLS are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due under the terms of tne contract and all 
cash flows that the Company expects to recetve discounted to fhe original effective interest rate. Expected cash 
flows include cash flows from the sale of the collateral held or other credit enhancements that form an integral part 
of (he terms of the contract 

ECLs are recognized in two stages. Where there is no significant increase in credit risk after the initial recognition 
of the asset, the loss allowance is based on the expected credit losses that arise as a result of non-performing 

events that may occur over the next 12 months (12-month ECLs) 

For exposures for which there is a stgnificant increase in credit nsk from initial recognition, a loss provision is 

recognized in respect of credit losses expected over the remaining exposure period, irespective of the occurrence 
of the default (ECLs over the lifetime of the instrument). In this regard, the credit risk assessment and its change 
over the initial provision period Is a key point in determining the loss allowance. The loss allowance reflects not the 
level of credit nsk in general, but its relative change at the reporting date and its measurement is related to many 
assumptions and estimates. 

The change in the loss adjustment is recognlzed as a result of impairment in profit or loss for the pertod. 

When in subseguent periods the credit guality of the financlal asset improves so that there is no significant increase 
in credit risk compared to the initial recognition of the asset, the allowance is remeasured on fhe basis of the 
expected credit losses for 12 months. 

With respect to trade recelvables and assets under contracts with clients, the Group applies a simplified approach 
for ECL calculation. Therefore, it does not track fhe changes In credit risk but instead recognizes a provision for 
loss on the basis of the ECL for the entire duration of the insttument at each reporting date. The Group has created 
a provisioning matrix based on historical experience of credit losses, adjusted by forecast factors specific to the 
debtors and the business environment. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Financial assets (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

For receivables from banks and debt instruments at fair value in other comprehensive income, the Group applies 
low credit risk based impairment. For each reporting date, it determines whether the debt instrument is assessed 
as an instrument with low credit risk using all reasonable and substantiated information that is available without 
incurring unnecessary expenses or efforts. In this assessment, the Group analyses the available information on 
the credit rating of the insttument. In addition, the Group assesses whether there is a significant increase in credit 
risk in the cases where the payments on the instrument are past due over 30 days. The Group's policy is to assess 
the ECLs for these instrtuments (receivables from banks and debt insttuments at fair value in other comprehensive 
income) on a 12-month basis. However, when there is a significant increase in the credit risk after the occurrence, 
the provision is based on the ECLSs for the entire duration of the insttument. The Group uses the ratings to determine 
whether fhe credit risk of the debt instrument is significantly increased and to prepare an approximate assessment 
of the ECLSs. 

The Group considers a financial insttument as a non-performing instrument when the contractual payments are in 
arrears over 90 days. In certain cases, however, it may treat a financial asset as a non-performing asset when 
internal or extemal information indicates that it is unlikely that the Group will receive the full amount of the 
Ooutstanding amounts under the contract before taking into account any credit improvements it holds. 

Financial assets are derecognized when there is no reasonable expectation for the collection of cash flows under 
the contract. The amounts subseguently collected under derecognized ioans are recognized as income for the 
current period in reduction of the expenses on the ECLSs. 

Reclassification of financial assets 

Under certain circumstances, non-derivative financial assets at fair value may be reclassified at assets at amortized 
cost and vice versa. Such reclassification is only allowed if the business model in which the assets are managed is 
changed. The change of the business model is determined by the management of the Group as a result of extemal 
and internal changes that are material to the operating activities. Changes may also occur when reorganizing the 
Operations as a result of changed goals of the business model. Changes to the initial classification of financial 
assets are expected to occur in relatively rare and limited cases. 

The new accounting is applied for future periods after the reclassification date when fhe business model was 
changed without recalculating the results for previous periods. The reclassification date is the first day of the first 
reporting period following the change in the business model that resulted in the reclassification. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Finaneial Instruments (continued) 

Financial labilities 

Financial liabilities that are not derivatives or at acguisition are not classified as at fair value through profit or loss 

are measured at amortized cost. Initially they are recognized at 'cosf', ie. fair value of the cash flows received at 
the liability occurrence less the transartion costs. Subsedguently any difference between net proceeds and the 
redemption value is recognized in the profit or loss over the pericd of the instrument using the effective interest 
method. 

The Group's financlal llabilties include deposits, borrowed funds, issued bonds and other trade payables and reflect 

the Group's commitments to repay the liabllities due at maturity through cash or other financial assets, The Group 
has not designated financial liabilities for accounting at fair value through profitor loss and recognizes all its financial 
labliities at amortized cost uslng the effective interest method 

Finaneial labilities are written-off fom the statement of financial position, if it has been repaid, i.e. when tie liabilfty, 
specified in the contract has lapsed or cancelled or expired. The replacement of an exlsting financial liability by 
another debt insttument, by the same creditor with significantly different terms and conditions, or significant 
modification of the terms and conditions of an existing financial liabllity, is reported as a derecognition of the initial 
fnancial liability and recognition of a new financlal llability. The difference between the carrying values of the original 
and the new liability, Is recagnized in the statement of comprehenslve income (in profit or loos). 

Offseffing financial assets and liabilifies 

The Group does not allow the offsetfing of financlal assets and llabilties unless this Is permitted by a specifie 

standard or an explanatlon. Financial assets and tiabililes may be offset and the net amount reported in the 
statement of financial position only when the Group has alegally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Derivative financial instruments and hedging 

In the normal course of business, tne Group enters into contracts whose value varies according to changes n 
certain market variables and reduire no initial investment, or reguire minar net investment compared with the 
nominal contract value. Such contracts are financial insttuments called derivatives. Derivatives are classified as 

held for trading or for hedging depending on their purpose in purchasing. 

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognized initially at their acduisition cost (including transaction costs) 
and subseguently are re-measured a their fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value Is positive 
and as liabilities when (air value is negative. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Financial Instruments (continued) 

Derivative financial instrtuments and hedging (continued) 

In its operations, the Group is exposed to various market risks. The defined Basic Banking Activities Development 
Strategy is geared to optimal management of the different types of risk in order to minimize fheir negative impact 
on performance. To mitigate the risks and under certain cicumstances, the Group may choose to use different 
financial instruments to hedge individual risk components inherent in core banking assets and/or liabilities. Hedging 
is related to hedging instruments and hedged items. The use of hedging instruments with the intention of reducing 
the exposure to certain risks may result in accounting mismatches and reporting variable results that do not properly 
present the hedging objectives. 

Such mismatches arise when the recognition and subseguent recognition bases of the underlying (hedged) position 
and the hedging insttument are different. In order to properly report the results of hedging and to harmonize the 
effect on the statement of financial position, hedge accounting rules apply. The Group has decided to apply the 
reguirements of IFRS 9 in respect of hedge accounting. In cases where the reporting of gains/losses on the hedging 
instrument and the hedged item in profit or loss naturally coincides over time, it is not necessary to apply accounting 
hedging. By applying hedge accounting rules, the Group recognizes the gains/losses on the hedging insttument 
simultaneously with the occurrence of losses/gains on the hedged item up to the hedge effectiveness. 

During the period, the Group did not report derivative financial insttuments and/or hedges. 

Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that reguire the issuer of the guarantee to make specified payments to 
reimburse the hoider as a result of the failure of a third party - debtor to comply with commitments made that have 
been guaranteed. Financial guarantee contracts are initially caried at their fair value on the date the guarantee 
was given, which is likely to be the premium received at inception. No receivables for the future premiums are 
recognized. The income from commission fees is deferred, based on the linear method, along the period, to which 
such fees refer. Subseguently, the Group's liabilities under financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher 
of the amount initially recognized less amortization and the provision that should be accrued for the Group to meet 
its contractual obligations arising at the reporting date. The expected credit losses, related to the financial 
guarantees issued, are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income (in profit or loos), in the line “Impairment 
of non-financial assets”. The likelihood of an obligation for payment by the Group under such contracts is estimated 
based on historical experience with similar instruments. 

Investment properties 

In the course of its operating activities and under certain circumstances, the Bank acguires real estate as a result 
of legal proceedings brought against debtors on loans for non-recovery. Such assets are classified as held for sale 
or as investment properties depending on the Management intention and on the possibility for guick disposal. 

Investment properties are real estate - land and/or buildings held primarily to eam income from rent and/ or for 
tapital appreciation or both and that are not occupied by the Group. 

Recognition of investment properties as an asset takes place only witen it is probable that the future economic 
benefits tnat are associated with tne estate will fiow to the entiiies in the Group and when the costcan be determined 
reliably. This is usually from the day when all fne benefits and risks/control associated with/on the asset are 
tansferred to the Group. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accountind Policies fcontinued) 

Investment properties (continued) 

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, inciuding transaction costs. Ongoing costs associated witn 

servicing the asset are not included in the carrying amount and are reported as an expense for the period 
Improvements made after the date of Initial recognition are included in the value of the investment property as long 

as it meets the criteria for recognition of an asset. 

For subseguent reporting, fhere are two altemative methods - a fair value model and a cost model, arnd the Group 

has decided to use the fair value model. In accordance with AS 40 investment Property, this model reduires, after 
initial recognition, that investment property to be measured and stated at fair value without deprectation. Gains or 
losses arising fom a change in the fair value are included in the profit or loss for the period in which they arise. 

Determination of fair value is made in accordanice with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement and reflects market 

conditions at the reporting date. Licensed independent valyators (appraisers) with the necessary professional 
dualifications and experience carry oul the update of the fair value of tie investment property annually. 

When property, plant and eduipment is transformed into investment property, as a result of change in use, the 
Group applies ifs accounting policy, regarding properties, plant and eguipment, until the date of change of the use. 
The difference between the balance-sheet value and the fair value as of the date of the change is to accounted into 
the profit or loss for the period. 

Under certain circumstances, fhe Group takes action to develop land classified as investmert property in order to 
buikd residentlal and/or commercial premises that it subseguently intends to realize through a sale. When the Group 

becomes a party to a contract providing for similar developments, the asset ceases to be reported as an investment 
asset and is presented as an asset under development in the line “Other assets” in the statement of financial 
position. 

The revenues from investment propeities are recorded in the statement of comprehensive income (in profit or loos) 

in the Other operating income item. This amount includes the income from leased investment properties, which is 

recorded in the period to which it refers, in accordance with the lease contract signed. The result from the sale of 

property, classified as investment property is carried at Other operating income when the result is in te form of 
gain and — in Ofher operating expenses whien fne result is a loss, respectively. The current costs, related to the 
maintenance and operation of the investment properties are disclosed as a part of tie Ofher operating expenses 
tem in the comprekensive income statement. Information ragarding the income and costs, related to the investment 

properties is provided in Note 8 to these statemenis. 

An investment property Is derecognized upon its disposal when fhe control on it is transferred or when it is 

permanently decommissloned and no economic benefits are expected ftom such disposal. The gains or losses, 
when derecognizing an investment property, are disclosed in the period of such derecogrition. 

Assets held for sale 

Real estate and other tangible assets acauired from disposal of collateral on foreclosed loans or assets acguired 
exclusively with a view to subseguent disposal in the near future are classified as assets held for sale and are 
initially measured at cost. The classification of properties as assets held for sale happens at initial recognition and 
depends on the Management intention and their plan for assets disposal. 

The Management is actively seeking realization of assets classified as held for sale, aiming to complete the sale 
within one year period after the classification. After initial recognition, such assets are carried at the lower of their 
carrying amount or at their fair value less the cost to sell. No depreciation is accrued on such assets. 

Income and costs, related to assets, classified as Assets held for sale are recorded in the item lines “Other operating 
income” or “Other operating costs” of the comprehensive income statement, respectively. Information regarding 
any such income and costs can be found in Note 8 of these statements. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Tangible and intangible assets 

Tangible and intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, including direct transaction costs. Two alterative 

models apply for subseguent reporting: the cost model and the revaluation model, depending on the class of asset. 
The properties, used in Group's operations - office buildings and fhe adjacent terrains - are reported based on the 
revaluation model, where after initial recognition the asset is carried at revalued amount, the latter being its fair 
value at the date of the revaluation less any subseguent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Upon 
revaluation any depreciation accumulated to the date is eliminated against the gross amount of the asset and the 
net amount is restated in relation to the fair value. 

If the asset's camying amount is increased as a result of revaluation, the increase is recognized in other 

comprehensive income and is accumulated in eguity as revaluation reserve of assets, net of taxes. In tne event of 
a reduction in fhe carrying amount of the asset as a result of revaluation, netting with previous increases, the 

reduction shall be accrued against tie revaluation reserve. 

AI other reductions in the carrying amount of the asset are reported to the profit or loss for the period. Revaluations 
are to be performed regularly to insure that the carrying amounts of the assets do not differ materially from therr fair 
values at the reporting date. The depreciation of revalued assels is reporled on a regular basis in the profit or loss 
for the period. Upon subseguent derecognition of a revalued asset, the relevant formed revaluation reserve is 

transterred directly to results ftom previous years, without being reported to the profit or loss for the period. 

After the initial recognition, all other tangible and intangible assets are measured according to the cost model, ie. 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 

Subseguent repair and maintenance costs are included in the profit or loss at the moment fhese are incurred, unless 

there is clear evidence that they will result in increased economic benefits ftom the use of the asset. Such costs 
are then charged to the carrying amount of the asset. 

Land and buildings comprise the Bank's own premises. Land is not subject to depreciation. Depreciation and 
amortization of ofher assets is accrued based on the straight-line methiod over the estimated useful life of the asset. 
The assets' useful lives are periodically reviewed and adjusted if appropriate. No adjustments have been made 

during the reporting period. 

Annual rates of depreciation and amortization used in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: 

ORR N . i 
Jangible assels 
Buildings 3%-4% 3%-4% 
Right-of-use assets Over the contracted Over the contracted 

period period 
Computers and hardware 25% 25% 
Office eguipment 20% 20% 
Vehicles 20% 20% 
Office fumiture 10%-15% 10%-15% 
Intangible assels 

Software and licenses 1596-25% 15%-25% 
Leasehold improvements Over the contracted Over the contracted 

period period 
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3  Summary of Significant Accountind Policies (continued) 

Tangible and intangible assets (continued) 

Long-term assets are periodically reviewed for impairment. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than 
its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and the Bank reports an impairment loss. On disposal of tangible 
assets, the difference between the carrying amount and the sales price of the asset is reported as profit or loss for 

the current period in the item line “Other operating income”. 

No residual value Is recorded with respect to the aforesaid asset classes. At the end of the reporting period, the 
significance threshold value, adopted by the Group, for the recognition of tangible fixed assets, amounts to EUR 
153( BGN 300). Properties, plant or eguipment are derecognized upon their discard and the transfer of the control 

on it or when no further economic benefits may be expected from their continued use. 

Inventories 

Inventories are represented mainly by goods in stock held by a subsidiary and are valued at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. 

Real estate under construction, which is intended for subseguent realization through sale, is also presented as 
Inventories. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Leases 

A lease contract is a contract or part of a contract under which the right to use an asset or assets for a specified 
period of time is transferred for consideration. The assessment of whether a contract is a lease or contains elements 

of a lease is based on the circumstances existing at inception of the contract. 

The Group as a Lessor 

The Group classifies its lease contracts as finance or operating leases at the conclusion of the contract. Contracts 
that provide for the transfer of all risks and benefits of use and ownership of fne asset to the lessee are classified 
as finance leases. Assets sold under finance ieases are recognized as receivables at their present value and 
included in “Loans and advances to customers” in the statement of financial position. Revenue for the reporting 
period from finance leases is recognized using the effective interest rate, which reflects a constant retum on assets 

throughout the contract period. 

Gontracts that are not classified as finance leases at inception are recorded as operating leases. Rentals received 
under operating lease contracts are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract and are 
recognized in profit or loss for the period in item Other Operating Income. 

The Group as a Lessee 

The Group applies a single accounting model for all lease contracts the 'Tight-of-use-asset model. 

The Group is party to a number of long-term real estate lease contracts for the purposes of its operating activity. 
As a result of the changed accounting policy, the rightof-use-assets and coresponding liabilities, which represent 
the present value of the lease obligations for the term of the contract, are recognised in the statement of financial 

position. Lease assets and liabilities are recognised at the date on which the assets are available for use by the 
Group. The right-of-use-assets are presented in the statement of financial position within Tangible Assets item and 
the corresponding lease liabilities within Other Liabilities item. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Leases (continued) 

The Group as a Lessee (continued) 

The right-of-use-asset is initially measured at cost, considering: 
e (the amountof the lease liability recognised; 
e thelease payments made so far (if any); 
e  (he initial direct costs of the transaction 
e theestimated future costs of disposing of the asset, recorded as a provision (if any). 

For the subseguent reporting of these assets, the Group has chosen to apply the cost model. in applying this model, 
the right-of-use-asset is measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted 
for subseguent reameasurements of fhe lease liability. The right-of-use-assets are depreciated on a straight-line 
basis from the beginning of the contract to the end of the useful life of the asset or to the end of the lease term if 
the underlying asset is subject to retum to the lessor. Depreciation expense is recognized in profit or loss for the 
period as part of the total depreciation expense. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term, 
discounted at an incremental discount rate at the beginning of tne lease because the interest rate set in fhe contract 
cannot be reliably determined. The incremental interest rate reflects the estimated cost of financing the lessee on 
market terms. To determine the incremental interest rate, the Group uses information about the cost of its long- 
term borrowings - the interest rate on deposits with a maturity of more than one year or other loans received. The 
Group has chosen to use as a reference the interest rate on long-term financing received from BDB. 

After initial recognition, the lease liability increases with the interest and decreases with the lease payments made. 
In addition, its carrying amount is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the 
lease payments resulting from changes in the index or the interest rate used to determine them, or a change in the 
measurement of the option to buy the underlying asset. The remeasurements are treated at the same time as an 
adjustment of the liability and the right-of-use-asset. 

The subseguent lease payments are recognized in proportion as a decrease in the financial liability and as interest 
expense for the relevant period so as to achieve a constant interest expense on the remaining balance of the 
liability. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or interest rate are recognized as expense during 
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs. 

In the lncome Statement, interest expense on lease liabilities is presented separately ftom the depreciation expense 
of the right-of-use-asset. In the Cash Flow Statement, payments related to fhe lease liability are presented as cash 
flows from financial operations. 

Short-term leases and low-value asset leases 

The Group applies the IFRS 16 exemption from the recognition of lease liabilities and the right-of-use-asset in 
respect of. 

e short-term lease contracts with a term of up to 12 months with no purchase option 

e lease contracts for assets designated as low-value assets - the value of a new analogous asset should 
not exceed approximately USD 5,000 (e.g. office eguipment) 

In these cases, the lease contracts are recognized as a rental expense in profit or loss for the period determined 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accountind Policies (continued) 

Taxation 

Income tax for the reporting period comprises current and deferred tax. Ofher taxes that are not directly related to 
income for the period are reported as operating costs with the relevant balances at the end of the reportig period 

included in Other liabilities. 

The Group measures income tax in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations. The Income tax is 

calculated, based on the taxable profit, obtained upon transformation of the financial resulf, according to the 
reguirements of the Corporate Income Taxation Act 

The current tax assets and liabilities for the current and previous periods, are recognized at the amount, which is 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax authorities. The tax rates and tax laws and regulations, effective 
or signiticantly adopted at the date of the statement of financial position are applied for the calculation of he current 

taxes. In accordance with the Corporate Income Taxation Act, the nominal tax rate for 2022 and 2021 is 10%, 

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability method by taking into account all temporary difierences at the 
reporting date arising between the value of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts 

used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using fhe tax rates that are expected 
be in force in the period when the asset is disposed or the liabllity is settled as far as they may be rellably 
determined. The calculation of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax conseguences related to the 
expectations of the Group at the reporting date for disposal of certain assets, respectively, thie repayment of certain 
labilities. Deferred tax is recognized regardless of when reversal of temporary differences is expected to oecur. 
Temporary differences arise primarily in the context of different rates of depreciation of fixed assets and investment 

properties for taxation and accounting purposes, in terms of the valuation or revaluaton of certamn assets and 
liabilities. etc. (Note 11). 

Deferred tax assefs are recognlzed only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 

agalnst which the deferred tax assets can be utilized. At each reporting date, the Group reviews the recognized 
tax assets and revaluates them depending on the expectations for disposal. In case of reduced probability of 
achieving tax benefits, the deferred assets are reduced or removed. Deferred tax liabillties are recognlized for all 

taxable temporary difierences 

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and liabilities only when there Is a legally enforceable right to deduct current 
tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same laxation authority on the same taxable enterprise. 

Deterred taxes are charged directly n the eduity, when resulting from positions, which are reported directly in the 
eduity. 

Share capital 

The share capital is recorded at the nominal value of the issued and paid-in shares. The proceeds from the issued 
shares, exceeding their nominal value, are reported as premium reserves. 

The costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination, are deducted from 

eguity net of any related income taxes. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in eguity in the pertod in which 

they are approved by the shareholders. Dividends for the period declared after the date of the financial statements, 
are disclosed as an event after the reporting date. 

Cash dividends to the shareholders 

Liabilities for cash distributions to the owners are recognized, when the respective distribution has been approved 

by them and do not depend on fhe Group. The corresponding amount is debited directly to the eguity. In 2022 
BACB Finance has distributed divdidends to its ultimate owner BACB in the amount of EUR 1,023 thousands. The 
Bank and BACB Trade did not distributed any dividends in 2022 (2021: EUR 0). 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Provisions 

Provisions for legal claims or other obligations are recognized when the Group as a result of a past event, has a 
present legal or constructive obligation whose repayment is likely to be an outflow of economic benefifs. Provisions 
are recognized in tne event that tne amount of future cash outflows can be reliably determined. 

Employee benefits 

The short-term employee benefits include salaries, remunerations, intermediate and annual bonuses, social 
security contributions, and annual compensable employee leaves, which are expected to be fully settled within 12 
months after the end of the reporting period. When the Group receives the service, these are recognized as 
personnel costs in fhe profit or loss or are capitalized in the value of the asset. The short-term employee benefits 
are measured at the non-discounted amount of the expected settlement costs. 

The retiement compensations have been calculated in accordance with the Labor Code. By virtue of the applicable 
regulations, the Group is obliged to pay its employees upon retirement, either two or six gross monthly salaries, 
depending on the working experience of the respective employee. If an employee has worked at the Group for 10 
years, he/she receives six gross monthly salaries upon retirement, and if he/she has worked for less than 10 years 
— tWO. 

The Group determines its liabilities for the payment of employee benefits upon retirement, applying the actuarial 
method of fhe estimated credit units. Remesurements of the defined benefit plan, comprising of actuarial gains and 
losses, are recognized immediately in the ststement of financial position with a corresponding debit or credit to 
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remesurements are not reclassified to profi or 
loss in subseduent periods. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of the date of the plan 
amendment or curtailment, and the date that the Group recognizes related restructuring costs. Service costs 
comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements, 
are recognized as Personnel expense. Net interest is calculated by applying fhe discount rate to the net defined 
benefit liability and is recognized as Interest expense. 

Fair value measurement 

According to its accounting policy, the Group measures certain financial assets at fair value at the reporting date, 

as well as certain non-financial assets such as land, buildings used for own purposes and its investment properties. 

The fair values of the financial instruments measured at amortized cost and non-financial fixed assets, accounted 

for at thetr acguisition cost, less the accumulated depreciations and impairment losses, are disclosed in Note 30. 

Fair value is the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid for the transfer of a liability in a 
normal transaction between market players (an arm's length transaction) at the evaluation date. The fair value 
evaluation is based on the assumption that the transaction for the sale of an asset or the transter of a liability takes 

place: 

. on the main market for the respective asset or liability, or 

. if fhere is no main market, on the most favorable market for (he respective asset or liability. 

The main or most favorable market must be accessible by the Group. 
The fair value of the asset or liability is measured, applying the assumptions, which the market players would make 

when determining the price of (he asset or liability, if hey act to their best economic interest. 
The measurement of the fair value of non-financial assets, takes into consideration the capability of a market player, 
to generate economic benelits from using the asset, according to its most efficient and best use, or by selling the 

assel to another market player, who will use the asset, according to its most efficient and best use. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fair value measurement (centinued) 

The Group uses valuation methods, suitable for the respective cicumstances and providing sufficient data for the 
evaluation of the fair value, maximizing the use of appropriate monitored input data and minimizing the use of non- 
monitored input data. 

AI the assets and liabilities, evaluated at their fair value or retuiring disclosure of the fair value In the financial 

statement, are placed in calegories, based on fne fair value hierarchy, as detailed below, based on the lowest level 

of used input data, having significant effect on the measurement of the fair value in general: 
Level 1- Bid (non-adjusted) prices on the assel markets for identical assefs or liabilities are used 

Level 2 - Evaluation methods are employed, where tne lowest level of used input data, significant for the fair value 
measurement, is monitored elther directly or indirectly 

Level 3 - Evaluation methods are employed, where tne lowest level of used input data, significant for the fair value 

measurement, is not monitored 

For assets and liabilities, measured on a regular basis at their fair value, the Group reviews Hieir categorization at 

the relevant level in tne fair value hierarchy (based on the lowest level of used input data, having significant effect 
on the measurement of the fair value In general) at tie end of the reparling period and determines whether it is 
recessary lo make tanster($) fom one level to another 

Usually the evaluation of the fair value of the slgnificant assets (such as land and bulidings) is carried out by external 

valuators. The need of external valyators is assessed each year by the Management. The extemal valuators are 
selected based on their professional experience, reputation and independence. After discusslons with the specialist 
valuators, the Management decldes what evaluation methods and Input data are most appropriate for each 
separate case. 

At each reporting date, the Management carries out an analysis of the changes In the values of the assets and 
liabilities, which are subject to revaluation, according to Group's accounting policies. This includes a review of the 
key input data, used In the latest measurement and fhelr comparison to appropriate historical information, such as 
contracts signed and ofher relevant documents. Together with the evaluation specialists, tie Management 
compares the changes in the falr value of each asset or liabilfty, to appropniate extemal sources, in order to decide 
whether tne changes are reasonable. For tne purposes of disclosing thie fair vatue, the Group assigns thie assets 

and liabilities to various classes, depending on ineir nature, characteristics and risk and the respective level in the 
fair value hierarchy, as detailed above. 

Interest income and expense 

Interest income and expense are recognized in the profit or loss for the period for all interest bearing assets and 
liabilities using the effective interest method and in compliance with principle of accrual accounting. Interest income 
Or expense on securities or other debt instruments is based on contractual interest rate and includes unwinding of 
the discount or the premium on the instrument. as well. 

When loans are identified as impaired, their interest income is recognized using the effective interest method on 
the net carrying amount of the instrument, i.e. after deduction of the loss allowance. Actual interest income on 
impaired loans is recognized in profit or loss for the current period when it is received by the Group. 

0



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Fees and commission income 

Loan commitment fees and loan management fees are defermed and recognized in the profit or loss for the 

respective period, as part of the effective interest rate. 

The Group has identified the following 3 performance obligations according to IFRS 15 Contracts with customers: 

- . Sevicesrelated to transactions —revenue is recognised over time as the customer simuitaneously recelves 

and consumes the benefits due to the short term of providing the services. The fees for these sevices are 
based on the Terms and conditions of the Bank and represent fixed amount per transaction coresponding 

to the customers' benelit. The Groups applies the practical expedient in IFRS 15.B16 and recognizes the 

determined fee income from the transaction when completed. 

- Fees for issuing guarantees and letter of credits - revenue is recognised over time as the customer 

Simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits. The transfer of tne benefifs to the customer is 

consistent over time thus the Groupe uses a straightline method for amortization of fees over the 

contracted term. The fees for fhese sevices are fixed, calculated on the nominal amount of the guarantee 

or the letter of credil. 

- . Deposit accounts maintenance - revenue is recognised over time as the customer simultaneously 
receives and consumes the benefits. The fees for these sevices are based on the Terms and conditions 

of the Bank and represent fixed amount on a monthly base corresponding to the customers' benefit 
transferred. The Groups applies the practical expedient in IFRS 15.B16 and recognizes the determined 
tee income from the transaction when completed, according to Tariff. 

Fiduciary assets in safekeeping arrangements 

The Group keeps assets on behalf of its clients, as an investment agent. such assets are not disclosed in the 
statement nf financial position, because tiese are not assets of tie Group. 

Operating segments 

The Group falls within the scope of IFRS 8 - Operating Segments - because it issues debt instruments, which are 
traded on a public market and conseguently submit their financial reports to the Financial Supervision Commission 
(FSC), as the regulatory authority. Nevertheless, fhe Group does not provide additional disclosures relating to 
operating segments due to fhe nature of the regulatory environment in which it operates, the inability to determine 
the segments in operational activity, as well as lack of redguirement to report them separately for the purposes of 
accountability to the Management, 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Judgments, estimations and assumptions 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the Group reguires ftom the Management to make 

judgments, estimations and assumptions, which concern the reporting periods, costs, assels, liabilities and 

concurrent disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities, 

The uncertainty, regarding these assumptions and estimations may result in significant adjustments to the balance 

value of the assets or liabilities in subseguent reporting periods. 

Judagments 

In the process of implementation of the accounting policy of the Group, the Management has made the following 

judgments in addition to those, including estimations and assumptions, which have the most significant effect on 
the amounts, recognized in the financial statement. 

Going concem 

When preparing the financial statement the Group's management has made an assessment of the ability of the 

Group companies and the Group, itself, to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. The management 
is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue in 
business and therefore the financial statement is prepared on the going concern basis. Also the managemet does 
not expect any materilal uncertainties, events or circumstances that may prevent he subsidiaries to carry out their 
operating activity. 

leases — Classification of leased properly (he Group as a lesson) 

The Group has leased some of its investment properties and properties held for sale. As a lessor, based on the 
terms and conditions of fhe lease contracts, it has determined fhat it preserves all the significant risks and benefits, 

resulting fom the ownership of such properties and that the lease term does not cover much of the economic liie 
of the property and therefore accounts for these contracts as operating lease. (Note 8) 

Determining the lease term for contracts with renewal and termination options (lhe Group as lessee) 

The Group determines the lease term as tfie irrevocable term of the contract, together with any periods covered by 

the option to extend it, if it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised, or any periods covered by the 
option for termination of the lease, if it is reasonably certain tnat (he option will not be exercised. Some of the leases 

include extension and termination options. The Group considers all material factors that create an economic 
Incentive to exercise elther the renewal option or the termination option to determlne the lease term for which ft 

calculates lease llabilities as reliably as possible. In the event of significant events or changes in circumstances 
affecting the Group's ability to exercise or not the relevant option, the lease term is adjusted according to the 
changed cicumstances 

Leases - Fshmated incremental borrowing rate (the Group as lessee) 

The Group cannot reliably determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, fherefore, an incremental borrowing rate 

is used to measure the lease liabilities. The incremental borrowing rate is the interest rate that the Group would 

pay to borrow the funds necessary to acguire an asset of simllar value to the right-of-use-asset for a similar period 

and with simllar security in a similar economic environment. Therefore, setfing the incremental borrowing rate 

reduires an estimate when observable interest rates are not available or when fhey need to be adjusted to reflect 
the terms of (ne lease. As most of the lease contracts for office rentals have an original term between 5 and 10 

years, the Group determines lfs incremental borrowing rate based on tfie cost of its long-term financing at the date 

of the lease. 
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3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Judgments, estimations and assumptions (continued) 

Judgments (continued) 

Classification of assets as held for sale or investment property 

For the initia! classification of assets acguired as collaterals on loans, the Group makes judgments related to the 
classification of these assets either as assets held for sale, investment properties or other assets. The Group form 
their judgment for the initial recognition of assefs based on the objectives for the future utilization and disposal of 
the acguired assets. In addition to the date of the statement of financial position, the Management reviews its 
intentions regarding the use and/or realization of these assets and, as a result, reclassification is made between 

assets for sale and investment properties. (Notes 19 and 21) 

Estimations 

The main assumptions regarding the future and other key sources of uncertainty at the reporting date, which resulit 

in a significant risk for a major adjustment of the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities within the following 

financial year, are detailed below. 

The Group bases its assumptions and estimates of the existing parameters at the moment of preparation of the 

consolidated financial statements. The existing circumstances and assumptions for future development may 
change due to market changes or circumstances beyond the controf of the Group. All such changes are recorded 

in tie assumptions, when they oeeur. 

Defermination of ECLS for financial assets win low credit risk 

Low credit risk instruments are those for which there is a low non-performance risk, the counterparty's ability to 
perform its contractual obligations in the short run is stable, negative long-term economic conditions are unlikely to 

change the abilty to repay the liabilities due. For its short-term recelvables from banks and debt instruments 

measured at amortized cost or at fair value in OCI, the Group assumes as at the reporting date that the likelihood 
of default is unlikely and therefore determines 12-month credit losses for them. If the low credit risk criteria are no 
longer met in the subseguent reporting periods, tnie Group performs an analysis of the change in credit risk relative 
to the initial recognition in order to assess the need for a loss allowance over the ful! period of the instrumert, 

Determining instruments as instruments with low eredit risk reguires judgment. In making fnis judgment, the Group 
uses all reasonable and substantiated information that is available without incurring unnecessary expenses or 
elforts, (Note 32.2). 

Determination of ECLs fom loans and advances 

As disclosed in Note 32.2 Credit risk, tne Group has developed a policy to assess changes in credit guality and 
determine the expected credit losses on financial instruments. The Group classifies its risk assets into three risk 
stages depending on the changes in credit risk after the initial recognition of the asset and accordingly estimates 
the expected credit losses based on the 12-month probability of default if there is no change in credit guality (Stage 

1) and based on the probability of default over the entire duration of the instrument (Stage 2 and Stage 3), if there 
is a significant increase in oredit risk. In determining the extent to which the credit risk is significantly increased in 

relation to the initial recognition of an asset, the Group uses all reasonable and substantiated information that is 
available without incuring unmecessary expenses or efforts. 

Loss on default (LGD) is an estimate of the damage that the Group would suffer upon a defauit event and is based 
on the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, including 

from collateral and other credit facilities. Significant judgment is reguired to determine the timing and amount of tne 

expected cash flows, including when determining the value of the respective collateral. The Management uses 
judgments, based on the historical experience, related to losses, with respect to assets, with inherent credit risk 
and objective cicumstances for impairment, similar to those in the portfolio, when calculating the future cash flows. 
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3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Judgments, estimations and assumptions (continued) 

Estimations (continued) 

In determining the amount of expected credit losses, the Group uses estimated information about expected future 
changes in certain economic conditions and indicators and assumptions how changes in these indicators would 
affect the probability of default. 

The 'Likelihood of default (PD) parameter is a key factor to calculating the amount of expected credit losses and 
reflects the likelinood that the counterparty wil not implement its contractual obligations over a given time horizon. 
The Bank has developed internal models for determining the probability of default on loans based primarily on 
historical information for a period for which it is available. The assessment of the correlation between the historical 
default rates and the estimated economic indicators is a significant estimate. The Group's historical experience with 
credit losses and economic forecasts may also not be considered representative of fhe actual losses in the 
future.(Note 32.2). 

Fair value of financial instruments 

When the fair values of the financial assets and labllities in the statement of financial position cannot be received 

from the asset markets, these are determined with the help of various evaluation technigues, which include the use 
of mathematical models. The input data for these models, result from indicators, which are observed on the financial 
markets, where possible, and otherwise assumptions shall be used to determine the fair value. The assumptions 
take into consideration factors, related to liguidity, volatility for longer-term derivatives and discount rates, early 
payments and non-performance provisions, related to securities, secured by assets. (Note 30) 

Measurement of the acguired assets from collaterals 

The properties, which prior to fheir acauisition have served as collaterals to loans granted, are classified by the 
Group as assets held for sale or investment property. According to the accounting policies adopted by the Bank, 

the assets that are classified as held for sale are subseguently measured at the lower of thelr carrying amount and 
their fair value. To determine the fair value of assets for sale, the Group uses estimates by independent external 
valuators. 

Acauired assets that are classified as investment property are subseguently measured at fair value at the reporting 

date. To determine the fair value of investment properties, the Group uses valuations prepared by independent 
external valuators with appropriate professional gualifications and necessary experience to evaluate similar real 
estate. 

The appraisers are members of the Chamber of Independent Appraisers in Bulgaria and they have appropriate 
gualdications and recent experience in the valuation of properties. The valuations, which conform to International 
Valuation Standards, were arrived at by using the specified in the standard valuation methods and reference to 
market evidence of ttansactions or offer prices for similar properties (Note 30). 

Assels in process of development 

Initially these assets are stated at cost. After initial recognition the assets are measured at the lower of cost and 
net realizable value. The net realizable value is the estimated salling prise in the ordinary course of business less 
cost to sell. The assessment of the net realizable value is based on the best evidence available at the date of the 
valuation. The net realzable value is evaluated at each reporting date. Where the cicumstances that led to a 
decrease in the value of the asset below the acgulsition value no longer exist or where there is clear evidence of 
an increase in the net realizable value due to a change in the economic situation, the amount of the decrease 
should be reversed. 
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4 Net interest income 

Interest income 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 
Debt instruments at FVOCI 

Debt instruments at amortized cost 

Total interest income 

Interest expense 

Deposits 

Debt securities in issue 
Other borrowed funds 

Lease agreements 

Assets" 

Total interest expense 

Interest income, net 

  

  

  

  

2022 2021 

790 9 
27,183 25,021 

361 352 
414 135 

28748. 25,517 

(697) (1,371) 
(16) - 

(222) (253) 
(63) (39) 

(1,082) (1,013) 
(2,080) (2,676) 

26,668 22,841 
  

“The amount represents interest paid on placements wilh BNB and other banks. 

The Group recognizes interest income on impaired loans only on the net amount of the exposure after decreasing 
the accumulated expected credit loss. As part of interest income on loans and advances to customers, the Group 
has recognised interest income on impaired loans in 2022 in the amount of EUR 1,819 thousand (2021: EUR 2,314 

thousand). 

5 Fees and Commissions Income, Net 
  

Fees and commissions income 

Fees and commissions from transactions 

Deposit accounts 

Guarantees and lefters of credit 

Total fees and commissions income from contract with 

customers 

Loans and advances to customers 

Other services 

Total fees and commissions income 

Fees and commissions expense 

Bank cards 

Payment and ofher services 

Total fees and commissions expense 

Fees and commissions income, net 

2022 

5,163 
2,011 

284 

7,498 

524 

63 

8,049 

(364) 
GI 

451 
7,594 

2021 

4235 
1,346 

216 

5797 

AAG 

67 

6,310 

(257) 

(77) 

34 

9,976 

As part of Payment and other services, fhe Group has realized income from fees on fiduciary activity in 2022 in fhe 

amount of EUR 4 thousand (2021: EUR 4 thousand). 
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6 Net exchande rate differences 

Gains and losses, resulting from the revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency 
are presented net in profit or loss for the year. In 2022, the realized gain on revaluation of assets and ljabilities 

denominated in foreign currency is EUR 423 thousand (2021: gain of EUR 145 thousand). 

7 Gains on financial assets at fair value throudh profit or loss 

The reported gain on financial assets at FV through profit or loss In 2022 in the amount of EUR 82 thousands 
represents the net change in fair value of the Investment 'n shares of Visa Inc. (2021: gain of EUR 150 thousands). 

8 Other operating income and expense 

  

  

  

  

Other operating income 2022 2021 

Galns on disposal of assets held for sale 7,521 50 

Galns from sale of goods and non-financial sevices 1235 1,228 

Rental income from investment properties 185 190 

Rental income from assets held for sale 126 144 

Falr value changes of investment properties - 31 

Gains on disposal of investment properties E E 

Miscellaneous other o 160 71 

Other operating income 9217 1,714 

Other operafing expense 2022 MA 

Direct administrative expenses arising from investment properties (619) (638) 

Fair value changes of investment properties (455) - 

Direct administrative expenses arising ftom assets held for sale (308) (259) 

Loss on disposal of investment properties (123) (162) 

Provision expense for law case liabilty - (131) 
Direct administrative expenses arising from assets under 

development (13) (23) 
Miscellaneous other _ (89) (20) 

Other operating expense (1,607) (1,233) 
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9 Administrative expenses 

Professional services 

Eduipment maintenance 

Marketing 
Overhead costs 

Audit costs* 
Rent** 

  

Deposit insurance Fund and Banks Restructuring Fund contributions 

Miscellaneous other"** 

Administrative expenses 
  

2022 2021 
2,598 2,710 
1772 1,748 
450 d92 
463 282 
239 183 
194 220 

1,574 1,580 

847 677 

8,137 7,182 
  

* For 2022 the amount includes EUR 239 thousand expenses for independent financial audit (2021:177 thousand) and EUR 0 
(2021:6 thousand) other fees, not related to the financial audit. 
** The Group has contracts for the lease of commercial space in large shopping centers, the terms of which are 12 monihs or 
less. These laases are subject to the recognition exempltion for "short-term leases". 

*** Miscellaneous expenses include membership fees, office supplies, travel and related expense, local taxes and similar other. 

10 Impairment on Financial Assets 

The following tables provide information on the ECL charges on financial asset for 2021 and 2021 respectively: 

022 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 
incl. Reversals due to reclassification from 

Stage 3 to Stage2 or Stage1 
incl. Effect from modificafions 

Debt instrtuments at FVOCI 
Debt insttuments at amortised cost 

Other financial assets 
Financial guaranties 

Total 

2021 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 
inel. Reversals due to reclassification from 
Stage 3to Stage2 or Stage1 

incl, Effect from modifications 

Debt instruments at FVOCI 

Debt insttuments at amortised cost 

Other financial assets 
Financial guaranties 

Total 

  

  

  

  

  

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Individual Collective Individual Gollective 'Individual Colleclive  TOTAL 

3 - - - - - 3 

56 217 37 241 1,441 826 2818 

- (24) (238) (10) - (272) 

(24) 238 27 2 (2) 1 

(14) - - - - a 
@ - - - - -A 

Ë 1 - - A - 42 
2 M - - - 2) 

39 214 37 241 1,482 826 2,839 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 
Individual Collective Individual Collective 'ndividual Collective TOTAL 

(29) - - - ) 
114 725 79 146 2490 832  4,386 

- (45) - (16) - (61) 
(17) 825 d 13 1 (6) 619 

20 - - - - 20 
31 - - - - 31 

Ë 3) 30 - M - 51 
4 2 i - (62) - (56) 

140 724 109 146 2452 832 d 403 
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10 (|mpairment on Financial Assets (continued 

In 2022, the 'Impairment of financial assets' stem In the statement of comprehensive income includes the recognized 

effect on modfication of loans and advances of EUR 241 thousands (2021: EUR 819 thousands) The net amount 
of write-offs or recoveries recognized direct in profit or loss for 2022 's zero (2021; gain of EUR 19 thousands). 

11 Taxes 

2022 2021 

Current tax expense (2,378) (1,012) 
Deterred tax expense (15) (29). 
Tax expense (2,393) (1,041) 

Corporate tax on profit 

The Bank and its consolidated subsidiaries are subject to income tax (tax on profif) pursuant to fhe Corporate 
income Tax Act. Tax rate applicable to the taxable profit of tne Bank for 2022 is 10% (2021: 10%). 

Tax retums are subject to audit by the tax authorities and the limitation period for verification is five years after 
submission of the tax retum. The tax assessment notice, which finalizes an appointed tax audit for a certain period, 
under certain circumstances, could be reviewed within anothier 5 years after the year of issue. There were no tax 

audits in 2022 for the Group. 

Effective tax rate 

The following table presents a calculation of the expected tax on profit compared to the real one: 

  

  

MR 2021 

Profit before tax 23,942 10282 

Tax rate o 10.00% 10.00% 

Tax according to tax rate (2,3%4) (1,028) 

Tax unrecognized (expense)/income 68 (2) 

Non taxable income 1 - 

Otner tax differences (58) (11) 

Tax expense (2,393) (1,041) 

Effective tax rate 10.0% 10.13% 
  

Deferred taxes 

As of 31 December 2022 deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet method on all temporary differences 
at the effective tax rate of 10% (2021: 10%). 
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11 Taxes (continued 

Deferred taxes (continued) 

The movement on the deferred tax assets and liabilities is as follows: 

2022 2021 

Deferred tax (liabilities) net at the beginning of the year (93) (64) 

Deferred tax recognized direct in eguity 252 - 

Deferred tax (expense) (15) (29) 

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net at the end of fhe year 144 (93) 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following items in the statement of financial position: 

2022 2021 

Deferred tax assets 
Investment properties 93 111 
Assets held for sale 13 35 
Other temporary differences 93 52 

Total deferred tax assets 199 198 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Fixed tangible and intangible assets (9) (30) 
Property revaluation (46) (261) 
Total deferred tax liabilities (65) (291) 

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net 144 (93) 

The change in deferred tax for the year is related to the following items: 

2022 2021 

Revaluation of investment properties to fair value (18) (37) 
Impairment of assets held for sale (22) 12 
Accelerated tax depreciation (16) (2) 
Other temporary differences 41 (2) 

Deferred tax expense (15) (29) 

12 Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share 

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the Group's shareholders by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period. In calculating diluted earings per share, 
the effect of all potential ordinary shares dilutive should be taken into account. For BACB, the income per diluted 
share is egual to basic earnings per share due to the fact that there are no potential ordinary shares dilutive. The 
Bank has decided to disclose earing per share in the Separate Financial Statements prepared and approved by 
the Management Board on 23 March 2023. 
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13 Cash on hand and balances with the Central Bank 

13.1. Cash and balances wifh fhe Central Bank 

  

  

2022 2021 

Cash on hand 6406 6,088 
Balances with the Central Bank da8 596 231,971 

Cash and balances with the Central Bank 445 002 238 059 
  

The balances with the Central Bant include fhe minimum reguired reserve (MRR), amounting to EUR 107,197 
thousands and EUR 87293 thousands as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, respectively. The 
minimum reguired reserve is calculated as a percentage of borrowed funds, with the exception of those borrowed 

from local banks, and no interest is charged thereon. MRR is measured on a monthly basis and daily fluctuations 
are allowed. The funds in accounts with BNB ensuring compliance with the MRR reguirements are available for 
use by the Bank in its daily operations and therefore are not reported as encumbered assets. As of 31 December 

2022 the amount of the minimum reserve was 5% on borrowed funds from foreign customers and counterparties 
and 10% on all ofher borrowed funds. As of 31 December 2022 the balances with the Central Bank include the 
amountof EUR 1,814 thousand (2021: EUR 1,499 thousand) representing BACB's participation in a new Guarantee 
Mechanism of a system processing card-based payment transactons - BORICA. 

13.2. Cash and cash eguivalents reported in the consolidated statemenf of cash flows 

For consolidated statement of cash flows purposes, cash and cash eguivalents include cash on hand and balances 
with the Central Bank and loans and advances to banks with maturity up to 3 months, as follows: 

  

  

2022 2021 
Cash and balances with the Central Bank 445,002 236,059 

Loans and advances to banks with maturity up to 3 months 23,653 85869 
Funds restricted as collateral (18,755) (4,097) 

Cash and cash eguivalents 449,900 319,831 
  

The funds restricted in accounts with other banks, secure the financial commitments made by the Group for 
guarantees and letters of credit, as well as payments to card operators. The amounts, securing payments to card 
operators, are determined based on the volume of ttansactions in a certain period of time and these have the nature 
of guarantees, which can be used to cover payments made, in case of non-performance by the Group. 

14 Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to banks represent current accounts and shori-term deposits with original maturity up to three 
months with local banks and foreign correspondent banks. For the purposes of consolidated statement of cash 

flows, the balances on these accounts are included as cash eguivalents, excluding amounts in accounts restricted 
as guarantee. 

  

  

  

2022 2021 

Current accounts with ofher banks 4808 2,956 

Deposits with other banks - 78816 

Restricted funds on the accounts 18,755 4,(97 

Loans and advances to banks 23 653 85869 

Less: ECL allowance (5) (2) 

Loans and advances to banks, net 23 648 85 867 
  

40



BULGARIAN-AMERIGAN CREDIT BANK AD 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGCIAL STATEMENTS 
41 DECEMBER 2092 
Al amounts are in fhousands of EUR unless otharwise stated 

15 Loans and advances to customers 

Loans and advances to customers 

Less: ECL allowance 

Loans and advances to customers, net 

Loan segmentation by customer 

Type of Customer 

individuals 

Businesses 

Loans and advances to customers 

Less: ECL collective 

Less: ECL individual 

Loans and advances to customers, net 

Industry Sector 

Real estate construction 

Wholesale distribution 

Hotels 
Eleetricity production 

Primary agriculture and farming 

Real estate investment&Land development 
Transportation 
Food processing 
Furniture and wood products 

Financial services 
Light industry 
Chemical industry 
Retail 
Production of metal products and eduipment 
Waste collection and recicling 
IT services 
Entertainment and Recreation 
Other 

Exposures to corporate customers 
Morigage loans to individuals 
Consumer loans to individuals 

Loans and advances to customers 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2022 2021 

735,719 671,809 

(30,724) (34,365) 

704 995 637 444 

2022 2021 

171,716 145,120 

564,003 926,689 

745,718 671,809 

(3,670) (4,317) 

(27,054) (30,048) 

704,995 637 444 

2022 2021 
Loan portfolio, Loan portfolio, 
Gross, before Loan portfolio, Gross, before Loan portfolio, 
ECL allowance Net ECL allowance Net 

83206 75445 77,633 66,486 
67,233 66,186 59,857 58,769 
61,069 59400 60,880 59149 
40,985 40,422 36,276 36,178 

37,510 d6,732 38,382 37,708 
29,199 23763 23,004 17,637 
28721 28,031 35,595 35,048 
27,329 26,630 24589 24,021 
22,981 20,566 25017 21,834 
22571 22,235 17,981 17,725 
19,402 17,414 7,857 5,657 
17,332 17,307 21,058 21,033 
16,163 16,068 13,350 13,243 
15,313 15,074 11,408 11,352 

15,290 15272 15,204 15,204 
10,297 10,289 12,395 12,392 
9,460 8,955 8,958 8,431 

39953 d7,296 37246 34 921 

564,004 537,085 526,690 496,798 
132,460 132,134 107,169 106,833 
d9 255 35776 37,950 33.813 

735,119 704,995 671,809 637 444 

41



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS 

241 DECEMBER 2022 

AI amounts are in t(housands of EUR uniess otherwise stafed 

15 (oans and advances to customers fcontinued)   

Loan segmentation by customer (continued) 

The reporting pericd shows an improved portfolio diversification as a result of the highly activity in retail segment 

and moderate increase of tne exposures to industry sectors as Construction, Wholesale distrbution and Electricity 

production. As at 31 December 2022, the exposures to most cyclical sectors (construction, hotels, real estate 
transactlons) remain at the previous year level - 23.6% of the gross loan portfolio, compared to 24% an year ago. 
In line with tne nutlined policy, retail segment expansion has also been achieved. At the end cf 2022 the volume of 
consumer and housing loans to individuals increased to 23.3% of the gross loan portfolio, compared to 21.6% an 

year earlier 

Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivable in the total carrying amount of EUR 9205 

thousand as of 341 December 2022 (2021: EUR 10,59% thousand). As at 31 December 2022, the expected credit 
losses recognized on lsase recefvables amount to EUR 104 thousand (2021; EUR 145 thousand). 

The tables below contain informatjon, regarding the lease receivables, as of 31 December 2021 and 2021. 

  

  

  

  

  

2022 Up;g;r 1 to 5 years 0; ; ;rg Total 

Gross investment in finance leases 2501 7,677 235 10,413 

Unearned future income on finance lease (437) (746) (25) (1,208) 

Net minimum lease payments 2064 6,931 210 9 205 

2024 Up;g a1r 1 to 5 years O;: ar ê Total 

Gross investment in finance leases 2537 8,338 997 11,872 

Uneamed future income on finance lease (397) (836) (40) (1,273) 

Net minimum lease payments 2140 7,502 957 10,599 
  

Information, regarding the effective interest rate on financial instruments as of 31 December 2022 and 41 December 
2021 is included in note 32.3.2 Interest rate risk. 
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16 Financial assets at fair value throuah profit or loss 

This item presents the Group's investment in shares of Visa nc. This investment is measured at fair value reflecting 
the fair value changes in profit or loss for the period. 

The Group acauired these shares as a result of BACB's membership in VISA Europe, which has been sold to VISA. 
Inc. In 2016, the process of selling 100% of the share capital of VISA Europe to VISA Inc. was finalized, with each 
member of VISA Europe receiving a corresponding proportional consideration. According to covenants of the final 
transaction, the consideration for tne members of Visa Europe comprises three components — closing cash 
consideration, deferred cash consideration to be paid after the third year following the closing date and a pre- 
defined number of Visa Inc convertible Class C preferred shares. The acauired Series C preferred shares are 
subject to mandatory conversion into Class A ordinary shares /or Series A preferred shares, where applicablef 
within a 12-year period at a certain ratio which is subject to review and adjustment over time under certain 
conditions. The newly issued Class A or Series A shares are not subject to restrictions and can be freely transferred. 

The model for determination of the fair value of the Class C convertible prefermed shares of Visa Inc. is based on 
the information about the indicative conversion ratio to the Class A ordinary shares of Visa Inc., information about 
the guocted market value of the Class A ordinary shares and takes into account the lack of liguidity due to tne 
restrictions for selling the investment within a 12-year period after closing the transaction. 

The model for measuring the fair value of Series A preferred shares of Visa Inc. is based on a fixed conversion 
ratio to the Class A ordinary shares of Visa Inc. and information about the guoted market value of the Class A 
ordinary shares. Unlike Class C shares, the Series A shares are not subject to a trading restrictions, therefore the 
model does not include a discount for lack of liguidity. 

The change in the fair value of the investment for fhe current year is recognized in profit or loss and is presented 
in the item “Net gain on financial assets at fair value tgrough profit or loss” of the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 

The fair value of the investment in VISA Inc. as of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is presented bellow: 

2022 2021 

Visa Inc convertible preferred stocks class C 271 515 

Visa Inc preferred stocks class A 332 - 

Total 609 515 
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17 Financial instruments at FVOCI 

During the reporting period, the Group manages its investments in Bulgarian bonds, as a part of the management 
of its liguid assets 

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the investments measured a fair value 
in OCl is as follows: 

2022 2021 
Debt instruments af FVOCI 

EUR Bulgarian Government Bonds 16 605 19 165 

BGN Bulgarian Govermment Bonds 17,559 14,078 
EUR Corporate Bonds d,947 A,147 

BGN Corporate Bonds 1,030 1,030 

Debt instruments at FVOCI 42141 38 420 

Including collateral for attracted funds from the state budget 2022 2021 

BGN Bulgarian Govemment Bonds 6,080 2,634 

EUR Bulgarian Govemment Bonds - 3,369 

Total pledged as collateral 6,080 6,003 

As stated In tne table above, as af 41 December 2022, debt instruments with a carrying amount of EUR 6,080 

thousand, measured at fair value in OC1 (2021: EUR 6,003 fhousand) are pledged in connection with the statutory 
reguirement for banks to secure government bonds with the funds aftracted on budget accounts. 

The fair value of both Bulgarian government bonds and corporate bonds is determined on the basis of guoted 
market prices on actve markets at tne reporting date. 

As at 31 December 2022, BACB also reports eguity investments at fair value in OCI of EUR 2,092 fhousand (2021: 
EUR 2,093 thousand), as follows: 

  

  

2022 2021 
Shares In Bulgarian paymert services companles 1,500 1,500 

Investment in shares of TIXI AD 500 500 

BSE Shares 92 93 

Total 2,092 2,093 

Determination of the fair value of investments in edguity securities is based on valuation models using direct and 
indirect market information. 

For the valuation of the investment in shares on the BSE, guotations ftom active market are used at the reporting 
date. 

Valuation models have been used to assess the fair value of the other ecuity investments, as there are no active 
market data for fhese eduity securities. More information on the models applied, is presented in Note 40 of these 
financial statements. 

The levels cf the inputs into tne valuation technigues applied with respect to financial assets at FVOCI as per tne 

Fair vaiue hierarchy defined by IFRS 13 are disclosed in Note 30 

m



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

341 DECEMBER 2022 

Al amounts are in thousands of EUR uniess otherwise stated 

18 Debtinstruments at amortized cost 

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 the Group reports a portfolio of debt instuments at amortized 
cost as follows: 

2022 2021 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

EUR Bulgarian Government Bonds 19,970 22,729 
BGN Bulgarian Government Bonds 6,993 - 
EUR Foreign Govermment Bonds 19.973 1,039 
USD Foreign Govemment Bonds 18.855 13,297 
Debt instruments at amortised cost 65,791 37,065 

Less: ECL allowens (33) (41) 

Debt instruments at amortised cost, net 65,758 37,024 

As at 31 December 2022 the Bulgarian Govermment bonds of EUR 12,069 thousand (2021: EUR 9,963 thousand) 
are fully pledged as collateral for aftracted funds from the state budget counterparties. 

19 Investment properties 

  

  

  

  

  

Buildings 
under 

Fair Value Buildings construction Land Total 

31 December 2020 25753 11,187 13 577 50517 

Additions in 2021 5,000 - - 5,000 

Reclassified from assets held for sale 465 - 429 884 

Disposals 2021 (2,396) (169) (929) (3,494) 

Change in fair value 143 (68) (44) 31 

31 December 2021 28,955 10,950 13.033 52938 

Reclassified from assets held for sale - - 25 25 

Disposals 2022 (6,088) (300) (4,104) (10,492) 

Change in fair value 170 (431) (194) (455) 

31 December 2022 23 037 10,219 8760 42016 
  

During 2022, there were no acauisitions of new investment properties. Investment properties are presented in the 
statement of financial position at fair value. As of 31 December 2022, the fair value of the investment properties 
has been obtained on the basis of valuations, carried out by independent extemal appraisers. The appraisers are 
members of the Chamber of Independent Appraisers in Bulgaria and they have appropriate gualifications and recent 
experience in the valuation of properties. The valuations, which conform to Intemational Valuation Standards, were 
arrived at by using the specified in the standard valuation methods and reference to market evidence of ttansactions 
or offer prices for similar properties (Note 30). 
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20 Tanaible, intangible assets and right-of-use assets 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Inntangibie 
assets 

Land and Right- under 
baildings of-use Other developrne 
revalued assets Tangibles nt Intangibles Total 

Cost or valuation 

31 December 2020 A,117 4736 4421 312 2,093 15,679 
Additions in 2021 - 2,615 87 17 167 2,B76 
Disposals in 2021 - (1,4%9) (217) - (18) (1,734) 

41 December 2021 d,M7 5 852 4291 329 2282 16,821 

Additions In 2022 - 2,038 336 16 271 2,667 

Revaluation to FV 238 - - - - 238 
Depreciation written off on 

revaluation (A482) - - - - (462) 
Reclassification to assets 
held for sale (3,584) - - - , (3,584) 

Disposals in 2022 - (573) (121) - (45) (4,323) 

31 December 2022 289 7,317 4506 345 2,464 14 921 

Accumulated Depreclafion and 
impairment 
31 Decermber 2020 224 2,093 3,068 - 1508 6,893 

Charge for 2021 134 1,115 400 - 217 1,866 

Disposals 2021 - (1,499) (214) - (18)  (173%0) 

31 December 2021 358 1,709 d,254 - 1,797 7,028 

Charge for 2022 124 1,159 d6d - 222 1,889 
Depreciation written off on 

revaluation (4827) - - - (482) 

Disposals 2022 - (568) (83) - (45) (696) 

31 December 2022 - 2,300 3,555 - 1,884d 7,739 

Net book value 

31 December 2021 3759 d,143 1,038 329 925 9794 

31 Decernber 2022 289 5017 951 45 s80 7,182 
  

The office buildings are presented in the statement of financial position at revalued amount, and all other assets — 
at cost less the accumulated depreciation and impairment. 

As of 31 December 2022, the Group has fully depreciated assets, which are still used in its operations, amounting 
to EUR 3,653 thousand (2021: EUR 3,423 thousand). 
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21 Assets held for sale 

Balance at 31 December 2020 10,699 

Transferred to investment properties (884) 

Additions in 2021 378 

Disposals in 2021 (1,129) 

Impairment in 2021 (124) 

Balance at 31 December 2021 . 8940 

Transferred to investment properties (25) 

Transferred from own properties d,584 

Additions in 2022 5,869 

Disposals in 2022 (6,075) 

Impairment in 2022 7) 

Balance at 41 December 2022 12286 

The fair value of properties classified as assets held for sale at 41 December 2022 is valued at EUR 12,296 
thousand (2021: EUR 8,984 thousand). The fair value has been arrived on the basis of valuations, carried out by 
external independent appraisers. The appraisers are members of the Chamber of Independent Appraisers in 
Bulgaria and they have appropriate agualifications and recent experience in the valuation of properties. The 
valuations are obtained using the methods and references specified in the Intemational Valuation Standards for 
market certificates from transactions or bid prices of similar properties. (Note 30) 

During the year the Group acduired new assets classified as held for sale, amounting to a total of EUR 5,868 
thousand, of which assets in the amount of EUR $,675 thousand (2021: EUR 365 thousand) were settled against 
direct reduction of loan portfolio. 

22 Investments in companies of the Group and joint ventures 

Companies of the Group consolidated in full in the present financial statements 

These financial statements are prepared by the Bank and the Group companies which are subsidiaries and are fully 
consolidated. As of 31 December 2022, the Bank has two subsidiaries - BACB Finance EAD and BACB Trade EAD, 
which it fully owns. 

BACB Finance EAD is a subsidiary providing financial services and has supporting functions for the Bank. Through 
this subsidiary BACB carries out leasing transactions, as well as commercial and consumer lending transactions, 
using the company's own funds for this purpose and, if necessary, funding from the Bank. In 2015 BACB Finance 
EAD was registered as a financial institution under the reguirements of BNB Regulation #26. 

BACB Trade EAD is 100% owned by BACB. The company was incorporated in 2013 with subject of activity 
financial-consulting and trade-consulting activity. 
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22 Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures (continued) 

Joint ventures 

The Group considers as a joint vnture its investment in "IDS Fund” AD, an investment fund established in 2019 with 
main purpose to support companies with good business ideas that strive to realize their full potential on the market. 
The Fund provides support in the form of debt financing instruments, guarantees, standard financing, share 
acguisition with buyback options, etc. The shareholders - founders of the Fund are the BACB's subsidiary BACB 
Finance EAD and CSIF AD - the largest shareholder in BACB, holding 50% of tne registered capita each. As of 31 
December 2022 the registered and paid-in capital of IDS Fund is BGN 1 million, divided in one million registered 
and indivisible voting shares at a nominal value of BGN 1 each. After analysis, the Group has designated the 
investment as a joint venture and presents it in its consolidated financial statements using the eguity method. The 
investment is initially measured at cost and subseguently adjusted for the post-acguisition changes in the investors 
share of the investee's net assets. In August 2019 IDS Fund made its first financial investment acguiring 75% of the 
share capital of ORK Consult LTD with core activity - food trading. ORK Consult Ltd is a subsidiary and is 
consolidated by IDS Fund. At the end of March 2020 IDS Fund acguired 35% of the share capital of another entity 
— Vital Concept Ltd and subseguently, in September, increased its share to 44%. IDS Fund considers the company 
Vital Concept Ltd, whose main activity is production and distribution of food supplements, as an associate and 
presents this investment under the eguity method in its consolidated financial statements. 

As of 31 December 2022, IDS Fund prepared consolidated financial statements for the purpose of the consolidated 
statements of tne Group. Summarized financial information of IDS Fund AD as at 31 December 2022 is presented 
in the following tables: 

Summarised statement of financial position 

  

  

  

  

2022 2021 

Non-current assets 137 255 
Current assets 248 176 
Goodwil 87 87 
Non-current liabilities (166) (164) 
Current liabilities (96) (85) 

Eaguity attributable to controlling interest 230 275 
Eaguity attributable to non-controlling interest (20) (7) 
Group's carrying amount of the investment in joined venture - 50% 115 1375 

S$ummarised statement of comprehensive income 

2022 2021 

Revenue from contracts with customers 159 174 
Cost of sales (122) (127) 

Administrative expenses (80) (129) 

Depreciation (7) (9) 
Financial costs (8) (&) 
Share of (loss) of associate - (14) 

Loss for the year (58) (109) 
Aftributable to: 
Eauity holders of the parent (46) (95) 
Non-controlling interest (12) (14) 
Group's share of loss for the year (23) (47.5) 
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23 (Inventories and Other assets 

Inventories 
Goods in stock (held by subsidiary) 
Assets for sale under development 
Inventories, total 

  

  

2022 2021 
7,167 7,114 

745 3,141 
7,902 10,255 
  

The Group concluded contracts for granting the right to build on plots owned by it in Sofia for consideration 
consisting of construction of residential and commercial premises by the contractor, which BACB intends to realize 
through a subseguent sale. In this regard the real estate with established right of construction have been reclassified 
from investment properties as assets for sale under development. 

Other assets 
Receivables on sale of properties* 
Advance payments 
Accounts on bank transfers 
Deferred expenses 
Receivables under rental agreements 
Other accounts and receivables 
Total other assets 

Expected credit losses on receivables 
Other assets, net 

  

  

  

2022 2021 
2210 396 

132 1,151 
724 1,104 
572 598 
215 193 
466 271 

4,909 d,719 
(147) (141) 
4,762 d,578 
  

* The position presents short term receivables arising at the end of 2022 which have been received in the beginning of 
January 2023. 

24 Deposits from customers 

The tables below represent distribution of deposits fom customers as of 31 December 2022 and 2021: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2022 2021 

By type of Demand Term Total Demand Term Total 
CUMeNnCy deposits deposits deposits deposits deposits deposits 

BGN 578,697 127,181 705,878 451,733 125,712 577445 

EUR 194,184 188,884 383,068 142,060 178,379 320439 
USD 47,610 41,898 89,508 36,635 41,185 71,820 

GBP - - - 57 54 111 

Total 820 491 357,963 1,178 454 630 485 345 330 975815 

2022 2021 

By type of customer Demand Term Total Demand Term Total 
deposits deposits deposits deposits deposits deposits 

Non-bank financial 

institutions 38173 4,483 42,656 27,126 7,660 34806 

Corporate 660,599 69,583 730,182 499,730 42460 542,190 
Individuals 121,719 283,897 405 616 103,629 295,190 398 819 

Total 820 491 357,963 1,178,454 630 485 345 330 975815 
  

At 31 December 2022 Deposits from customers include EUR 35,327 thousand (2021: EUR 26,141 thousand) 
deposits from related parties (Note 31).Information on the effective interest rate applicable to monetary financial 
insttuments as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is included in Note 32.3.2 Interest rate risk. 
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25 Debt securities in issue and Other borrowinas 
  

On 23 December 2022 BACB issued an unsecured bonds issue in the amount of EUR 15,000,000. The bonds are 

Issued to satisfy eduity and eliglble liabilities redguirements in accordance with the provisions of tne Recovery and 
Resolution of Credit Institutions and Investment Fims Act. The type of bonds issued - ordinary, interest-bearing, 

book-entry, registered, freely transferable, unsecured, non-convertible bonds. Maturity of fhe bonds issued is seven 
years and the total princlpal is payable at maturity. The interest rate is fixed at 5% and the interest amount is 
payable on six-month coupon payments. The issue is expected to be registered for trading on the Bulgarian Stock 
Exchange within 6 months after issuance. 

As of 31 December 2022 the Bank's obligation related to debt securities In issue, including accrued interest, amounts 
to EUR 15,016 thousand (2021: none). 

The amounts payable under agreements for short-term or long-term financing that are not deposits from customers 
are presented in the statement of financial position as Other borrowed funds. 

In July 2015 the Group signed an agreement with the Bulgarian Development Bank (BDB) for participation i its 

partnership program for indirect financing of micro, small and medium-sized companies. The program is developed 

to provide low-interest rate financing to Bulgarian companies and support the business in creating new jobs and 

investing in regions with high unemployment, According to the agreement BDB will provide to the Group up to EUR 
179 million credit line for financing of eligible projects under fhe program. In November 2018, BACB signed a new 

agreement with BDB under tne COSME* program to support small and medium-sized businesses in the country. 

The objective of the program is to provide easy access to finance for SMFs across the different stages of their life 

cycle: establishment, expansion or transfer of business. With the COSME* guaranteed resource provided by BDB, 

BACB provides investment and working capital loans and bank guarantees. Under the agreement, the Group 

received funding of EUR 10 million over a 10-year period. 

As of 31 December 2022 the long-term borrowed funds amount to EUR 9,176 thousand (2021: EUR 16,136 

thousand) including interest and represent amounts due to BDB under the loan agreement as described, 

The following tables summarize the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the statement of 
financial position for other borrowed funds as part of the liabilities arising from financing activities: 

    

  

  

  

  

Effective 
interest 1 

1 January Cash Interests Cash rate December 
2022 2022 inflows paid outflows accruals 2022 

Debt securities in jssue - 15,000 - - 16 15,016 

Other borrowings 16136 o (201) (6.981) 292 9,176 
Total liabilities from 
financing activity 16,136 15,000 (201) (6,981) 238 24,192 

Effective 

interest 31 
1 January Cash Interests Cash rate December 

2021 2021 inflows paid outflows accruals 2021 
Other borrowings 19496 - (253) . (3,360) 293 16,136 
Total liabilities from 
financing activity 19 496 - (253) (3,360) 253 16,136 
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26 Other liabilities 

As of 31 December 2022 and 41 December 2021 the other liabilities include; 

  

  

2022 2021 

Payables under lease agreemenis 5,075 4,181 
Accounts on bank transfers 3565 2,076 
Amounts due to suppliers and advances received 1,604 1,589 
Retirement benefit plan provisions &02 149 
Payables to staff 322 296 
Payables to BRF 282 217 
Provisions for liabilities (Note 28) 55 55 
VAT payables 36 A5 
Taxes payable, excluding income tax 90 50 
ECL for guarantees 7 9 
Other accounts and payables" 6278 5,806 
Total other liabilities 16,716 14473 

  

" The positien includes liabilities under NGF and BDB agreements of EUR 1,627 thousand and ofher restricted funds in escrow 

aecounts for EUR 3203 fhousand 

The following table summarizes the reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for lease ljabilities 
funds as part of the liabilities arising ftom financing activities: 

  

  

2022 2021 

As at 1 January 2022 4,181 2,6B3 

New recognised 2,038 2,615 

Interest accrued 63 39 

Payments (1,201) (1,166) 

Terminated agreements (6) - 

As at 31 December 2022 5.075 4181 
  

The totaf cash outflows in 2022 for leases is in the amount of EUR 1,261 thousand (2021: EUR 1,156 thousand). 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities are disclosed in Note 32 4, 

Amounts recognized in profit or loss for the year, related to the operating lease liabilities. 

  

2022 2021 

Depreciation expense on right-of-use assefs (Note 20) 1,159 1,115 

Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 4) 63 39 

Total ameunt recognized in profit or loss 1222 1,154 
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21 Share capital and reserves 

As at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 the BACB's share capltal amounts to BGN 24,691 (EUR 12,624) 
thousand, comprising respectively of 24,691,313 ordinary dematerialized voting shares, with a face value of BGN 
1 each. Since 2006 BACB is a public company and its shares are listed on the Bulgarian Stock Exchange - Sofia. 
Shareholding in the Bank is divided between a varying number of local and foreign investors. 

The Bank's shareholding structure as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 is as follows: 

    

    

    

Shareholder 2022 % 2021 % 

CSIF, Bulgaria 11,277,473 45.68% 11,277,473 45 .68% 

LTBI HOLDINGS LLC, USA 8,824,755 35.74% 8,822,068 35.73% 
Mrs.Tzvetelina Borislavova- 
Karagyozova 2,465,000 9.98% 2,465,000 9.98% 

Other 2,124,085 8.60% 2,126,7172 8.61% 

Total 24,691,313 100.00% 24,691,313 100.00% 

Share premium 

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, there are no movements in the share premium reserve in the 
amount of EUR 18,944 thousand, representing the difference between the nominal value of the shares issued and 
thelr price. 

Reserves 

According to the legislation in force in Bulgaria companies should alocate at least 10% of the net profit in the 
"Reserve Fund", until this reserve represents 10% of the company 's registered capital. The law does not allow the 
entities to pay dividends before making contributions to the Reserve Fund. In case of decrease under the statutory 
minimum levels, the Group is reguired to restore the reserves within two years. As a result of significant profits in 
previous years and conservative dividends policy the Group has historically malntained a Reserve Fund in excess 
of the minimum levels reguired by law. 

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the reserves of the Group include: 

  

  

  

2022 2021 

Reserve Fund 142,648 130,925 
Accumulated loss from previous years (53,399) (53,399) 
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 (2,644) (2,644) 

Other reserves 86,605 74,882 
Current year profit 21,549 9 241 

Retained earnings and other reserves 108,154 8d,123 
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217 Share capital and reserves (continued) 

  

  

  

  

2022 2021 

Reserve on real estate owned by the Bank 94 2,614 

Tax effect (9) (261) 
Total 85 2353 

Reserve on eguity instruments at FVOCI 89 90 
Tax effect (9) (9) 
Reserve on debt insttuments at FVOCI (1,578) a4 
Tax effect 158 (8) 

ECL on debt instruments at FVOCI 30 AA 

Total (1,310) 201 
  

28 Contingent liabilities and commitments 

The Group is counterparty to bank guarantees and lefters of credit and other off-balance sheet commitments, as 
part of its customer service. Those instruments involve, to various degrees, elements of credit and interest-rate 
risk. At 31 December 2022 and 41 December 2021 the commitments of the Group are as follows: 

  

  

2022 2021 

Unutilized commitments on loans 74,044 53250 
Bank guarantees 11,007 11,329 

UC issued 284 4267 

Total 84335 68,846 
  

29 Litigations 

As at 31 December 2022, no significant lawsuits have been filed against BACB or its subsidiaries that could have 
significant conseguences for the Group and/or its financial position. Therefore, no litigation provisions have been 
recognized for any claims in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. 

In fhe consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has recognised 
provisions for additional liabilities related to a civil case against BACB in the amount of EUR 55 thousand as 
disclosed in Note 26. In the beginning of 2023 BACB has made a payment under this civil case for the amount of 
the acerued provisions. 
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30 Fair value information 

IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures” provides for the disclosure in the notes to the financial statements of 
information about the fair value estimated in accordance with IFRS 13 “Fair valye measurement” of the financial 

assets and liabilities. The Group determines the fair value of its financial insttuments based on avallable market 

information or using appropriate valuation technigues if such information is not available. 

The following table summarizes information about the carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and 

labilities. 

  

  

Carrying Amount Fair Value 

Financial assets 2022 2021 2022 2021 

Loans and advances to banks 23648 85867 23 648 85867 

Loans and advances to customers 704,995 637 AA 699,070 627 752 

Financial assets at FV through profit or loss 609 515 609 515 

Financial assets at FVOCI 44 233 40,513 44233 40613 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 65758 37,024 64,506 d7,111 

Other financial assets 3458 1,829 3An8 1,829 

Financial liabilities 

Demand deposits from banks & customers 820,530 630,580 820,520 630,580 

Term deposits ftom customers 357,963 345330 357 593 345 544 

Debt securities in issue 15 016 - 14 872 - 

Ofher borrowed funds 9176 16,146 9 176 16,136 

Other financial labilities 9125 8,099 9125 8099 

OM balance sheet positions Nominal value Fair value 

Unulilized commitments on loans 73,044 53 250 73,044 53250 

Bank guarantees and L/C issued 11,291 15,596 17 27 

Management has estimated (hat (he fair value of cash and balances with BNB and deposits from banks, is not 
materially different from their carying amount. The fatr value of floating rate loans approximate fheir carrying 

amount. The expected cash flows on fixed rate loans that are not impaired, are discounted at current market rates 
to determine their fair value. 

The fair value of loans and advances to banks is also considered to be egual to fheir carrylng amount, as these 
assets are shor-term (with maturity of less than one morth). Other borowed funds are funds received under the 
programs af BDB which are deemed to be specific. The interest rate on the funding is a floating one, whiere thie 

terms are egual for all market participants who have access to ffie program, therefore the interest rate on this 
funding Is considered to be market-based, |.e, hased on that tne fair value and the carrying amount are not materially 

different. The Group does not expect payments to be made under guarantees and letters of credit. Unutilized 
commitments on loans relate mainly to loans with floating interest rates and hence fheir fair value does not diffier 
materially from their contractual amount. 
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30 Fair value information (continued) 

The following table shows tne fair value hierarchy, applicable to the assets and liabilities: 

31 December 2022 

Assets measured at fair value: 
Financial assets at FV through profit or loss 
Debt instruments at FVOCI 

Eauity instuments at FVOCI 
Land and building for own needs at fair value 
Investment properties 
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: 
Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 
Debt insttuments at amortised cost 

Other financial assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: 

Demand deposits fom banks & customers 

Term deposits ffom customers 

Debt securities in issue 

Other borrowed funds 

Other financial liabilities 

Total liabilities 

31 December 2021 

Assets measured at fair value: 
Financial assets at FV through profit or loss 
Debt instruments at FVOCI 

Eauity instuments at FVOCI 
Land and building for own needs at fair value 
Investment properties 
Assets for which fair values are disclosed: 

Loans and advances to banks 
Loans and advances to customers 

Debt insttuments at amortised cost 
Other financial assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: 

Demand deposits fom banks & customers 

Term deposits from customers 

Other borrowed funds 

Other financial liabilities 

Total liabilities 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total 

- 609 - 609 
42141 - - 42,141 

- 92 2,000 2,092 

- - 289 289 
- - 42 016 42016 

- 23 648 - 23,648 

- 699,070 - 699,070 
64,506 - - 64,506 

- 3458 - 3458 

106,647 726 877 44 305 877,829 

- 820,530 - 820,530 

- 357593 - 357,593 

- 14 872 - 14 872 

- 9 176 - 9,176 

- 9 125 9 125 

- 1,211,296 . 1,211,296 

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total 

- 515 - 515 
38 420 - - 38 420 

- 93 2,000 2,093 

- - 3759 d,759 

- - 52938 52,938 

- 85867 - 85,867 
- 627,752 - 627,752 

7111 - - 37,111 

- 1,829 - 1,829 

75531 716,056 58 697 850 284 

- 630,580 - 630,580 

- 345 544 - 345 544 

- 16,136 - 16136 

- 8,099 - 8,099 

- 1,000,389 - 1,000,359 
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30 Fair value information (continued) 

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 there were no movements between the levels, representing the fair 
values hierarchy of tne assets and liabilties. 

The folowing tables summarize the reconcilation between the opening and closing balances of Level 3 the far 
values at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021: 

  

  

  

  

  

2022 Eguity Land and 
instruments building for Im:gsït?: ; 

at FVOCI own needs prop 

At 1 January 2022 2,000 3,759 52,938 

Galns/(losses) recognised in profit or loss - 114 (455) 
Agured and/or reclassified - (3.584) 25 
Sold and/or matured - - (10,492) 
Outgoing transferres from Level 3 - - - 

Incoming transferres to Level 3 

At 31 December 2022 2,000 269 42016 

2021 Eaui sUdl duity Land and 
instruments building for Investn;:nt 

at FVOCI own neede properties 

At 1 January 2021 1,712 3.893 50517 

Gains/(losses) recognised n profit or loss - (134) 31 
Aguired and/or reclassifed 500 - 5 Bad 
Sold and/or matured (212) - (3,494) 
Outgoing tansferres from Level 3 - - - 
Incoming transferres to Level 3 - - - 

At 31 December 2021 2000 3759 52 938 
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30 Fair value information (continued) 

Further information on the assets with fair values classified as level 3 

Eaguity securities at fair value in OCI 

As at 31 December 2022 the Group holds investments in shares of two Bulgarian companies. Their basic activity 
is providing of different payment services and innovative thechnological payment solutions. As there are no direct 
market data, the method of market multipliers of analougue companies is applied for the estimation of the fair value 
of the shares. Under this method the risk profile and the growth perspective of (he assessed company are compared 
to those of comparable publicly taded companies. The market multipliers for the analogue companies indicate 
whath would informed investors pay on a regular active market. These multipliers are fhen compared to the 
Operating characteristics and the financial performance of the assessed company, in order to estimate its fair value. 
The model is based on a publicly available data. 

For the valuation of the investment in the shares of TIXI AD the model of discounted cash flows has been applied. 
Under this model the expected future cash flows from the business activity of the company are discounted to their 
present value. The future cash flows have been calculated on the basis of the updated 5-year business plan of the 
company. The weighted average cost of capital (WACC) which is stated at 22.5% as of 31 December 2022, has 
been used as a discount rate in the model. 

As of 31 December 2022 a sensitivity analysis have been periormed to changes in the inputs to the models used 
to determine the fair value of eguity investments. Historical data over 3-year period have been analysed, focusing 
on its volatility as measured by standard deviation. The direction and magnitude of the change in input indicators, 
as well as other characteristics have been also taken into account. The analysis indicate low sensitivity that will not 
have a material impact on fair value. 

The table below provides information on the fair value depending on the intended use of the property: 

investment properties 

Type of property 2022 2021 

Plot (and) 8,760 13,033 

Residential 1,969 3,522 

Commercial 10,416 12,349 

Vacation 19322 22,305 

Industrial 1,549 1,729 

Total fair value 42016 52938 

Assets held for sale 

Type of property 2022 2021 

Land 44 373 

Residetial 3,124 171 

Commercial 7,610 8177 

Varation 1,128 263 

Total fair value of assets held for sale 12296 8,984 
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30 Falr value information (continued 

Description of the valuation methods and key input data in determining the falr value of of investment propertis and 

assets held for sale: 

Key: 

Method of real value (MRY) 

Method of the market approach (MMA) 

Method of capitalization of future cash income (MCFC) 

  

  

  

  

  

Lnr::s:;‘;r;pe V;I:t:tïn Significant unobserved input data Range of fair values 

M022 021 

MMA - ZLP Offer (transactlon) price sa.m. €150 - £400 €110 - €330 

Land plots MMA - LP Offer (transaction) price sa.m. €10 - €l5 €9-€11 

Annual growih of market analogues 25% 2-6% 

MMA Offer (tansaclion] price sa m. €350 - €900 €250- E700 

Annual growth of market analogues A1% 10 - *2% 

rl I MCFCI Esimated montily rent per sa.m €5 -€70 E4 - €6 

Apnial growth of rent 15% - 

MMA Offer (ransactlon) price sg.m. €560- €1,200 €560- E1,200 

Annual growth of market analogues 0% 0% 

Commerclal properties . . yErG Estimated monthly rent per sa.m. €36-€9 €36-€9 
Annual growth of rent 5% 5% 

MMA-bulldings Oiffer (fransaction) price sa.m €140-€700 €140-€670 

Annual growth of market analogues 5% 5% 

, , MMA - ZLP Offer (transaction) price sa. m. €10 - €120 €9 -€100 

Vacatlon properties Annual growth of market an adlogues 19% 0% 

MCFCI Estimated daily rent per room E35 - £5 €30 - €40 

Annual growth of rent 14% O% 

MRY Reference construction prices sa.m. 6265 -€300 €265-€300 

Annual growth of reference and constructien prices 24% 3-5% 
Industrial properties | | 

MMA Offer (transaction) price sa.m. €60 - €400 €40 - €370 

Annial growih of market analogues 10% 3-5% 

58



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

MOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

A amounts are in fhousands of EUR uniess ofherwise stafed 

30 Fair value information (continued) 

The next table presents sensitivity analysis of the properties prices, based on the type of the property and the mos! 
relevant indicators: 

  

  

Type of property Range Comments 

The higher rates apply to appartments situated in tie center 

Sofia €1000 - €3000/M2 of Hne city. New constructions - 1200-2000 EUR/ma, 

depending of ihe area and the aguality of construction 

The higher rates apply to appartments situated in the center 

Residential Flovdiv, Varna €8O0 -€2000/M2 vf the city. New constructions - ZO0-1400 EUR/m2, 

properties deperding of the araa and the auality of construction 

Buraas Stara 7he higher rates apply to appariments situated in the center 
7a %rai Russe €750 - €1900/m2 of the city. New constructions - B50-1200 EUR/m2, 

gora, depending af the area and the guality of constructioa 

Vacatlgn E600 - E1200T? The hlgher rates apply to appartmenis situated al the sea 

properties side in well developed resorts. 

house with a €5 100k - €40 The lower rates apply to properties situated in an outtying 

lend plot 900k district /over 25-30 km ftom municipal center! 

Properties in house /new For new constructed houses near (up to 10 km) lo the big 
lo construction/ E regtonal cities, excluding the area of Sofia, Plovdiv and 

Agriculturale 
land plots 

Office 

properties 

Commercial 

properties 

Industrial 

properties 

with a land plot 
50OK 

Varna. 

  

Cultivated land 
plofs in 

€A09 - €1022/ 
The consolidation of land plots ferms better prices for fhe 

agricuiture land. In Dobrudja the prices reach up to 1022 

  

    

    

' decare EUR/decare. In the low meuntain areas from 150 to 300 
productive area EUR/decare 

. Avarage rents for offices dlass “A* 10-16 EUR/ma2, for offices 
rertal price E5 - E14/M2 dass 'BE— B-12 EUR/M? 

Avarage rents for retai park offices in Sofia 8-15 EUR/m2, 
rental price €6 - EAm2 for offices in the malls about 45 EUR/m2. Avarage rents for 

retail park offices in regional cities 7-10 EUR/m2. i 

rental price €2 - EBim2 For logistic areas in Sofia- 3,5-6 EUR/m2 
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30 Fair value information (continued) 

Land and buildings for own use at fair value 

As of December 31, 2022, BAKB only owns a building in the city of Burgas, used as an office for the implementation 
of its operational artivities, worth BGN 556 thousand (2021: BGN 416 thousand). An estimate of falr value in 2022 
has been prepared for this office in Burgas, and the difference to the book value is reflected in the accounts as of 

December 31, 2022. 

Description of the evaluatlon methods and key input data, for determining tne fair value of land and buildings for 
OWN USe: 

  

Property type Valwation method Significant unobserved input data Range of fair values 

2022 2021 

MMA - ZLP Offer (transaction) price sa.m - €50D - €550 

Annual growth of market analogues - O% 

Properties for owm MMA-buiding Offer (ransaction] price sg. m €1600 €150%-€1,700 

use Annual growih of market analogues 5-10% 5-7% 

MCFCbuiiding Estimated manthly rent per s& m. €5 -€10 E5 -ET3 

Annual arowth of rent 9% 0% 

Short description of each of the above methods for valuation of land and property 

Method of the market approach (MMA) 

According to the market analysis method, the fair value is determined by comparing the evaluated property (land 
and buildings) to the market price of comparable or simllar properties - analogues, taking into consideration the 
specifcities of the evalsated property. The folowing characteristics of the property are taken into consideration, 
when selecting market comparables; location, technical characteristts (structure, conditon, age, area), function, 

purpose, infrastructure and transport accessibility of the area etc. The differences of the compared benchmarks 
and the evaluated properties are adjusted respectively (“plus' or ,minus”) according to thetr better or worse 
characteristics, aoplying expert factors (percentages) reflectng the extend of the duantitative and aualitative 
deviations of the avaluated benchmarks. 

Methad of real value (MRVY) 

The method of real value or the method of estimated costs is of major signifcance for determining the fair value of 
industrial, warehouse, logistic buildings and houses 'n suburban or rural areas.When valuation apartments, shops, 
retail facilities, hotels, offices etc,, this method is mainly used for reference. The real value method is based on the 
calculation of the recoverable value of the building at the moment of the evaluation. This s accomplished, using 
the unit price per sduare methad of total fioor area of newly constructed faciltks and buildings with similar function, 
structure, specificities of performance of the additbnal, finishing, 'nstallation and other works. The unit price 
includes the costs and expenses for the design and construction of the respective project. The cost of any additional 
Improvements in the evaluated separate facilty/site in the building is added to the specified value of 'ne facility/site. 
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30 Fair value information (continued) 

Method of capitalization of future cash income (MGCFCI) 

The result of the evaluation of the respective property, based on the future cash flows capitalization, is the market 
value, which is obtained based on the valuation of ihe expected future yieid of the property (net cash flows). The 

information from advertisements and notices, published in specialized printed media, on the intemet or other media, 
reflect fhe investment intentions of the investors-sellers (landlords) of properties and is nt the most reliable source 
of market information (market evidences) -fhat is why, if we rely on bid values, these are adjusted 5-10% below. 

31 Related party transactions 

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant 
influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions. 

The Group considers as related parties the members of its key management personnel and entities owned, 
controlled or significantly influenced by such persons. Furthermore, related parties of the Bank are holders of a 
substantial proportion of its capital. 

In 2022, there is no change in the shareholdings of fhe persons controlling directly or indirctly BACB. At 31 December 
2022, the direct shareholdings in BACB's shares of the major shareholder CSIF AD is 45.68%, and of Mrs.Tzvetelina 
Borislavova-Karagyozova - 9.98%. Mrs. Tzvetelina Borislavova-Karagyozova is a person exercising control over the 

shareholder “CSIF” AD as: 1) she holds more than 50% of the shares in the General Meeting of Shareholders and 2) 
she may determine more than half of the members of its Board of Directors. 

LTBI HOLDINGS LLC, registered in USA, holds 35.74% of the BACB's share capital and has significat influence 
over BACB, conseguently is a related party to the Bank. 

The Group enters into transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. These transactions are 
carried out at market rates and include ioans, deposits and other banking services. Transactions with the following 
related parties took place in 2022 in tne course of operations: 

  

Related party Relationship 

CSIF AD shareholder with significant infiuence over BACB 
IDS Fund Joint venture between BACB Finance and CSIF AD 

entities that are controlled or significantly influenced by the main shareholder CSIF 
E EE AD or a member of the BACB key management personnel 

Management Members of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board of BACB, incl.: 
Mrs. Tzvetelina 

Borislavova-Karagvozova Chaiperson of BACB's Supervisory Board 

Mr. Martin Ganev Member of BACB's Supervisory Board 

Mr. Peter Atanasov Member of BACB's Supervisory Board 

Mr. llian Georgiev Member of BACB's Managemenf Board and CEO 

Mrs. Loreta Grigorova Member of BACB's Management Board and Executive Director 

Mr. Alexander Dimitrov Member of BACB's Management Board and Executive Director 

Ms. Silvia Kirilova Member of BACB's Management Board 
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31 Related party transactions (continued) 

The information on related parties' transactlons and the related income and expense as of 31 December 2022 and 
2021 is summarized in the following tables: 

  

  

  

  

Key Other 

management related 
Balance as at 31 December 2022 CSIF personnel parties Total 

Assets 
Loans and advances to customers - 29 2,807 2836 

Total - 29 2,807 2,836 

Liabilities 
Deposits from customers 3,029 13155 19143 d5,327 

Total 3,029 13155 19143 35,327 
  

Off-balance sheet commitments 
Unutilized commitments on loans - 25 - 25 

Guarantees and letters of credit - - - - 

  

  

  

  

Expenses and income Key Other 
generated by transactions management related 
with related parties in 2022 CSIF personnel parties Total 

Expenses 
Interest expense - 19 1 20 
Administrative expenses 476 - 436 912 

Total expenses 476 18 437 932 

lncome 

Interest income - 1 120 121 
Fees and commission income 1 1 153 155 
Other operating income - - 25 25 

Total income 1 2 296 301 
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$1 Related party transactions (continued) 

    

  
  

    

    

  

  

  

Key Other 
management related 

Balance as at 31 December 2021 CSIF personnel parties . Total. 
Assels 

Loans and advances to customers - 5 . 2208 2,243 
Total - 35 2208 2243 

Liabilities 

Deposits from customers 426 12260. 13455 26141. 
Total 426 12260 13455 26,141 

Of-balance sheet commitments 

Unutilized commitments on loans - 25 - 25 

Guarantees and lefters of credit - - 10 10 

Expenses and income generated by Key Other 
transactions with related parties in management related 
2021 CSIF personnel parties Total 

Expenses 

Interest expense - 2/ 5 32 
Administrative expenses M sMA 80 

Total expenses 477 21 348 892 

lncome 

Interest income - 1 77 78 

Fees and commission income 1 1 132 134 

Other operating income - - A 24 

Total income 1 2 233 236 

Key management remuneration 

  

In the financial years 2022 and 2021, the Bank has accrued remuneration to the key management personnel as 
follows: 

  

  

Key management personnel 2022 2021 

Supervisory Board 7A 40 
Management Board 248 273 

Total 322 313 
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32 Financial risk management 

32.1. Going concern 

The Group financial statements have been prepared under the going concern assumptlon. However, as disclosed 
below, the Group's activities are subject to various risk factors, conditions and uncertainties that could impact its 
future performance or its abiity to continue as a going concem. The management considers that the Group will 
continue as a going concern through proper risk management, increase in operating efficiency and securing of 
sufficient funds through self-financing ability improvement, diversifying the sources of financing and adeguate 
Capital position. 

32.1.1. Main risk factors 

The risks to which fhe Group is exposed can be successfully managed and mitigated by applying preventive 
measures, appropriate control systems and process automatisatlon. Some risks are outside the Bank's control and 
cannot be mitigated. The principal factors described below should not be regarded as complete and comprehensive 
statements of all potential risks and uncertalnties because there may be risks or uncertainties of which the Group 
is not aware or which the Group does not consider significant but in tne future may become such. 

The Group's continued growth and success depend substantlally on fhe health of the Bukgarian and the global 
economy, wWhich in tum affects the growth of lending, interest income and expense, and the ability of borrowers to 
repay their obligations on time. Any adverse change 'n one or more macroeconomk factors, such as interest rates, 
inflation, wage levels, unemployment, foreign investments, international trade, etc., may have material adverse 
effect on the Group's business, results fom operatlons and financial condition. 

impact of ihe war between Russia and Ukraine 

On 24 February 2022 Russia launched military operations against Ukraine, which escalated into a protracted 
military conflict. In response to the Russian invasion of Ukraine, the EU countries and the USA imposed a number 
of economic sanctions against Russia and Belarus, which obviously have a negative effect on the economies of 

the FU countries and Bulgaria in particular. The conseruences of the war and the imposed sanctions ed to high 
volatility in energy markets, disruption of supply chains of basic raw materials for industry, acceleration of inflation 

and high uncertainty about tne development of tie economy. 

The Group has no significant direct exposures to counterparties from Russla, Belarus and Ukraine. As of 31 
December 2022, less fhan 2.0% of atftracted funds weru from sitizens of Russia, Belarus or Ukraine. As of 31 

December 2022, 0.15% of eredit exposures were granted to individusla or companles whose activities are directly 

related to Russia. The Group is indirectly exposed to the risks arising from the military contlict due to their impact 
on energy prices, potential difficulties In supply chalns and a slowdown in external demerd — factors that may have 
a negative impact on tie business climate, economic actmvity and financial condition of companies and households. 

The Group has taken all necessary measures to comply with the sanctions impsed by the competent authorities. 
Management closely monitors development and periodically assesses the impart thay may have on the Group's 

operations and financial position 
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32 Financial risk management (continued 

12.1.1. Main risk factors (continued) 

Like all other banks, BACB, the main Group company is subject to various risks. The Bank has established risk 
management policies and procedures to identify, monitor and manage the levels of risk to which it is exposed. The 

risk management policy is adopted by the Management Board and approved by fhe Supervisory Board. The 
document govems the organization of the activities for the fulfllment of the strategic objertives, the risk 
management framework and te risk tolerance, adopted by the Supervisory and Management Boards of the Bank, 
The Group companies follow the risk management policies which are valid in fhe Bank and are managed by 
executive directors who report and agree the subsidiaries'activity with the Bank's Management board. They apply 
ie policies based on tne specifics of their business activity and the limits of their volumes and organization. 

The risk management and control policy and rules set evaluation methods for various types of risks to which the 
Bank is exposed (including, but not limited to: credit risk, liguidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign curreney risk and 
contractor oredit risk, define the connections between the individual structural units in the management of the risks 
and establish an early warning system of limits and indicators, reflecting the risk tolerance, adopted by fhe Group. 
The main objective of the risk policy is to impose clearly defined parameters on the Group'$ operations in order to 
minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. Compliance with the various reguirements of the 
Hsk policy is reviewed on a regular basis, depending on the level of risk and potential impact on the operations. 
Any variances ftom the Group's standards are reported to the management for reamedial action as provided for in 
the intemal rules. The risk management policy is reviewed on an annual basis in order to apply adeguate and 
efficiently functioning risk management and control systems. In addition, internal audit is responsible for the 
independent review of risk management systems and the compliance with the adopted policies. 

Recovery plan of the Bank / Directive 59/15.05.2014 

hh accordance with the reguirements of Directive 2014/59 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 
2014 establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of eredit institutions, art. 6 of fhe Recovery and 
Resolution of Credit Institutions and lInvestment Firms Act, art. 73g of the Credit Institutions Act and art. 25 of 
Ordinance No. 7 of the Central Bank (BNB) on fhe risk organization and management in banks, all banks prepare 
a tecovery plan, consisting of actions and measures, which are to be taken in order to recover their financial 
position, in case of financial difficulties. 

The recovery plan, adopted with a decision of the Management Board ftom 20 November 2014 and approved by 
the Supervisory Board on 27 November 2014. The Document consists of four main parts, which detail the plan 
development process, the rules for its activation, the recovery options in various scenarios and the rules for internal 
and extemal communication in case of plan activation. The recovery plan contains an analysis of the effect of 
adverse events, which may affect strongly the Group's financial position, including crises, having effect on the entire 
financial market and on the Group in particular. Also included is a description of the plan development and activation 
processes, as well as the applied limits and indicators, related to the preventive evaluation of the vulnerability of 
the liguidity and eguity positions, the vield, risk profile and any necessary actions. The plan also details and 
analyses the structure and key activities of the Group, as well as the main moments in its strategy. A main part of 
tne plan is dedicated to the recovery options —the selected recovery measures, assessment of the 
guantitative/gualitative effect, implementation period and fulfilment likeliness, as well as an evaluation of fhe results 
of the stress scenarios applied. Also developed is a communication plan with the intemal structures of the Group 
and external organizations, as well as stages, order and scope of the actions, related to the recovery plan activation. 
From its inception, the Plan is reconsidered and updated yearly and presented to the regulatory body - BNB. The 
latest update of tne Recovery Plan was approved by the Management Board on 26 May 2022 and by the 
Supervisory Board on 7 June 2022, The latest changes include calibration of the values of the key indicators 
according to the results of tne stress tests performed, review of the main risks facing the financial sector and the 
Group in particular, incl. risks related to the residual effects of the Covid crisis and emerging risks related to the war 
in Ukraine and the sanctions against Russia, analysis of the recovery capacity after the implementation of each of 
tie selected options and identification of possible obstacles / risk factors for the implementation of the selected 
options / measures. 
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32 Flnanclal risk manaaement (continued) 

32.2. Credit risk 

Credit risks the current or potential risk for the income and eguity, occurring due to the incapability of the debtor to 
fulfil the reguirements of a signed contract or his incapability to act in accordance with the contractual terms and 
conditlons. A credit risk occurs with respect to the operations, related to the granting of loans, deposlts In other 
banks, as well as any investments in securities. Credit risk is the most important risk for the wiiole Group's business 
but mainly for the Bank and the management therefore carefully manages fhe exposure of fhe Bank and the 
subsidlaries to credit risk. 

The Group's lending policy and lending manual are developed by the organizational units responsible for lending 

and risk management as well as the Legal department, and are approved by the Management Board and applied 
to fhe operations of all Group's companies (where applicable and based on the specifics of the business activity). 
The system of internal rules, procedures and standardized loan products reflecis the organizational structure and 

the strategy of the Group, regulates the credit analysis and approval process, defines the loan approval aufhorities, 
sets rules on the loan documentatlon reguired by fhe Bank and outlines processes for loan disbursement and 
onNgoing monitoring, type and value of accepted collateral, reguired insurance and other risk reduction technigues. 

As further disclosed below, there Is loan portfolio concentration of risk in both a imited number of customers and 
in a limited number of industry sectors, which may be adversely affected in case of worsening economic 
envlronment. 

The Bank's intemal lending rules sef out detailed procedures for controlling the spending of credit funds, ftor regular 
monitoring of the borrower's financial condition, as well as checks on the current state of the collateral on the loan 

and the imolementation of the agreed contractual terms and conditions. For all exposures to one client or group of 
related parties amounting to over 1% of the Bank's capital, a periodic review of the borrower's financial conditton, 

compliance with the terms of the contract, the collateral status, as well as other financial indicators is perlommed a 

least twice a vear. 

Pursuant to the EBA Guldelines (2018/06) on management of non-performing and forborie exposures, a Strategy 
and an Operatlons programm for the management of non-performing exposures and acduired collateral for non- 
performing exposures were developed, which were adopted by the Management Board and approved by the 
Supervisory Board. The Strategy and the Operations programm, including operating plans for the period 2023- 
2025, were reconsidered and updated with a decision of the Management board from 24 November 2022 and 
approved by the Supervisory board on the 6 December 2022. The Strategy aims to improve the risk profile and 
introduce additional measures related to the process of monitoring and control of non-performing assets by defining 

the main parameters of the program of reducing the non-performing exposures in the medium term and specific 
optlons for individual exposures or portfolios. The Insufficiently effective management and maintenance of asset 
guality or insufficient asset growth could have a negative impact on the Group's business, performance and financial 
condition. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Maximum exposure to credit risk 

The maximum exposure to credit risk is shown below by financial asset classes. The deposits with BNB are not 
included in the table below, because these have the minimum possible inherent credit risk and fhe management 
considers that risk insignificant. 

  

  

2022 2021 

Maximum Net Maximum Net 

eXposure EXposure @Xposure @Xposure 

Loans and advances to banks 23,648 23,648 85867 85,867 

Loans and advances to customers 704,995 93 777 637,444 73,067 

Financial assets at FV through profit or loss 609 609 515 515 

Financial asset at FVOCI 44 233 44 233 40.513 40 513 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 65,758 65,758 37,024 a7,024 

Other financiai assets 3458 3458 1,829 1,829 

Total 842,701 231,483 803,192 238815 

Maximum credit exposure related to off- 

balance sheet exposures 

Unutilized commitments on loans 73,044 39493 53 250 27,205 

Bank guarantees and L/C issued 11,291 1,926 15,596 2,508 

The amount of net exposure of loans and advances to customers and bank guarantees, represents the reduced 
carrying amount with fhe amount of highly liguid coliaterals, calculated on a loan by loan or guarantee by guarantee 
basis. The Group calculates the net exposure of unutilized commitments on loans by deducting all other loan 
securities. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

Control on credit limits and acceptance of collateral 

The lending process at the Group (primarily for the Bank) is based on the principle of distribution of fhe functions 
and competences for the analyzing, decision-making and approval of the loans, the management and contro of 
the loan transactions. Credit risk is managed through the use of limits that set a threshold (the level of risk to be 
accepted) for a specific borrower or group of counterparties (including related parties). 

The management of credit risk and concentration risk is based on: 

1. Application of a complex system for timely identification of risk, including: 

e regular internal reviews of sub-portfolios and significant individual exposures - assessments and trends 
in their development; 

e analysis of external operational environment conditions and periodic review of risks in certain sectors; 
e review of risk reduction technigues used; 
e review of the economic performance of significant debtors, 
e review of sources of funding; 
e periodic review and evaluation of the security levels; 

2.Applicatlon of a set of limits by type of risk category and business line/unk, as well as regularly reviewed key risk 
indicators system. The levels of the limits. including pre-threshold values, reflect the risk tolerance that the Group 
is prepared to accept 'n its usual course of business; 

The Group, through the Bank limits credt risk and concentration risk by setting limits on credit exposures in relation 

to a single borrower or a group of related borrowers and to industry sectors. The Group (the Bank) also monitors 
the concentration by geographical location. The observance of the limits Is monitored on an ongoing basis and the 
adeguacy of the limits set is subject to a periodic review. The Group carries out regular stress-tests for the 
evaluation of credit risk exposures, evaluation of the effect on the eguity position, identifcation of critical exposures 
and determining measures for credit risk mitigation and preservation of the capital positlon. 

Concentration by countries and counterparties 
The Group does not have significant investments outside Bulgaria. The exposures to non-residential parties 
represent up to 10% of total assets and oft-balance sheet commitments of the Group and basically result from the 
current management of liguid funds, namely: amounts placed on the interbank money market and current accounts 
with foreign banks with a high credit rating. The securities portfolio mainly includes Bulgarian bonds, approximately 
93.0% of which are govermment bonds. The majority of the Group's loan portfolio includes loans to customers 
operating in Bulgaria. 

As part of the Bank's operations of the Markets and Liguidity Department, the Bank places deposits and enters into 
currency transactions with local and foreign banks within certain limits by counterparties. The limits are approved 
by the Asset and Liability Management Committee of BACB (ALCO), following a proposal by the Markets and 
Liguidity Department. The exposures are monitored on a daily basis by the Back Office and reviewed periodically 
at ALCO meetings. Exposure limits for the bank's interbank lines are approved based on a review of the capital 
strength, liguidity position and shareholding structure of the counterparty bank. The list of fhe approved 
counterparties and limits is reviewed and updated at least once a year. 
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42 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Gredit risk (continued) 

Goncentration by industry sectors 

The ioan portfolio of the Group (fhe Bank and BACB Finance EAD) is spread across various economic sectors. 

The decision to increase the weight in a particular sector depends on the Group's assessment of the growth 
potential of fhis sector. Proper diversification of the portfolio (as a whole and within each sector) is one of the main 
goals of the credit risk management of tne Group. The annual review process of fhe risk management policy 
includes the expansion of the system of internal limits and early waming indicator with the goal of ensuring adeguate 
control and management of risks. For achieving better diversification, tne risk management policy sets a limit for 

exposure to a single economic sector up to 15% of the total portfolio. 

The Risk Management Department of the Bank monitors on an ongoing basis the industry concentration ratios and 
informs Management guarterly and in case the concentration in a particular sector is close to the limit, Alfhough the 
Group has internal limits on its exposure to particular industry sectors, it does not aim to predetermine a minimum 
amount for lending to particular sectors. Each potential loan is considered and approved according to the internal 
lending rules and procedures taking into account its impact on tne concentration limits. The structure of the loen 
portfolio by industry sectors reflects the Group's strategy to diversify credit activity by expending market positions 

in the retail segment and invstments in sustainable and “green” sectors of the economy such as: energy efficiency 
and electricity production from renewable energy sources, processing and light industry, wholesale amd retai! trade, 
agriculture and farming, transportation. As a result of the realization of the strategic goals, tne Group was able to 
achieve visible and gualitative change in tne structure of the loan portfolio by industry sectors and in the last few 
years reporls full adherence to the established limits. 

As at 31 December 2022, tie trend of improving portfolio diversification continues. To assess the concentration 
risk posed by industry positioning in fhe loan portfolio, tne Group uses the Herfindahl-Hirschman Index (HHI), 

calculated as tie sum of the sguares of the Group's (primarily for tne Bank) relative share (exposure) in each 
industry. HHI at perfect diversification is calculated assuming the $ame volume of exposure in each industry. The 
growth in the retail segment, the decrease in Agricuiture and Transportation sectors, moderate growth in higher 
coNcentration sectors such as Construction and Electricity production, and better industry positioning lead to a 
decrease in the value of the index for corporate loans (HHI) from 473 at the end of 2021 to 445 at the end of 2022. 
Compared to the results of a perfectly diversified portfolio (HHI-270), the index shows a reduction of high industry 
risk to moderate levels, where tne top 3 industries form 28.5% of the balance sheet exposure (2021: 28.9%). 

The Group continues to diversify its loan portfolio, offering new loan products and new options for financing small 
and medium-sized companies, and in the last years successfully expanded its activities in the SME segment by 
projects funded under the EU Operational Programmes. 

Concentration by customers 

The Group (through fhe Bank) limits credit risk and concentration risk by setting limits on credit exposures in relation 
to a single borrower or a group of related borrowers. The observance of the limits is monitored on an ongoing basis 

and the adeguacy of fhe limits sel is subject to a periodic review. Based on evaluation of the market environment, 
demand and development perspectives for fhe difierent economic sectors and in order to achieve better 

diversification and risk control, the credit policy of the Bank focuses on: 

e Providing appropriate working capital loans for well perlorming manulacturing and commercial 

businesses; 
e Providing investment loans for green economy, energy efficiency, and renewable energy 

projecis; 

e  Supporting projecls utilizing EU funding; 

All loans are analyzed extensively and evaluated on a case-by-case basis, The analysis is aimed at evaluating the 
credit risk of the borrower and inctudes review of the solvency arnd legal status of the borrower, background / 
reference checks, related parties cherks, company analysis (i.e. products, markets, suppliers, management, 
finances, etc.), collateral analysis (i.e. clean titie, market value, etc.). 
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32 Financial risk management (continued 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Concentration by customers (continued) 

The focus of the activity in the last few years is the expansion of the retail segment, not only through the expansion 
of the share of micro enterprises, but also through growth in the products and services provided for individual 
customers - natural persons. This goal is ensured by actively offering consumer and mortgage loans, expanding 
and adapting the product catalogue and meeting customer needs and market conditions. 

At 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 the twenty largest credit exposures before impairment (including 
loan exposures, guarantees and other loan instruments) form 31.5% and 34.4% respectively, of the total loan 
portfolio before impairment. 

All loans in amount egual to or exceeding 10% of Bank's capital base are approved by the Management Board and 
the Supervisory Board of the Bank. All loans in amount egual to or exceeding 15% of Bank's capital base reguire 
an unanimous approval. The large exposures to an individual customer or group of related parties are controlled in 
accordance with regulatory reguirements and reported on a regular basis. Exposure to credit risk is minimized by 
obtaining collateral as well as corporate and personal guarantees. 

At the end of 2022 a part of the loan portfolio is concentrated m a limited number of debtors. There is a possibility 
that the Group's operations, its financial position and the results of its operations are adversely affected in case of 
slowed down economic growth and worsened business climate, which may result in non-performance on the part 
of some of the major debtors. Information on the large exposures (an exposure representing 10 or more per-cent 
of the capital base of the Bank as defined in Regulation 575/2013) at carrying value before impairement*, as of 31 
December 2022 and 31 December 2021, is presented in the table below: 

  

  

2022 2021 
% of % of 

capital capital 
(€000) base (€ 000) base 

Largest exposure to a single client group 20,280 177 20,365 192 

Aggregate of five largest exposures 91,269 79.5 87,070 819 

Aggregate of all exposures-over 10% of capital base 182,765 159.3 178 763 1681 

*The exposure amount is presented prior to the use of credit protection technigues 

Loan commitments 

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are available to a customer as reguired. 
Guarantees, which represent irevocable commitment that the Group (he Bank) wil make the payment in the event 
that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties, carry the same credit risk as loans. The contingent 
commitments represent unused portions of authorizations on concluded contracts that are expected to be extended 
in the form of loans and guarantees. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is 
potentially exposed to loss in an amount egual to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss 
is less than the total commitments since commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining 
specific credit standards. The Group monitors the term to maturity of credit commitments because long-term 

commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk than short-term commitments. 
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32 Financial risk manaaement (continued 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Collaterals 

Loans advanced by the Group (fhe Bank and BACB Finance EAD) are normally secured by all or part of the 
borrower's assets and, in some cases security is taken over assets of third parties such as the directors or 
shareholders of a corporate borrower. For some specific standardized loan products the Management Board of the 
Bank could approve providing of unsecured financing, and as at 31 December 2022 such products are some retail 
loans and credit cards issued to individuals or legal entities. 

The credit operations policy sets out the applied principles and guidelines on the acceptability of specific assets, 
accepted as collaterals. The principal collateral types are: 

Mortgage on real estate 
Cash collateral 
Pledge on movable assets and on current/future receivables 
Pledge on securities, stocks or company shares 
Pledge on commercial enterprises 
Various guarantees 

Prior to advancing a loan, the Group values the real estate accepted as collateral at market value, and for its 
determination is used mainly the method of comparable market analogues. 

In a more limited scope are used also the real value method and/or the Future cash income capitalization method. 
For other types of collateral, the Group uses a reduced value (which represents the current carrying amount 
reduced by a certain percentage depending on the type of collateral) according to criteria approved by the 
Management Board. According to the internal rules and policies, the Group considers a loan to be sufficiently 
collateralized in case the discounted value of the proposed collateral covers the loan amount at 100%. The discount 
rates by type of collaterals applied at inception are an integral part of the lending policy and are approved by the 
Supervisory and Management Boards. The Management Board could decide for exceptions subject to approval by 
the Supervisory Board in case the internal rules provide for such exceptions. All real estates are valued by licensed 
extemal and/or intemal evaluators. At the time of realization the liguidation values may materially change from the 
ones at inception of a loan. 

As a part of the risk management policy, the Group carries out annual real estate market analyses, covering the 

overall changes in the prices by types of collaterals: residential properties (review by regions), land, industrial, 
shops, retail facilities, hotels, offices, and provides information on the changes by regions and - if possible - on the 
concentration by regional centres and resorts. Based on the expert analysis and the observed changes on the real 
estate market, the Group carries out regular stress tests of the accepted collaterals in order to assess the 
vulnerability to a potential drop in the prices of assets, used as collaterals for granted loans, as far as a part of the 
loans are collateralized by real estate. 
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32 Financialrisk manadement Fcontinued 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

Collaterals (continued) 

The table below contains a breakdown of Loan Portfolio by type of collateral at 31 December 2022 and 31 
December 2021: 

  

  

  

2022 2021 

EUR' 000 % EUR' 000 % 

Real estate” 441,312 59.98 402,989 59.99 

Cash 9 335 1.27 7,360 1.10 

Financlal guaranties or insurances 49 090 6.67 41,389 6.16 

Pledge on recevables from EU funds 15,729 2. 16,691 2.48 

Edguipment 55082 7A9 54940 8.18 

Inventory 26,964 366 24 733 368 

Other receivables and other assets 110,481 15.02 94 938 14.13 

Promissory notes 19,810 2.69 19,118 285 

Unsecured 7,916 1.08 9 651 1.44 
Loans to customers 735,719 100 671,809 100 
  

* The receivables under financial lease of buildings are presented as collateralized wilh real estate, as far as the transfer of 

fhe lease properties depends on the performance of fhe contractual terms and conditions by the lessee 

The value of loans is distributed based on the value of the constituted valid collaterals at the reporting date, 
according to their type. lf there is more than one type of collateral on the exposure the distribution is made by order 
of liguidity. 

fmpairment of financial assets 

The Group has established an internal policy and procedures for monitoring and classificaton of its risk exposures 
and determining the impairment loss (based on the Bank). These documents are used to determine the terms and 
condtions and the rules for identification of increased credit risk and fhe formation of impairment losses. The 
specialized ntemal body for monitoring, assessment and classifcatln of the risk exposures assesses the available 
information and determines the amount of the expected credi losses on a monthly basis 

The Group applies a single impairment model to al! financial assets that are not measured at far value through 
profit or loss, including undrawn loan commitments and issued financial guarantees. The Impairment model 
develped n compliance with the reguirements of IFRS 9 is a pattem of the expected credt losses which provides 
for an earlier recognition of credit losses and albcating of impairment allowances prior to incurring bsses. 

The Group reports an impairment allowance for (s financial assets carried at amortized cost - loans and debt 
instruments, for debt insttuments measured at fair value through OC , trade receivables, and financial guarantee 
contracts and other credit commitments. No impairment of eguity instruments is reported.
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

322. Creditrisk (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

For the purpose of applying the reguirements for impairment under IFRS 9, a Policy was developed for assessment 
of changes in credit dguality and determination of expected oredit losses (the Bank). The Policy serves as a 
framework for defining: 

a. Expected credit losses for 12 months or for the entire duration of the instrument 

Expected credit losses (ECLs) are recognized on a basis of the probability of default over the entire life of the 
instrument unless tne oredit risk after the initial recognition has changed significantiy, whereby the expected credit 
losses for 12 months are taken into account. The expected credit tosses for 12 months represent tne portion of 
credit losses over the instrumenft's life due to a default that may occur within 12 months after tne reporting date. 

The Group considers its short-term receivables fom banks and debt insttuments measured at amortized cost or a 
fair value in the OCl for low eredit risk instruments. Under these, the Group always reports 12 monthly credit losses 
as it considers *hat the likelihood of default is unlikely. I# there are indications that the low credit risk criteria may no 
longer be met in the subseguent reporting periods, tie Group performs an analysis of the change in credit risk 
relative to the initial recognition in order to assess the need fora loss allowance over the full period of the instrument. 

For its trade receivables, which are mainly lease receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach and always 
defines the ECLs over the life of the asset without ttacking changes in eredit guality. The Group uses a provisioning 
matrix for the calculation of ECLS on trade receivables based on past due days and historical loss data. The 
historical information is refined in order to correct historical experience by including prospective economic 
informatien. 

b. Approach and models for impairment of financial assets - on a collective and individual basis 

The parameters affecting the amount of expected credit losses are determined collectively or individually, 
depending on the type and nature of the financial instruments under corsideration. The Group determines the ECLS 
individually for all instuments with Stage 3 risk classification, as well as credit exposures to corporate clients, loans 
to small and medium-sized enterprises in Stage 1 and 2 exceeding a certain amount, investment in debt securities, 
exposures to banks as short-term bank receivables, funds blocked as collateral on repurchase transactions, etc. 
The collective approach applies to exposures with a Stage 1 or Stage 2 risk classification. On a collective basis, 
the risk parameters are estimated for loans grouped into portfolios based on common product and risk 
characteristics. As af 41 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Group has formed the following portfolios for 
the purposes of determining collectively expected credit losses: 

2022 Amortized cost ECL Net carrying amount 
  

  

  

  

  

Loans under EU programs for legal entities 17,952 (5%) 17,900 
Loans to micro-enterprises 16,819 (128) 16,691 
Mortgage loans to individuals 131,604 (12) 131,692 
Consumer loans to individuals 39255 (3,479) 35777 
Financial guarantees for micro-enterprises - nominal size 1,608 ) 1,607 
Total 207,238 (3,671) 203,567 

2021 Amortized cost ECL Net carrying amount 
Loans under EU programs for legal entities 21,015 (34) 20,981 
Loans to micro-enterprises 17,944 (115) 17,829 
Mortgage loans to individuals 106,242 (31) 106,211 
Consumer loans to individuals 37950 (4,137) 33813 
Financial guarantees for micro-enterprises - nominal size 1,864. (2) 1,862 
Total 185015 (4,319) 180,696 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

c. (Criteria for assessing increased credlt risk 

On each reporting date, for the purpose of determining the loss allowance, the Group compares the credit risk 
levels, ie. the probability of default occurring at the reporting date and at the date of the initial recognition of the 

asset. The analysis of the changes is made on the basis of available relevant information, which is accessible to 
the Group and which can be justified without the use of unnecessary resources. This information includes: 

e historical data on the perforfmance of certain financial instruments or other financial instruments with 

slmilar risk characteristics, 

e data on the current performance cf the insttuments under consideration —- number of days past due, 

default on contractual conditions, ete. 

e reasoned assumptions and expectations that are expected in the future to affect the credit risk of tne 

assets under considerafion 

Exposures with restructuring measures applied 

Pre-agreed loans include exposures renegotiated at the client's reguest due to changes in market conditions and 
restructured loans. Upon change In the contractual terms, the Group continues to repart interest income on the 
exposure based on the initially calculated effective interest rate, and the difference between fhe old amortized cost 
and the present value of the newly contracted cash flows Is recognized in profit or loss as a result of a modification. 
Exposures in respect of which the Group has applied discounts due to deterioration in financial condition and 

inability to service liabilities are considered loans with restructuring measures applied. This may include extending 
the pericd and changing credit terms and conditions. Once the terms are renegotlated, any impairment is calculated 
using the original effective Interest rate as calculated before the change in the terms and conditions and the credit 

is no longer considered overdue. 

The performance of the renegotiated temis is subject to pericdic review. The loans continue to be measured for a 

change in credit guality at each reporting date. 

lmpactf of fhe COVID 19 crisis on fhe change in the confractual terms of credit exposures 

Given the social and economic conseguences of the crisis related to the spread of the COVID-19 virus, including 
moratoria measures, the Group continues to apply enhanced internal credit risk monitoring procedures on 

eXposures where cChanges in contractual terms have been made due to the impact of the pandemic. 

The tables below present infomation, as at 341 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 regarding such loans. 
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32 Financial risk manaaement (centinued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

lmpairment of financial assets (continued) 

Exposures, meeting EBA 's moratorium reguirements: 

  

  

    

  

    

2022 Performing Non-performing o 

Gross carrying Net carrying Gross canying Net carrying 

Client's type # amount amount # amount amount 

Corporate 53 69,022 68 584 8 2,098 1,374 

Individuals 177 4411 4,338 107 563 9 

Total 230 73433 72,922 113 2661 1,471 

2021 Performing Non-performing 

Gross camying Net carrying Gross carying Net camying 
Client's type # amount amount # amount amount 

Corporate 69 87586 86956 5 1,681 1,449 

Individuals 264 5 986 5 897 126 682 236 

Total 333 93572 92.853 131 2,663 1,685 
    

Exposures, which do not meet EBA 's reguirements and where forbearance measures, related to COVID-19 have 
been applied: 

  

  

  

  

  

2022 Performing Non-performing 

Gross Gross 
carying Net carrying carying  Net camying 

Client's type # amount amount # amount amount 

CGorporate 9 16274 16,166 3 d,583 dA27 

Individuals 15 360 dA9 6 86 80 

Total 24 16,634 16515 9 d,669 d,907 

2021 Performing Non-perfoming 

Gross Gross 
carrying Net carying carrying Net carrying 

Client's type * amount amount # amount amount 

Corporate 7 12598 12,591 6 8736 8,390 

Individuals 12 AOT7 aêê 13 115 87 

Total 19 13005 12979 19 8851 8477 
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42 Financial risk management (continued] 

32.2. Credit risk (confinued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

Another fom of support to customers related to the mpact of the pandemic, are the newly originated loans subject 

to public guarantee schemes. The Group implemented a number of guarantee schemes, provided through the 
Bulgarian Development Bank, the National Guarantee Fund, Municipal Guarantee Fund, Fund Manager of 

Financial Instruments, to finance customers experiencing dilficulties. 

The tables below show iniormation on the balance sheet values of the new originated loans, within public guarantee 
schemes, related to the crisis, as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021: 

  

  

  

  

  

2022 Performing Non-performing 

Gross Gross 

catrying  Net carrying canying Net camrymng 

Clienf's type # amount amount # amount amount 

Corporate 241 M 701 34360 15 1,514 1,162 

Total 231 34,701 34360 15 1,514 1,162 

9021 Perfomming Non-performing 

Gross Gross 
carrying  Net carrying carrying Net camying 

Client's type # amount amount # amount amount 

Corporate 182 25,382 25,191 695 521 

Total 182 25,382 25,191 695 521 
  

In relaton to the ofher Group companies the above is used by anology where applicable and if not - for example 
for trade receivables, an age analysis is made and a defined loss is applied based on the historic experience and 

the relevant future macro-economic factors if they have influence. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

d. Risk classification according to the credit guality of the financial assets 

The analysis of the changes in the credit guality of the financial assets compared to their initial recording determines 
their risk classification in three main stages as well as the subseguent recognition of impairment allowance: 

Stage 1 (regular exposures) — classifies financial assets without indication of an increase in credit risk 
compared to the initial measurement. The Group recognizes 12-month ECLs for Stage 1 classified 
financial assets. The interest income is recognized using the effective interest method on the gross 
carrying amount of the instrument. 
Stage 2 (exposures with impaired performance) - classifies financial assets with a significant increase 
in credit risk but without objective evidence of impairment or basis for incurring losses. The Group 
recognizes ECLs for the entire life of the instrument classified under Stage 2. The interest income is 
recognized using the effective interest method on the gross carrying amount of the instrument. 
Stage 3 (exposures with credit impairment) - classifies financial assets with a significant increase in 
credit risk and objective evidence of impairment (defaulted exposures). The Group recognizes 
expected credit losses for the full term of the instrument, assuming for the classification in Stage 3 
that the Probability of Default (PD) risk parameter is 100%. Interest income is recognized using the 
effective interest method on the net carrying amount of the instrument, i.e. after deduction of the loss 
allowance. 

Definition of credit impaired exposures: A financial asset is considered credit impaired when one or more events 
have occurred that have a material adverse effect on the future expected cash flows from the asset. Evidence of 
the occurrence of adverse events may be some of the following circumstances: 

1) Allowed overdue payments of principal and/or interest exceeding 90 days; 
2) Significant financial difficulties leading to counterparty cash flow disruptions; 
3) Renegotiating the terms of the contract with substantial discounts for the debtor caused by financial difficulties; 
4) — Significant probability of commencing insolvency or liguidation of the debtor, 
5) Material deterioration of the counterparty's market positions or suspension of trading in the financial asset due 

to financial difficulties; 

The Group considers exposures classified in Stage 4 as credit impaired exposures. 

“Cured exposures”: Financial assets classified in Stage 3 are considered as "cured” and reclassified to Stage 2 or 
Stage 1, when none of the default criteria are present for a minimum cure period and after an expert opinion about 
the indicators for upgraded credit guality of the exposure. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

e, Determination and modelling of risk parameters 

The main risk parameters affecting the size of the ECLs are: 

e Probability of Default (PD) - The probability of a counterparty not complying with contract clauses 
related to debt repayment. For each individual portfolio of collectively assessed exposures, the Group maintains 
historical information on the migration of exposures from Stage 1 or respectively Stage 2 to Stage 3 (“default”) for 
a 12-month period. The Group analyses the proportion between loans that were regular at the beginning of the 
period and are defaulted at the end of the period, compared to the total loan portfolio at the beginning of the period 

The value of 12M PD is detemined on the basis of observed deterioration rates and is calculated as a moving 
average over a period of at least 2 years. For the retail consumer and mortgage loan portfoios formed, the Group 
applies a rescue-rate model that adjusts the value of 12m PD and reflects fhe long-term probabilty of defauted 
eXposures to restore their performing status. 

For exposures that are individually measured, the value of the 12m PD is determined depend ng on fhe assigned 
credt rating accord ing to an hternal model. Data on the changes in the borrowers' rating over a one-year horizon 

is aggregated into transaction matrices, and a 12-m PD s calculated for each rating scale depending on the number 
of default cases found. The Group adjusts the estimated historical values of 12m PD to reflect the current or 
expected economic conditions that may differ from those during the historical periods analyzed. The chosen model 
for reflecting the macroeconomic context is essentially macroeconomic forecasting (result of 3 macroeconomie 
scenarios - conservative / baseline / optimistic) and linking macroeconomic forecasts to the Group's key parameters 
/ estimated probability of defaut with a 12-month horizon, estimated probability of default over the lifetime of the 
instrument). ' reflects the impact of two macroeconomic parameters GDP (for business exposures) and 
Unemployment Rate (for retail segment) 

When determining the macroeconomic scenarios, the latest up-to-date forecasts for Bulgaria, from external 
sources, such as the European Commission, the IMF , the BNB, the Min stry of Finance etc., have been used. Three 
scenanos have been modelled on h basis - optimistic, realistic and conservative, used to determine the impact, 
and the value of the PIT PD, respectively. Based on the latest forecasts for the development of the country's 
economy and the labor market, the Group has developed new macroeconomic scenarios used as at 31 December 

2022. 

  

Parameter Scenario Weight 2022 2023 2024 Foll;v:::g 

Optimistic 26% 3.90% 3 00% d.10% 4.00% 

GDP growin n % Baseline 50% 3 20% 1.30% 3.30% 3 50% 

Conservatie 25% 2.80% 0.10% 2 BO% 2.80% 

Optmiste 25% 4.50% 4.20% 4. 20% 4.20% 

Unemploymentrate in % Baselne 50% 4.70% 4 50% d.50% 4.60% 

Conservative 25% 5.20% 5 20% 5.20% 5.30% 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

$2.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

The war in Ukraine, the subseguent disruptions in supply chains and the shocks to the markets of row materialsg 
the increase in the cost of living for the households as a result of high inflation, contribute to the high uncertainty in 
the forecasts, which “increases” the reguirements to the developed models. 

At this stage, the most appropriate approach for the application of extended / in-depth evaluations, related to the 
loan guality and impairments, is that of the complex reflecting of the: 

e (uarterly forecasts on the development of the economies - using the forecasts in a horizon of 1 from 
extemal sources;. 

e Monitoring and analysis of the level of impact on the various industries and evaluation/transfer of the 
potential impact on sub-portfolio and/or selected exposures; 

e (ndividual assessments for significant exposures, based on the current financial information, changes 
in fhe indebtedness, level of impact of the crisis on the business, suppliers and clients. 

In addition, the Group has carried out an assessment of the sensitivity of the risk parameters reflecting the 
expectations for the development of the main macro-economic indicators. The table below presents the effect on 
the amount of the expected credit losses in the individual scenarios. 

The results show that the amount of the expenses for expected credit losses on loan and advances as of 31 
December 2022, would be EUR 218 thousand or 8.6% higher in the conservative scenario and EUR 200 thousand 
or 7.9% lower in the optimistic scenario. 

    
  

    
  

2022 Effect on the amount of expected credit loss 

Stage of Expected 
credit auality credit loss Baseline Conservative Optimistic 

Stage 1 2,700 (6) 144 (132) 

Stage 2 1,374 (4) 74 (68) 

 Stage 3* 26,570 - - - 

Total 30,644 (10) 218 (200) 

* The scenarios for the development of the main macro-economic indicators reflect the effect of the change in GOP 
and unemployment rates on the values of the parameter 12 m PIT PD and Lifetime PD, therefor the effect on the 
amount of the expected credit losses is a function of the exposures in Stage 1 and Stage 2. 

% diviation in expenses for expected credit loss 

  
  

2022 EUR thousand Baseline Conservative Optimistic 

Expenses for 
expected credit 
loss 25171 “0.4% 8.6% -7.9% 

79



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

AI amounts are in fhousands of EUR unless ofherwise stated 

32 Financial risk manadement (continued 

82.2. Credit risk (continued) 

impairment of financial assefs (continued) 

Definition of default: The Group considers that a default occurs when the debtor is past due for more than 90 days 
and/or there are other material breaches of the terms of the contract and the debtor is unlikely to repay his 

obligations without action by the Group (e.g. restucturing measures, sale of collateral, etc.) 
e Exposure at Default (EAD) — potential exposure at the time of default. The level of exposure at defaul 

is determined individually tor each loan depeniding the fype of loan, taking into account both the amount of debt 
and the agreed undrawn amounts according to the expectation of future drawdown 

e Loss Given Default LGD - ratio of the exposure loss due to default of the counterparty to the amourit 
of exposure at default. To detemine the LGD on unsecured loans, the Group calculates the potential loss that 
would arise if an exposure goes into default and the only source for collecting the receivable is the realization of 
the collateral. The loss is measured as the difference between the exposure at default (EAD) and the realizable 
value of the collateral and is presented as a percentage of the EAD. 

LGD Is determined indivrdually for each exposure in the loan portfolio, depending on its collateral and regardless 
of whether tne probability of default is assessed on an individual or collective basis. To determine tne LGD 
parameter for unsecured loans (consumer loans and credit cards) the Group applies a statistical model for the 
detemmination of the recovery rate in case of loss (1-LGL), which calculates the portion that can be collected after 
the loan cannot be rescued. The recovery rate is that part of EAD for loans considered loss, that could be collected 
after (ne exposure is classified as loss. The exposure is classified as loss after passage of defined cure period with 

no positive development or when written off. The LGL parameter is calculated based on the observed recoveries 
depending on the product type (e.g. credit card, standard loan, overdraf), and the measured ratio is assumed as 
(he expected LGL value in a glven portfolio at a given time in the business cycle by the formula 

EA &‘;(“)_ 
(d HI EOT 

E La.t(a) " 
AEA (1 T T_a)t(a)_r 

Where: A is the range of loss exposures in a particular segment 
a € Athe number of the exposures in A 

T - days in arear of the exposure in the month of default 
Ratta) IS te retunded amount for the exposure for the last 12 months, 

Laaca IS the amount due on the ioan at the beginning of the period, 

t(ar) is the overdue of the exposure at fhe beginning of the period 

LGL s1- 

The recovery rates thus obtained are applied on a collective basis, depending on the type of product in the retall 
segment. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 

Acguired collateral 

The Group's policy (mainly the Bank) is to determine whether the acguired asset from collateral is best to be realized 
by the Group or sold. Assets designated to be realized by the Group are transferred to investment property category 
at acguisition cost, including transaction costs. Assets that are deemed to be better immediately sold are reported 
in a category held for sale at fheir fair value at the acguisition date in accordance with the Group's policy. 

Assessment of collateral 

The Group seeks to use collateral, wherever possible, to reduce the risks of financial assets. Collateral may take 
the form of cash, securities, financial guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, ofher non-financial assets. 
The fair value of the collateral is measured at least initially and revalued on a revolving basis. As far as possible, 
the Group uses market data to measure financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets whose market 
value cannot be estimated are measured using models. Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is recognized 
on the basis of estimates made by independent appraisers. 

f.  Methods for calculation and presentation of expected credit losses by types of financial assets 

The credit loss estimate is averaged, weighted for the probability of default over the life of the instrument by 
estimating the range of possible outcomes. Credit losses are the present value of the difference between the cash 
flows due under the contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive in practice, taking into account 
the amounts and when they are expected to be received over time. When measuring the expected cash flows, 
account shall also be taken of the flow of collateral realization and other credit facilities that are an integral part of 
the contract. For the purpose of determining the expected credit losses, the difference between contractual and 
expected cash flows is discounted using the initial effective interest rate on the transaction or the credit risk-adjusted 
effective interest rate for purchased or initially created financial assets with credit impairment. The change in the 
loss adjustment is recognized as a result of impairment in profit or loss for the period. 

For financial insttuments measured at amortized cost such as loans and debt securities, the cumulative allowance 
reduces the carrying amount of the instrument in the statement of financial position. For debt instrtuments measured 
at fair value in other comprehensive income, the expected credit loss is part of the negative change in the fair value 
due to increased credit risk. These assets continue to be reported at fair value in the statement of financial position 
and the accumulated loss adjustment is reported in the statement of comprehensive income. Upon subseguent 
deregistration of the instrument, the cumulative adjustment is recognized in the profit or loss for the period. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances to banks 

The following tables provide information on the cred t guality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for exposures 
with banks as at 31 December 2022 and 41 December 2021, accord ng to the Group's 'nternal risk classifeation 
(mainly the Bank). The amounts presented reflect the change h the gross carrying amounts and the impatrmrent 
albwance during the reporting period. 

Changes in gross carrying amount 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Stagel  Stage2 . Stage3 TOTAL 

Amount as at 1 January 2022 85,869 85869 

New assets 18,346 19 346 

Amounts paid (81,562) (81,562) 
Transfer between stages o - o r 

Amount as at 31 December 2022 23,653 23.653 

Changes in gross carrying amount 
Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Amount as at 1 danuary 2021 28112 - - 28112 

New assets 63,725 - 63725 
Amounts paid (5,868) - (5.968) 
Transfer between stages - E E E 

Amount as at 31 December 2021 85,669 85869 

Ghanges in the impairment allowance Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Amount as at 1 January 2022 2 - - 2 

New assets 4 - - 4 

Paid assets (1) - - (1) 

Transfer between stages - - - - 
Amount as at 31 December 2022 5 - - 5 

Changes in ihe impaimment alowance Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 
Amount as at 1 January 2021 30 - - 30 

New assets 2 - - 2 

Paid assets (30) - - (39) 

Transfer between stages - - - - 

Amount as at 31 Dercember 20271 2 - 2 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. CGredif risk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances to customers 

The following tables provide information on the credit guality and the maximum exposure to credit risk for exposures 

to legal ertities and individuals as at 31 December 2022 and 41 December 2021, according to the Group's intermai 
risk classification (valid for tne Bank and BACB Finance EAD). The amounts presented reflect the amortised cost 
of the exposures before impairment allowance and the change in the amortised cost and the impaiment allowance 
during the reporting period. 

The credit guality of the portfolio of loans that are neither overdue, nor impaired is assessed on the basis of the 

Group's internal risk rating classification methodology. A brief explanation of the allocation classes of loans that are 

neither overdue, nor impaired: 

High class Performing exposures with PD from 0.04% to 0.50% 
Medium class Performing exposures with PD from 0.50% to 12.00% 
Low class Performing exposures with PD from 12.00% to 29.50% 

The Groups reports as impaired the exposures fhat are classified in Stage 3. Loans overdue up to 90 days are not 
considered impaired uniess there is other objective evidence of impairment as at the reporting date. Such loans 

are reported in the statement as overdue but not impaired. 

Business Exposures 

  

  

  

  

  

Gross cartying amount as of 31. 12.2022 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

1. Neither past due nor impaired 
1.1. Individually assessed 374,827 16 405 - 391232 

High class 55285 94 - 56379 
Medium class 316,223 5, 387 - 323,610 
Low class 1319 10,924 - 12.243 

1.2. Collectively assessed 31,187 1281 J2,468 
2. Past due not impaired 

2.1. Individually assessed 22,904 39422 - 62426 
2.2. Collectively assessed 1,429 874 - 2,303 
3. Impaired - indvidually assessed - - 75675 75,675 

TOTAL 430,347 57,982 75,675 564,004 

Gross carrying amount as of 31.12. 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

1. Neither past due nor impaired 
11. Individually assessed 419,0%2 25 482 - AA 514 

High class 22.113 115 - 22,228 
Medium class 290,184 9.885 - 300,069 
Low class 6736 18 482 - 22,217 

1,2. Collectively assessed 34951 799 35750 
2. Past due not impaired 

2.1. Individually assessed A1,490 15,549 - 57,039 
22. Collectively assessed 2,3V 897 - 208 
3, Impaired - individually assessed - - 86,178 86178 

TOTAL 397784 42 727 86178 526,689 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

82.2. Creditrisk (confinued) 

(uality of loans and advances to cusfomers (continued) 

Business Exposures fcontinued 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Ghanges in the gross carrying amount in 2022 Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 
Amounts at 1 January 2022 397,784 42727 86,178 526,689 
New assets originated 139,984. 2,923 1,545 144 452 
Paid exposures (86,662) (7,605) (8,385) (102,652) 
Transfers to Stage 1 5,821 (6,691) (130) - 
Transtfers to Stage 2 (25,302) 34463 (9,16%) 

Transfers to Stage 3 (1,278) (8,835) 10,113 ! 
Amounts written off - - (4,465) (4,485) 

Amounts at 31 December 2022 430,347 57,982 15675 564,004 

Ghanges in the gross carrying amount in 2021 Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 
Amounts at 1 January 2021 369,067 46, 974 107 718 523,759 
New assets originated 112,362 1,055 2,1%4 115,551 
Paid exposures (80,429) (5,635) (13,805) (99,869) 
'Fransfers to Stage 1 10,522 (10,305) (217) - 
Transfers to Stage 2 (12,521) 16,654 (4,133) - 

Transfers to Stage 3 (1,217) (6,016) 7,233 - 
Amounts written off - - (12.752) (12,752) 

Amounts at 3i December 2021 397784 42727 86178 826,689 

Ghanges in the impaitment allowance in 2022 Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 
Amounts at 1 January 2022 1,962 519 27 411 29,892 

New assets originated 1,068 425 2,629 4122 
Paid exposures (1,022) (394) (1,194) (2,610) 
Transfers to Stage 1 66 (14) (52) - 
Transfers to Stage 2 (186) 532 (346) 

Transfers to Stage 3 7) (19) 18 - 
Amounts written off - - (4,485) (4,485) 
Amounts at 41 December 2022 1,861 1,057 23 981 26919 

Changes in the impairment aflowance in 2021 Stage Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2021 1,770 583 d7,763 40,116 

New assets originated 929 303 2,737 3,969 
Paid exposures (858) (242) (341) (1,441) 
Transfers to Stage 1 147 (141) (6) - 
Transfers to Stage 2 (24) 30 (6) - 

Transfers to Stage 3 (2) (14) 16 - 
Amounts written off - (12.752) (12,752) 
Amounts at 31 December 2021 1,962 519 27,411 29,892 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Mortgage loans to individuals 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

Gross cartying amount as of 31.12.2022 Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Neither past due nor impaired-Collectively assessed 128 146 44 - 128,190 

Past due not impaired-collectively assessed 2,231 1,183 - dA14 
Impaired - individually assessed - - 856 856 

TOTAL 130,377 1227 856 132,460 

Gross camying amount as of 31.12.2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Neither past due nor impaired-Collectively assessed 101,765 372 - 102,137 

Past due not impaired-coliectively assessed 3,075 1,030 - 4,105 
Impaired - individually assessed - - 927 927 

TOTAL 104,840 1,402 927 107,169 

Changes in the gross carrying amount in 2022 Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2022 104,840 1,402 927 107,169 
New assets originated 43,663 149 20 43832 
Paid exposures (18,108) (296) (137) (18,541) 

Transfers to Stage 1 892 (803) (89) - 
Transfers to Stage 2 (720) 826 (106) - 

Transfers to Stage 3 (190) (51) 241 - 

Amounts written off - - - - 

Amounts at 31 December 2022 130,377 1,227 856 132,460 

Changes in ihe gross catrying amount in 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Amounts at * January 2021 72,407 1,202 1,715 75324 
New assets originated 43,053 190 17 43 260 

Paid exposures (10,610) (62) (743) (11,415) 

Transfers to Stage 1 937 (893) (44) - 
Transfers to Stage 2 (924) 1,132 (208) - 
Transfers to Stage 3 (23) (167) 190 - 
Amounts written off - - - - 

Amounts at 31 December 2021 104,840 1,402 927 107,169 
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32 Financial risk management i continued) 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances fo customers (continued) 

Mortgage loans to individuals (continued 

  

  

  

  

  

Changes in the impairment allowance in 2022 Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2022 31 305 336 

New assets originated 9 13 22 

Paid exposures (28) (4) (32) 

Transfers to Stage 1 - - - 

Transfers to Stage 2 - - 

Transfers to Stage 3 . - 

Amounts written off - - - 

Amounts at 41 December 2022 12 14 326 

Ghanges in the impairment allowance in 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2021 113 2A7 360 

New assets originated 21 74 95 

Paid exposures (103) (16) (119) 

Transfers to Stage 1 - - - 

Transfers to Stage 2 - - - 

Transfers to Stage 3 - - - 

Amounts written off D - - 

Amounts at 31 December 2021 31 305 336 
  

86



BULGARIAN-AMERICAN CREDIT BANK AD 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

31 DECEMBER 2022 

All amounts are in thousands of EUR unless otherwise stated 

32 Financial risk management (continued 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Consumer loans to individuals 

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

Gross carrying amount as of 31.12.2022 Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Neither past due nor impaired-Collectively assessed 34 490 64 - 4554 

Past due not impaired-Collectively assessed 1,654 500 - 2,154 

Impaired - Collectively assessed - - 2547 2541 

TOTAL 36,144 564 2547 39.255 

Gross camying amount as of 31.12.2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Neither past due nor impaired-Collectively assessed 32,148 33 32,181 

Past due not impaired-Coliectively assessed 1,819 501 - 2,320 
Impaired - Collectively assessed - - 3450 3,450 

TOTAL 33 967 534 3450 37,951 

Ghanges in the gross canving amount in 2022 Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2022 33967 54 3450 37,951 

New assets originated 17,104 153 466 17 793 

Paid exposures (14,206) (101) (378) (14,685) 
Transfers to Stage 1 169 (141) (28) - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (355) 376 (21) - 
Transfers to Stage 3 (535) (257) 792 - 

Amounts written off - - (1,734) (1,734) 
Amounts at 41 December 2022 36144 564 2547 39.255 

Changes in fhe gross carrying amount in 2071 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2021 28,295 850 2,462 31,567 

New assets originated 16 745 76 A23 17,244 

Paid exposures (10,5%6) (121) (127) (10,844) 

Transfers to Stage 1 355 (306) (49) - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (&12) 446 (34) 

Transfers to Stage 3 (380) (411) 791 - 

Amounts written off - - (16) (16) 

Amounts at 31 December 2021 33,967 53d 3450 37,951 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Consumer loans to individuals (continued) 

  

  

  

  

  

Ghanges in the impairment allowance in 2022 Stagel Stage?2 Stage3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2022 743 249 3145 4,137 
New assets originated 41 235 978 1,624 
Paid exposures (380) (16) (152) (548) 
Transfers to Stage 1 89 (64) (25) - 
Transfers to Stage 2 (16) 35 (19) 
Transfers to Stage 3 (43) (122) 165 - 
Amounts written off - - (1,734) (1,734) 

Amounts at 31 Decernber 2022 a0d 317 2,358 3479 

Changes in the impairment allowance in 2021 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

Amounts at 1 January 2021 565 387 2,156 d,108 

New assets originated 418 184 918 1,520 

Paid exposures (378) (36) (61) (475) 

Transfers to Stage 1 173 (131) (42) - 

Transfers to Stage 2 (13) 43 (30) * 

Transfers to Stage 3 (22) (198) 220 - 
Amounts written off - - (16) (16) 

Amounts at 31 December 2021 743 249 d,143 4137 
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32 Financial risk manadgement (continued) 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

Ouality of loans and advances to customers (continued) 

Changes in the ferms of the contracis (modification) 

The contractual terms for individual loan exposures in tne Bank's portfolio may be changed due to various factors. 
After contractual terms are changed, the Group continues to recognize interest income on the exposure based on 
the original effective interest rate calculated at inception, with the diffierence between the carrying value and the net 
pesent value of fhe new contracted cash flows being recognized currentiy in the profit or loss as a modification 
effect. The terms of a contract may undergo certain changes caused by changes in the market conditions and/or 
specific strategic objectives for aftracting and retaining customers, without such factors being related to the 
deterioration of the borrower's financial position or his ability to service his oblogations. Such changes are 
considered by the Group as “renegotiation “of the contractual terms and conditions. When changes to the 
contractual terms are mainly related to financial dificulties of the borrower, they are considered as restucturing. In 
both cases changes could result in the recognition of modification effect in the financial statements. 

The following table presents information on changes resulting from changes in the contractual terms of loan 
exposure at the reporting date, that did not lead to derecognition. 

  

Loans modified during the year 2022 2021 

Amortised cost 94,023 87,8% 

Effect of modification (250) (778) 

Expected credit losses (475) (627) 

Loans modified after initial racognltion 
Loars, that have cured since modification and are now 
measured using 12mECL (Stage 1) 4409 7,538 
Loars that reverted to (Stage 2/3) LT ECL having once cured 12,989 969 

Loan exposures with restructuring (forbearance) measures 

In cases, when the borrower has encountered difficulties performing its financial obligations or shows signs of 
deteriorating financial performabce, the Group (mainly the Bank) may initiate a change in the original terms and 
conditions of the contract, by giving concessions to the debtor in order to enable debt servicing and accordingly to 
reduce the risk of default. * 

Such changes, which the Group would not have carried out, should the debtor not had financial difficulties, are 
considered “restructuring'", i.e. these are considered “forbearance measures' and may include: 

e Fxtension of the contractual period by more than 2 years after fhe original period (more favorable terms, 
compared to those, that may be offered to other debtors with a similar risk profile) 

e Debt reduction (complete or partial derecognition) 
e Replacementofa part of the debt by property, 
e Refinancing 
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$2 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances fo cusfomers (continued) 

Loan exposures with restrucfuring (forbearance) measures fcontinued) 

The Group considers that fne restructuring of an exposure might be an obiectlve indicator, which reguires assessing 

whether credit risk is significantly increased after the initia! recognition. Any change in the terms of the contract for 
an exposure is considered by the Credit Committee, which decides whether it represents implementation of 
restructuring measures. In the process of monitoring the auality of the loan portfolio, the specialized body for 
monitoring, assessment, classification and provisioning of risk exposures should review and analyze received 

information for modification cf the contractual conditions on specific exposures and shall decide on fhe respective 
risk classification. 

The following tables provide information on credit exposures restructured on 31 December 2022 and 2021 
respectively: 

41 December 2022 

  

Corporate Individuals 

EUR' 000 Number EUR 000 Number 

Neither past due nor impaired 11,139 12 80 7 

Past due but not impaired 8414 3 76 4 

Impaired loans 51,826 58 244 23 

Total before impairment 71,379 73 400 4 
1ess: ECL allowance (11,082) (187) 

Restructured loans, net 60,297 213 

31 December 2021 

Corporate Individuals 

EUR' 000 Number EUR' 000 Number 

Neither past due nor impaired 13670 14 167 10 

Past due but not impaired 402 2 99 9 
Impalred loans 60,239 61 A2T 31 

Total before impairment 7A,311 71 693 50 

Less: ECL allowanice (15,415) (185) 

Restructured ioans, net 58 896 508 
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32 Financial risk management (continued 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

@uality of loans and advances fo customers (continued) 

Financial guarantees and letter of credits (LC) issued 

As at 31 December 2022 the Group issued financial guarantees with a total nominal value of EUR 11,291 thousand 
(2021: EUR 15,596 thousand). AIl exposures under issued guarantees are to legal entities. 

Maximum credit exposure on issued guarantees and LC 

at 31.12.2092 

1. Neither past due nor impaired 

1.1. Individually assessed 

High class 

Medium class 

Low class 

1.2.Collectively assessed 

2. Past due not impaired 
dImpaired 

TOTAL 

Maximum credit exposure on issued guarantees at 

31.12.20?1 

1. Neither past due nor impaired 

1.1. Individually assessed 

High class 

Medium class 

Low class 

1.2.Collectively assessed 

2. Past due not impaired 

3 Impaired 

TOTAL 

  

  

  

  

' Stagel Stage2 . Stage3  TOTAL. 

9 674 - s 9 674 

2,558 2,558 

7,116 Z,116 

1,608 1,608 

9 9 

11282 9 11 291 

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3  TOTAL. 

14 724 13.723 

2,09%1 2,091 

11,632 11,632 

1,864 s 1,864 

9 9 

15587 9 15 596 
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32 Financial risk mana dement (continued) 

32.2. Creditrisk (continued) 

Guality of loans and advances to cusfomers (continued) 

Financial guarantees and letter of credits (LC) issued (continued) 

Change in maximum credit exposure on issued 
guarantees and LC in 2022 

Amount as at 1 January 2022 

New guarantees issued 

Matured guarantees 
Transfers between stages 
Amounts written off 

Amounts as at 31 December 2022 

Chancae in maximum credit exposure on issued 
guarantees and LC in 2021 

Amount as at 1 January 2021 

New guarantees issued 

Matured guarantees 

Transfers between stages 
Amounts written off 

Amounts as at 31 December 2021 

Change in the impairment allowance on issued 
guarantees and LC in 2022 

Amount as at 1 January 2022 

New guarantees issued 
Matured guarantees 
Transfers between stages 
Amounts written off 

Amounts as at 41 December 2022 

Change in the impainment allowance on issued 
guarantees and LC in 2021 

Amount as at 1 January 2021 

New guarantees issued 

Matured guarantees 
Transfers between stages 
Amounts written off 
Amounts as at 31 December 2021 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

15,587 - 9 15,596 

3,596 - - 3,596 

(7,60%) - - (7,901) 

11,282 9 11,291 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 TOTAL 

9518 67 7A 10,319 
11,309 - - 11,309 

(5,240) (67) (725) (6,032) 

15687 9 15,59% 

Stagel Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

9 - 9 

3 - 3 
(6) - @) 

7 - 7 

Stage1 Stage2 Stage3 TOTAL 

4 - 62 66 

6 - - 6 
M - (62) (63) 

9 - 9 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Credit risk (continued) 

Analysis, based on fhe credit rating of the financial assets 

The rating category of tne debtor is one of the main aspects of tie “price", which is to be paid in order to overcome 
a credit risk. The Group has specified in the table below the agencies and the respective ratings of its financial 
assets at net carrying value: 

g';?:g Agency 

AA* SAP 

Aa2 Moody's 

Aad Moody's 

A Moody's 

A2 Moody's 

A3 Moody's 

AAA Fitch 

AA Fitch 

BBBR Fitch 

BB Moody's 

B Fitch 

Unclassified 

Totalf 

t am 
AA* SAP 

Aad Moody's 

A3 Moody's 

A2 Moody's 

BBB* Fitch 

BBB Fitch 

BBB BACR 

Ba1 Moody's 

B- Fitch 
Unclassified 

Total 

  

  

  

  

  

2022 
Balances , ) s 

Winihe . ajvendeste — asswtdt . assetsak . DEBnskumenis a 
Bank banks FVTPL FVOCI 

- - - - 18848 

438 596 - - 

- - 609 - 

- 437 - - - 

6263 - - - 

1,445 - - 

- 9,982 

- - - 9978 

15503 - d7,164 26,950 

1,489 

- - 983 

- - 4597 

439 596 24,648 609 d4 233 65,758 

Bal a alances . , . s 

vi . UA, P P petindrunenisa 
Bank banks FVTPL FVOGI 

- - - - 13284 

- - 515 - - 

- 154 - - . 

203 - - - 

- 2,861 - - - 

231,971 26,172 - 33243 23740 

- 56477 . - Ë 
- Ë - 1,722 - 

- - - 979 - 
- - - 4,569 - 

231,971 85867 515 40,513 d7,024 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.2. Gredit risk (continued) 

Geographical concentrations of assets, liabilities and off-balance shest items 

The Group's operations are concentrated primarily in Bulgaria. As of 31 December 2022, there are some exposures 
to other countries as placements with foreign banks in the amountof EUR 6,865 thousands (2021:3 219 thousands) 
and investments in govermment bonds as follbws: 

e EUR 9980 thousands (202%: none) - Gemany government bonds 
e EUR 9979 thousands (2021: none) - France government bonds 
e EUR 18,848 thousands (2021: 13297 housands) - USA government bonds . 

323. Market risk 

The Group is exposed to different market risks which have main impact on fhe activity of the Bank and to 
insignificant extent to the other Group campanies. The market risks are associated with the risk of adverse effects 
of the changes in the prevailing market conditions on the financial positlon of (he Group. Market risks arise in 

relation to the Group's positions in interest rate, foreign exchange, eguity and other financial nstruments that are, 
to some extent, dependent on the changes in the general or specific market conditions such as changes in interest 
rates, credit margins, foreign exchange rates, eguity insttuments prices and fhe like. The Group has developed and 
established policies and procedures to identify, manage and control the levels of risk to which it is exposed during 
operations. 

The policles and procedures for managing market risk are approved by the Management Board of fhe Bank. The 
main objective of fhe risk policy Is to impose clearly defined parameters on the Group's operations to adeguately 
limit the exposure to different risks. The Group estimates the market risk of ts open exposures and the maximum 
losses expecied based upon a number of assumptions for various changes in market condifions. The internal risk 

management systems of the Group evolve with the growth of the Group's operations lo ensure maximum contral 

on each risk categary. For the other Group companies the responsible emplovees follow fhe risk parameters but 
tfeir exposure to market dsk is Insignificant. 

32.4.1. Exchange rate risk 

The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in tne prevalling foreign currency exchange rates on its financial 

position and cash flows. The Group operates in Euro, US dollars, Leva and occasionally in GBP and Swiss Francs. 
lt has relatively limited foreign exchange exposure because since 1997, the Lev has been pegged to the Deutsche 

mark and, subseguently to the Euro through a currency-board system. Compliance with foreign exchange limits is 
monitored on an on-going basis by the Markets and Liduidity Department of the Bank and is reported to the ALCO 
on a monthjy basis. 

The exchange rate risk management policy aims to maintain an open US dollar positon that is as close as 
practicable to neutral by attempting to match the amounts and time limits of its liabilities denominated in USD with 
ts receivables denominated in fhat currency. The limit for ovemight maximum open forelgn exchange positions in 

customer transactions is EUR 100,000. Due to the currency board arrangement, there is no limit for the posttion in 
EUR. In special circumstances, the above limits for open positions may be exceeded with the approval of the 
Fxecutive Directors. In the course of its operations, the Group may conclude short-term foreign exchange swaps 
to manage its currency flows and as an insttument to reduce the cost of borrowed funds in some of the currencies 
concemed, taking advantage of their existing differences in interest rates. As at 31 December 2022 and 31 

December 2021 there are no open foreign currency swaps. Except for the Bank, the othier Group companies are 

not exposed to significant cumency risk. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.3.1. Exchange rate risk (continued) 

The information about the Group's exposure in the different currencies at 31 December 2022 and 2021 is presented 
in the tables below: 

31 December 2022 

Cash and balances with the Central 

Bank 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Debt instruments at FVOCI 

Eauity instruments at FVOCI 

Debt instrtuments at amortised cost 

Investment properties 
Tangible and intangible assets 
Investments in joint ventures 
Other financial assets 
Other non-financial assets 

Total assets 

Deposits fom banks 

Deposits ffom customers 

Debt securities in issue 

Other borrowed funds 

Oiher financial liabilities 

Other non-financial liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Met foreign currency gap 

Foreign currency spot contracts 

Net foreign currency gap 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

USD EUR BGN Other jotal 

1,100 262,013 181,790 99 445,002 

5,756 16,562 1,282 ê 23,648 

23404 255,208 d26,383 - 704,995 

609 - - - 609 

- 23 553 18,588 - 42,141 

- - 2,092 - 2,092 

18848 d9,921 6,989 - 665,758 
- - 42016 - 42,016 
- - 7182 - 7,182 
- - 115 - 115 
- 2236 1222 - d,468 
- - 21,646 - 21,636 

49 717 589493 719295 147 1,358,652 

- 11 28 - 39 

89508 383,068 705,878 - 1178 454 

- 15,016 - - 15,016 

- 5,722 3454 - 9,176 

2,649 2,679 8,868 4 14,200 

45 300 2.925 - d.270 

82202 406,796 12%1,153 4 1220153 

(42 485) 182,697 (1,858) 143 138,497 

f106) 35106 (35,000) - E 

(42,591) 217,803 (36,858) 143 
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32 Financial cisk management (continued) 

32.3.1. Exchange rate risk (continued) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

31 December 2021 USD EUR BGN Other Total 

Cash and balances with the Central Bank 952 73,8%8 163 146 143 238,059 

Loans and advances to banks 35,949 48592 1289 37 85,867 

Loans and advances to customers 29 873 246,171 361,400 - 637 444 

Financlalassets at FVTPL 515 - - - 515 

Debt insttuments at FVOCI - 23312 15 108 - 38,420 

Eduity insttuments at FVOCI - - 2093 - 2,093 

Debt insttuments at amortised cost 13 283 23 7A1 i i 37,024 

Investment properties - - 52 938 - 52,938 
Tanglble and intangible assets - - 9,794 - 9,794 

nvestments 'n joint ventures - - 138 - 138 

Other financial assets - 361 1,468 - 1,829 

Other non-financial assets - - 20 944 - 20 944 

Total assets 80,572 415,995 628,318 180 1,125,065 

Deposits from banks - 37 58 - 95 

Deposits from customers 77,820 320439 577,445 111 975 815 

Other borrowed funds - 8760 7,376 - 16,136 

Other financlal labllities 3004 2,804 6 455 17 12,280 

Other non-financlal lablities 10 455 2029 - 2494 

Total liabilities 80,834 332495 593 363 128 1,006,820 

Net foreign currency gap (262) 83,500 34 955 52 118245 

Foreign currency spot contracts (106) 35,106 (35,000) - - 

Net foreign currency gap (368) 118,606 (45) 52 
  

The potental negative effect of unfavorable exchange rate changes is immaterial given fhat the open position in 
USD is about 0.07% (2021: 0.25%) of the capital base as at 341 December 2022. According to the definition of the 
currency board, effective in Bulgaria since 1997, the exchange rate BGN/EUR is fixed and the positions in BGN 
and EUR are not considered sensitive to exchange rate fiuctuations. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.3.2. (Interest rate risk 

The interest rate risk relates to the potentially adverse impact of interest rate fluctuations on Group's net income 
and eguity. The applied policy is to reduce the interest rate risk by extending floating rate loans combined with fixed 
interest rate floor in order to limit the potentially negative impact as a result of non-parallel movements in interest 
rates for the assets or liabilities. Additionally, the Group charges pre-payment penalties as a percentage of the 
principal balance outstanding, in order to limit the interest rate risk, reducing the possible early repayment of 
business loans (granted to small and medium-sized enterprises, corporate clients and municipalities). This, 
however, does not apply to the granted consumer and mortgage loans to individuals, where the provisions of the 
Consumer Loans Act and the Consumer Loans Related to lImmovable Property Act apply and pre-payment 
penalties are charged, as reguired by law. 

The Group does not trade in derivatives on interest rate. This policy means that the risk that the Group may suffer 
significant losses in case of major fluctuations of the market interest levels is relatively mitigated. 

The Group's interest rate position is monitored and managed by fhe Markets and Liduidity Department and Risk 
Management Directorate and is reported to fhe ALCO of the Bank on a monthly basis. The ALCO takes an 
integrated view of the interest rate risk across all of the Group's banking operations and activities as for the other 
Group companies where applicable and based on the specificity of their business activity. The Risk Management 
Department carries out independent monitoring on the intemal limits imposed on the level of the interest risk in the 
banking portfolio, applies stress scenarios for the purposes of the intemal capital assessment and respective 
measuring of the interest risk in banking portfolio, and prepares guarterly reports to the management. 

Sansitivity of fhe assets and liabilities 

The risk of a possible negative change of the net interest income and the financial resuits, is measured by the 
Group through analysis of defined interest scenarios for within one year period. The effact on the capital is based 
on a standardized methodology of (he Basel Committee and interest rate scenarios according to the European 
Banking Authority (EBA) Guidelines EBA/GL/2018/02 on the management of the interest rate risk arising from 
activities outside the trading books, reflecting the absolute values of the sensitivity in all maturity intervals when the 
vield curve changes. 

A sensitivity analysis as of 31 December 2022 and 41 December 2021 prepared by the Group as part of is intemal 
tapital adeguacy analysis, is presented bellow. 

$1 December 2022 31 December 2021 

Change in Change in the Change in the 12- Change in the Change in the 12- 
interest rates econcmic value of month interest income econcmic value of month interest income 

capital Capital 

* 200 6.T. (4,717) (2,918) (5,608) (2412) 

- 200 6.r. 2429 2748 1,449 773 

The results in the above table shows that based on the data as of 41 December 2022, if the interest rates on the 
fioating interest rate positions increase by two hundred basis points (12%), then the economic valye of the capital 
would decrease by EUR 4,717 thousand or 4.11% of capital base and (2021: 5.27%) the profit would decrease by 
EUR 2,918 thousand. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.3.2. (Interestrate risk (continued) 

Sensitiviy of the assets and liabilities (continued) 

Information on interest rate change sensitivity by periods is set out in the tables below. lt includes Group's assets 
and liabilities at tneir balance-sheet value, categorized either by maturity date or by date of the agreed change in 
the interest rates (whichever is earlier). 

31 December 2022 

Cash and balanices with ine Central 
Bank 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financlal assets at FVOCI 

Debt instruments at amorlised cost 

Investment properties 

Tangible and Intangible assets 
Investments in join! ventures 

Othner financial assets 

Otier non-financial assets 

Total assets 

Denaoslte from banks 

Deposiis from customers 

Debt securlties in issue 

Otfhier borrowed funds 

Other financial liapilities 

Oiher non-financlal liabllities 

Total liabilities 

Interest Sensitivity Gap 

  

  

  

  

  

On 

demand No 

upto3 3to6 6months 1to5 Over5  interest 
months months to 1 year vears years bearing Total 

- - - - - 44500 445,002 

4205 - - - - 19 443 23 646 

440 349 224 764 18,102 21,308 A72 - 704,995 

. . , - - 609 609 

15246 40 2,951 16538 7,d66 2092 dA,233 

24 914 14810 4 857 19 897 1480 - 66.75 

. . 5 s - 42 016 A?,016 

- - - - - 7,182 7,182 
. - 5 D - 115 115 

. - s - - 3458 3458 

- - - - - 21636 21,636 

AaA 714 239 414 25 910 57 7A3 9318 541553 1358 652 

39 - - - - - 39 

943 510 88 794 92662 25 581 5B 27849 '1,178,454 

- 16 - - 15000 - 15016 

9 176 - - - - - 9 176 

438 d27 853 4269 68 9.125 14200 

- - - - - 4270 4270 

953 163 89237 93515 28 670 15126 40 244 1220 155 

(466,449) 150,177 (67,605) 28 873 (5,808) S01,309 138 497 

Loans and advances to banks represented in column "No interest bearing" in the table above Include current 

accounts with zero Interest rate. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.3.2. (Interestrate risk (continued) 

Sensitivity of (he assels and liabilities (continued) 

31 December 2021 

Cash and balances with the 

Central Bank 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to 

customers 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Financial assets at FVOCI 

Debt instrtuments at amortised 

cost 

Investment properties 

Tangible and intangible assets 
Investrments in joint ventures 

Other financial assets 

Other non-financial assets 

Total assets 

Deposits fom banks 

Deposits fom customers 

Other borrowed funds 

Other financial liabilities 

Other non-financial liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Interest Sensitivity Gap 

  

  

  

  

  

On 

dernand No 

upto3 3t06 6 montfns 15 Over5 interest 
months months to 1 year years years bearing Total 

- - - - - 238,059 238,059 

81,653 - - - - 4214 85,867 

416,507 196,706 21,013 2,900 318 6a7,A44 

- - - - - 515 515 

16,949 52 4,140 14,007 3272 2,093 40.513 

21,645 1,041 184 14,154 - 37,024 

- . - - - 5298 52,938 

- - - - - 9794 9794 
- - - - - 138 138 

- - - - - 1,829 1,829 
- - ë - - 20,944 20,944 

536 754 197,799 25,337 31,061 3590 330,524 1,125,065 

95 - - - - - 95 

740,734 78,549 107,847 22,991 126  26,069 975815 

16,136 - - - - - 16,136 

289 270 501 2,950 171 8,099 12,280 

. - - - - 2494 249 

757,254 78,819 107,848 25941 296 36,662 1,006,820 

(220,500) 118,980 (82,511) 5,120 3294 293,862 118245 
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32 Financial risk management ( continued) 

32.3.2. Interestrate risk (continued) 

The following table summarizes the infomation on the effective interest rate by financial instruments as of 31 
December 2022 and 2021. The Interest rates are calculated based on information on the average daily balances 
by items of assets and liabllities for fhe respective period and the recognized interest income by these financial 

instruments. 

  

Assets 2022 2021 

Loans and advances to banks 0.72% 0.01% 

Loans and ardvances fto customers 4,12% 4 06% 

Debt instruments at FVOCI D,89% 1.01% 

Financial assets at amortised cost 0.98% 0,47% 

Liabilities 

Deposits fom banks 0.01% 0.01% 

Deposits ftom customers 0.06% 0.15% 
Debt securities in issue 4 05% - 

Other borrowed funds 1.93% 1.38% 

Liese liabilities 1.44% 1,39% 

d2.4. Liguidity risk 

The liguidity risk refers to the risk that the Group might not have sufficient cash to meet deposit withdrawals or other 
financial obligations that arises from mismatches in cash flows primarily for the Bank. The Group follows a 
conservative |guidity management policy. 

The main objectives, when managing the liguid y is to ensure the ongoing capability of the Group to meet its 
financial liabilities, ensure resources, corresponding to the demand of loans and achieve positive financial results 
from the management of its own funds and the respective borrowings. The Group's strategy and objectives in this 
respect are cbsely related to the establishment of a stable funding structure and adeguate fulfillment of the liguidity 
standards. The lguidity management principles are, as follows: 

Centralized control of the ligulidity, exercised by the liguidity management body; 
Ongoing monitoring and evaluation of the necessary finds by time periods in the future, 
Evaluation of the liguid asset adeguacy of the Group; 

Diversification of the sources of financing; 
Adeaguate planning of the emergency actions; 

The Group has adopted internal rules for determining and monitoring the liguidity buffers (primarily for the Bank) in 
order to malntain additional liguidity, immediately accessible in case of a liguidity shock for a certain brief period of 
time. The rules determine the composition of the liguidity buffer, the characteristics and regularity of the applied 
stress scenarios and sources of financing in the going concem scenario and the liguidity crisis scenarios. 
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32 Financial risk managerment (continued) 

32.4. Liguidity risk (continued) 

The kauidity position management framework is supplemented by internal limits for ensuring adeduate coverage of 
the borrowings by liguidity assets, regular performance of stress tests for the evaluation of the guality and the 

stability of the liguidity bufier as well as indicators corresponding to the changes in the regulatory framework - 
leverage, stable financing ratio, liguidity coverage ratio. 

Treasury Department of the Bank manages the operating liguidity of the Group (of the Bank) on a daily basis and 
prepares periodical reports on the liguidity position and the deposit base. When apolicable similar analysis is made 

tor the liguiditiy position of the other Group companies. The reports are submitted to ALCO and are discussed 
monthly. Risk Management Directorate of the Bank provides independent review on the liguidity position, controls 

he intemal and statutory liguidity limits and periorms periodically stress tests in order to ensure optimal level of 
lguidity buffers. The resulis ftom periormed analysis are presented to the Management Board. 

The liguidity position of the ofher Group companies is followed on a regular basis by making analysis of the incoming 
and outgoing cash flows. This information is presented to the Management Board of the Bank. 

When managing its liguid position, the Group (the Bank) uses interbank deposits only to bridge temporary funding 
mismatches, rather than to fund loans. Targeting optimization of its liguidity sources and higher yield earned, the 
Group invests in Bulgarian government securities or govermment securities of issuers with first-class sovereign 
ratings such as Germany, France, the USA. Investments in Bulgarian corporate bonds and shares are approved 
by ALCO on a case-by-case basis. The securities acguired for liguidity purposes are currently classified as "debt 

instrumenits af FVOCI”. 

As part of the liguidity risk management, additional intemal limits were introduced by the Group (the Bank) in order 
to mitigate the concentration risk and reinforce the liguidity buffers. When needed the Group extends its financing 

sources and further stabilizes its liguidity position, by placing morigage or comorate bonds. 
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32 Financial risk manaaement (continued) 

32.4. Liguidity risk (continued) 

The table below summarizes the contractual maturity structure of the assets and liabilities by time periods, on a 
discounted basis: 

    

  

  

  

  

  

On 

demand 

up to3 3t06 6 months 1t05 Over 5 

31 December 2022 months months to 1year . Years years Total 
GCash and balances with tie Central 

Bank 445,002 - - - 445,002 

Loans and advances lo banks 19.893 - - 3.755 - 23,648 

Loans and advances to customers 82306 62,082 94 569 301,448 164,590 704,995 

Financial assets at FVTPL - - - - 609 609 

Debt instruments at FVOCI 13 791 40 2.951 17,993 9 458 44 233 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 24914 14 610 d Bo/ 19897 1480 G5 758 

Investment properties 4 354 s 17.165 20,497 0 42 016 

Tangible and intangible assets E E - - 7,182 7,182 

Investments in joint ventures E E - - 115 1i5 

Other financlal assets 3,183 36 50 189 - 3458 

Other non-financlal assets 481 8166. 12,715 192 162 21,636 

Total assets 593,924 84,934 132,307 363,901 163,586  1,358,652 

Deposlis ftom baks 39 E E E - 39 

Deposits from customers 961,247 88128 91,122 29,022 8935 1,178 454 

Debi securities in issue - 16 - - 15000 15016 

Other borrowed funds 38 1,163 1,163 5,862 950 9 176 

Lease liabillties 438 A27 853 3289 68 5,075 

Other financial liabilities 3,902 286 2,916 107 1,914 9125 

Other non-fnancial hablitles _ 261 2188 220 394 207 3,270 

Total liabilities 965 925 92208 96274 38674. 2/,074  1,220,155 

Maturity Gap (372,001) (7,274) 36,033 325221 156,512 138,497 

Cumulative maturity gap (372,001) (379275)  (343,242) (18,015) 138 497 
  

Off-balance sheet liabilities and commitments 

  

Unutlized Commitments on loans 2816 20,109 21,271 26 848 - 7A,044 

Bank guarantees 3224 1,173 1,515 3.9%?2 1,153 11,007 

LUC issued - 95 189 s - 2A 

Total 6,040 21,3717 22975 32,79% 1,153 84335 
  

The increased maturity gap between short-term assets and liabllities up to 4 months is a result of the lower interest 
rates on the deposit market. The Group (the Bank) observes and analyses on an ongoing base thie trends in 

deposlts roll on / withdrawal and measures the short-term liduidity risk, including on a dally basis. The analysis 
show that historicaly the retention of the resources significantly exeeds the contractual terms, thus providing in 
2022 more liguid funds then real needed for gross payments. 
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32 Financial risk manadgement (continued 

$2.4, Liguidity risk (continued) 

31 December 2021 

Cash and balances with the Central 

Bank 

Loans and advances to banks 

Loans and advances to customers 

Financial assets at FVTPL 

Debt instruments at FVOCI 

Debt instruments at amortised cost 

Investment properties 

Tangible and intangible assets 

Investments in joint ventures 

Other financial assets 

Other non-financial assets 

Total assets 

Deposits fom baks 

Deposits ffom customers 

Other borrowed funds 

Lease liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 

Other non-financial liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Maturity Gap 

Cumulative maturity gap 

  

  

  

  

  

Off-balance sheet liabilities and commitments 

Unutilized Commitments on loans 

Bank guarantees 

UC issued 

Total 

  

  

On 

demand up 

to3 dto6 6 months 1to5 Over 5 

months months to 1year years years Total 

238,059 - - - - 238,059 

81,770 - - 4,097 - 85,867 

89,030 47,453 82,749 277,323 140,889 637 444 

- - - - 5165 516 

15524 52 4,140 15,432 5,365 40,513 

21,644 1,042 184 14,154 - d7,024 

3777 91 15,947 33,123 - 52,938 

- - - - 9,794 9,794 

- - - - 138 138 

1,548 41 122 118 - 1,829 

491 8,999 10528 926 - 20,944 

451,843 57,678 113 670 345 173 156,701 1,125,065 

95 - - - - 95 

754,524 71,572 105575 26,048 12,096 975815 

18 1,053 1,053 5,263 8749 16,136 

289 270 501 2,950 171 4,181 

2,160 231 1,282 506 3,920 8,099 

155 1,145 854 246 94 2494 

751,241 80,271 109 265 35,013 25,030 . 1,006,820 

(305,398) (22,593) 4 405 310,160 131,671 118245 

(305,398)  (327,991)  (323,566) (13,426) 118245 

3,387 7,114 10,518 32,207 24 53250 

2,684 2,341 2,087 3580 637 11,329 

4,093 - 174 - - 4 267 

10,164 9 455 12,719 35,787 661 68,846 
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32 Financial risk manadement (continued) 

32.4. Liguidity risk (continued) 

  

Agreed maturities of the non-discounted cash flows of the financial liabilities 

The table below shows the maturity structure of the non-discounted cash flows of the Bank's financial liabilities at 
31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021: 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

On 

demand 

up to3 3t06 6 months Over 5 
31 December 2022 months months to 1year 1 to5 years years Total 

Deposits ffom banks 39 - - - - 39 

Deposits ftom customers 961,282 88,183 91,255 29,508 8,938 1,179,166 

Debt securities in issue - 374 d76 3,000 16,501 20,251 

Other borrowed funds 125 1,221 1,817 6,417 978 10,058 

Lease liabilities 438 427 853 3442 84 5,244 

Other fnancial liabilities 3,902 286 2,916 107 1,914 9,125 

Other non-financial liabilities 261 2188 220 394 207 d,270 
Total ( at the maturity date as per 

the contract) 966,047 92,679 96,937 42 868 28,622 1,227,153 

Off-balance sheet liabilities and commitments 

Unutiized Commitments on loans 2816 20109 21,271 28 848 - 73 044 

Bank guarantees 3224 1,173 1515 3,942 1,153 11,007 

L/C issued - 95 169 - - 284 

Total 6,040 21,377 22,975 32790 1,153 84335 

On 

demand 

up to3 3to6 6 months Over $ 

31 December 2021 months months to 1 year 1 to 5 years years Total 

Deposits ffom banks 95 - - - - 95 

Deposits from customers 754,574 77,635 105,751 26,157 12,108 976 225 

Other borrowed funds 71 1,089 1,149 5,651 8,791 16751 

Lease liabilities 289 270 501 3,049 223 4332 

Other financlal liablities 2,160 231 1,282 506 3,920 8 099 

Other non-fnancial lablities 155 1,145 854 246 94 2,49% 

Total ( at the maturity date as per 

the contract) 751,344 80,370 109,537 35,609 25,136 1,007,996 

Off-balance sheet liabilities and commitments 

Unutllized Commitments on bans 3 387 7,114 10,518 32207 24 53250 

Bank guarantees 2,684 2,341 2,087 3580 637 11,329 

LC issued 4.093 - 174 - - 4267 

Total 10,164 9 455 12,7179 35,787 661 68,846 
  

In the column “Over 5 years” for deposits fom customers in the table above are indicated deposits with agreed 
maturity up to one year, which serve as collateral on loans with maturity over 5 years and willtherefore be renewed. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

d2.4. Liguidity risk (contfinued) 

In 2022, The Bank reports liguidity ratios as LCR and NSFR that are over the minimum regulatory reguired and 

discloses these ratios according to the reguirements of art.447 of Regulation 575. 

Encumbered assets policy 

In accordance with the Recommendation of the European Systemic Risk Board (ESRB/2012/2) regarding the 
financing of credit institutions, the Group (through the Bank) has developed a policy for the management of the 
encumbrance of assets, defining the basic principles, regarding the sources of financing, the general approach of 
the Group regarding the encumbrance of assets and the monitoring framework, the control mechanisms and 
procedures, which may ensure the timely identification of the risks, related to the encumbrance of assets and their 
adeguate management. The policy has been approved by the Management Board of the Bank. When applicable 
this poly is appiied in the ofher Group companies. According to that policy, an encumbered asset is asset, which 
has been openly or indirectly pledged or is the subject of a guarantee, collateralization or credit guality improvement 
agreement, with respect to a transaction. 

The encumbrance of the assets by types is, as follows: 
Cash blocked in bank accounts as collateral 
Governmental securities, used as collaterals for borrowings of budget spending entities; 
Liguidity swaps; 
Repurchase transactions; 
Loan receivables; 
Other. 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.4. Liguidity risk (continued) 

The tables below present information on encumbered assets and related liabilities rising encumbrance at 31 
December 2022 and 2021: 

2022 

'.. Encumbered assets 
Matching liabilities rising 

 encumbrance 
  

-—Cas-h and balances with the 

  

Central Bank 1,814 Other liabilities 1814 

Loans and advances to banks 601 Other liabilities 601 

Loans and advances to banks 18.153  Nominal value of financial guarantees 18,153 

Loans and advances to customers 7,386 Other borrowed funds 9176 

Financial assets at FVOCI 6,080 Deposits from customers 5 503 

Financial assets held to maturity 12,069 Deposits from customers 10,923 

Total 46!103 46,170 

Ratio of encumbered assets to 

total assets 3.39% 

2021 

Matching liabilities rising 
Encumbered assets encumbrance 

Cash and balances with the 
Central Bank 1,499 Otherliabilities 1,499 

Loans and advances to banks 358 Otherliabilities 358 

Loans and advances to banks 3,739  Nominal value of financial guarantees d,739 

Loans and advances to customers 10,704 Other borrowed funds 16,137 

Financial assets at FVOCI 6,003 Deposits from customers 4,945 

Financial assets held to maturity 9,963 Deposits from customers 8207 

Total 32266 34884 

Ratio of encumbered assets to 
total assets 2.87% 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.5. Trusted assefs in custody 

The Group is registered as investment intermediary and performs operations for customers in accordance with the 
reguirements of Regulation 48 of the FSC. The Bank has approved a policy with respect to fiduciary operations for 
customers which is elaborated on the basis of the reguirements of Art.28-31 of Regulation 38 of the FSC. 

32.6. Capital management 

The Group is particularly focused on maintaining a capital adeguacy, corresponding to its risk profile, as the bank 
and the companies. Tha Bank is focused on the granting of loans to small- and medium-sized businesses and retail 
customers in a dynamic environment. The capital management policy seeks to ensure adeguate coverage of risks 
arising in the normal course of banking business as well as risks of unforeseen circumstances. 

The Group monitors and analyses on a monthly basis its consolidated capital position and prepares guarterly 
reports for supervisory purposes, which are then submitted to the BNB in accordance with the regulatory 
reduirements. Stress tests are carried out on a regular basis, reviewing the effect of the deterioration of the guality 
of the portfolio and/or impairment of the existing collaterals, both on the result and the eguity position of the Group. 
The capital buffers are evaluated on a regular basis, specifying measures for their preservation and increase. 

The minimum levels of capital adeguacy for the banks in Bulgaria are set by Regulation No. 875/2013, according 
to which the credit institutions at any moment must meet the following capital reduirements: 

e aCommon Fguity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4,5 %; 
e a Tier1capital ratio of 6 %; 

e a total capital ratio of 8 %; 

In addition, Ordinance No. 8 of the BNB on the capital buffers of banks, sets further capital buffers, which the banks 
must keep above the minimum capital reguirements, which, as of 31 December 2022 are: 

e protective capital buffer of 2,5% of the amount of the total risk exposure of the Bank; 
e  anti-cyclical capital buffer — 1% of the total risk exposure of the Bank; In 2022 the Management Board of 

BNB has updated the levels of this buffer for 2024g which will be set at 1.5% as of 1 January 2023 and 
2% as of 1 October 2023 
systematic risk buffer — 3% of the amount of the total risk exposure of the Bank 
a buffer for a global systemically important institution 
a buffer for another systemically important institution 

The capital position of the Group depends on numerous factors, including the growth of its credit portfolio and 
eamings, regulatory capital reguirements. Any change that limits the Group's ability to manage the balance sheet 
and capital resources effectively, including for example deterioration of the credit duality of the loan portfolio, 
reduction in profits as a result of additional impairment provisions, increase in risk weighted assets, delays in the 
disposal of certain assets may result in a decrease of the capital buffers and need of additional capital. 

Historically the Group has been maintaining a capital adeguacy exceeding the regulatory reguirements, due to fhe 
pursued policy of reinvestment of the profit and timely increase of the capital. As of 31 December 2022 the overall 
capital adeguacy ratio amounts to 18.0% (2021: 17.1%). 

Based on the terms and conditions, set out in art. 19 of Regulation (EC) No. 575/2013 of the European Parliament 
and the Council, as of 31 December 2022, the Group is not subject to prudential consolidation. 
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32 Financial risk management (centinued) 

32.6. Capital management (continued) 

The table below contains information on fhe capital adeguacy as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 

Capital base 

Paid in share capital 

Premium reserve 

Total reserves 

Unrealzed gans /(losses) on financial assets available for sale 
Less: htangibk assets 
Less: CET1 capital ekments or deductions — other 

Other transticnal tier one core capital adjustments 

Total capital base 

Total amount of risk assets 

Capital reguirements 

Capital reduirements for eredit risk 
Capital reguirements for position risk 

Capital reguirements for currency and commodity risk 
Gapital reguirements for operating risk 

Total Capital reguirements - Standardized approach 

Ratios 

Total capital adeguacy (%) 

Captaladeguacy of Tier 1 Capital (%) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

2022 2021 

12624 12624 
18944 18944 
86,605 74 882 
(1,309) 201 

(825) (854) 
(505) (608) 
681) 1,148 

114753 106,339 

637,458 621333 

2022 2021 
A7 862 46427 

3.635 3280 

50,997 49707 

18.0% 17,1% 
18 0% 17 1% 
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32 Financial risk management (continued) 

32.7. Operating risk 

Operating risk is the risk of loss, resulting from a systematic issue, human error, fraud or extemal events. When 
the controls fail to operate efficiently, the operating risks may result in harm to the goodwill, have legal and 
regulatory conseguences or even result in a financial loss. The Group cannot expect all the operating risks to be 
eliminated, but it tries to manage such risks, by means of an intemal control and monitoring system, corresponding 
to the potential risks. The controls include efficient separation of the liabilities, obligations, accesses, permits and 
procedures for benchmarking, training of the personnel and evaluation processes, such as the use of intemal audit. 

The Group (through the Bank) has adopted interal rules for the management of the operating risk, which regulate 
the process of management and control of that risk. The organizational operating risk management model is based 
on the principle of separation of the responsibilities between the management and risk control and includes three 
main pillars: 

- identification and management of the risks by the individual business lines; 
- independent review, evaluation and reporting the risk by the operating risk management function; 
- independent verification of the controls, processes and systems, utilized for the management of the 
operating risk by intemal and/or external auditors. 

For the purposes of capital adeguacy, the Group applies the base indicator approach. 

33 Supplementary information 

Information to be disclosed according to the regulations of Art.70 (6) of Credit Institutions Act. 

The information for the Bank and its subsidiaries is presented as of 31 December 2022 and does not include 
consolidation eliminations: 

  

Bulgarian- 
American Credit BACB Finance BACB Trade 

Company Bank subsidiary subsidiary 

The company 
lhgrï ';ka tull provides financial Financial and 

bg nking license services like business 
for offegring and finance lease, consulting, trading 

" i . trade and activity and all 
EI ëïg’g'g%;he consumer range of business 

bankin P finance using its activities 
o erati%ns own funds or permitted by the 
grmitte dbvclA — BACBfinandngif  law 

P Y needed 

Registered office Sofia Sofia Sofia 

Annual turnover 48 980 268 11,594 

Number of employees d52 1 1 

Profit before taxation 24,704 64 78 

Income tax accrued 2,360 20 7 

Return on assets 1.6% 1,9% 0.8% 

Government grants none none none 

* For financial institutions the turnover includes gross interest income, gross lease income, gross fees and commissions 
income and other operating income gross. 
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34 Events after the reportina period 

No material events have occured subseduently to 31 December 2022, that would reguire additional correction or 
disclosure in the consolidated financial statlements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. 
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DECLARATION 
Under art. 100m, para 4 (a) of the POSA 

The undersigned 
1. (lian Petrov Georgiev, Chief Executive Officer of “Bulgarian-American Credit Bank” 
2. Loreta Ivanova Grigorova, Execuvite Director of “Bulgarian-American Credit Bank” 
3. Katya Svetoslavova Bineva, Chief Accountant of “Bulgarian-American Credit Bank” 

Hereby certify that to the best of our knowledge the aftached set of Annual Audited Consolidated 
Financial Statements of Bulgarian-American Credit Bank AD for the year 2022, prepared in 

accordance with applicable accounting standards, give a tme and fair view of the assets and liabilities, 
financial position and financial performance of Bulgarian-American Credit Bank AD and of the 
companies jncluded in the consolidation. 

s 
r n o 
E 

Loreta Grigorova 

Executive Director 

Iian Georpiev 
Chief Exccutive Director 

  

Katya Bineva | 

Chief Accountant 

 



DECLARATION 
Unrder art. 100m, para 4 (b) of the POSA 

The undersigned, Tlian Petrov Georgiev, Chief Executive Officer u Loreta Ivanova Grigorova, 

Execuvite Director, jointy representing “Bulgarian-American Credit Bank”, hereby certify that to the 
best of our knowledge fhe attached Annual Activity Report of “Bulgarian-American Credit Bank” on 
consolidated basis for the vear 2022 contains a truthful review of the development and results from the 
activity of fhe “Bulgarian-American Credit Bank”, as well as the condition of “Bulgarian-American 

Credit Bank”and the companies included in the consolidation, together with a description of the major 
risks and uncertainties faced thereby. 
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[ian Georgiev 
G rg, D ` 
ZP s / |  Loreta Grigorova 

Chief Executive Direetor n #. Exwecutive Director Oó)h\ “_afri'? 
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